
SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS AND  
DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 

Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk at 
1301 81st Avenue NE, Spring Lake Park, MN  55432. Ph.763-784-6491 at least 48 hours in advance. 

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR AGENDA 
TUESDAY, JULY 05, 2022 

CITY HALL at 7:00 PM 
 

1.     CALL TO ORDER 
2.     ROLL CALL 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
4.     ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA  
5.     PRESENTATION 

A. Oath of Office - Police Officer Jeremiah Drinkwine 
6.     DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 
7.     CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of Minutes - June 20, 2022 City Council Meeting 
B. Mayor's Proclamation - Park and Recreation Month - July 2022 
C. Resolution Appointing Election Judges For The 2022 Primary Election 
D. Contractors Licenses 
E. Contractor's Request for Payment No. 2 - 2022 Street Improvement Projects 
F. Accept Resignation of Glenn Bauer 
G. Accept Resignation of Conor Allen 

8.     DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
A. Public Works Report 
B. Code Enforcement Report 

9.     ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 
A. Ordinance Amending Chapter 16 of the City Code to Establish Interim Use Permits and 

Amending Section 16.64.040 of the City Code 
B. Resolution Authorizing Summary Publication of Ordinance 482, an Ordinance Amending 

Chapter 16 of the City Code to Establish Interim Use Permits and Amending Section 
16.64.040 of the City Code 

10.     UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 7914 Van Buren Street NE 

11.     NEW BUSINESS 
A. Approve 2023 North Metro Telecommunications Commission Budget 
B. 2021 Audited Financial Statements 
C. Accept Resignation of Jamie Cassidy & Authorization to Begin Hiring Process for Recreation 

Program Coordinator 
D. Architectural/Engineering Services Contract - Able Park Building Project 



12.   REPORTS 
A. Engineer Report 
B. Attorney Report 
C. Administrator Report 

13.   OTHER 
A. Correspondence 

14.   ADJOURN 
 

 
RULES FOR DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 Discussion from the floor is limited to three minutes per person. Longer presentations must be 
scheduled through the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer’s office. 

 

 Individuals wishing to be heard must sign in with their name and address. Meetings are video recorded 
so individuals must approach the podium and speak clearly into the microphone. 

 

 Council action or discussion should not be expected during “Discussion from the Floor.” Council may 
direct staff to research the matter further or take the matter under advisement for action at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
The purpose of a public hearing is to allow the City Council to receive citizen input on a proposed project. This is 
not a time to debate the issue. 
 
The following format will be used to conduct the hearing: 
 

 The presenter will have a maximum of 10 minutes to explain the project as proposed. 

 Councilmembers will have the opportunity to ask questions or comment on the proposal. 
 

 Citizens will then have an opportunity to ask questions and/or comment on the project. Those wishing 
the comment are asked to limit their comments to 3 minutes. 

In cases where there is a spokesperson representing a group wishing to have their collective opinions voiced, the 
spokesperson should identify the audience group he/she is representing and may have a maximum of 10 
minutes to express the views of the group. 
 

 People wishing to comment are asked to keep their comments succinct and specific. 
 

 Following public input, Councilmembers will have a second opportunity to ask questions of the 
presenter and/or citizens. 

 

 After everyone wishing to address the subject of the hearing has done so, the Mayor will close the 
public hearing. 

 

 The City Council may choose to take official action on the proposal or defer action until the next 
regularly scheduled Council meeting. No further public input will be received at that time. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City 
Council Regular was held on June 20, 2022 at the City Hall, at 7:00 PM. 
 
1.     CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Nelson called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
2.     ROLL CALL 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Mayor Robert Nelson 
Councilmember Ken Wendling 
Councilmember Brad Delfs 
Councilmember Lisa Dircks 
Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff – arrived at 7:33 PM 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Building Official Jeff Baker, Police Chief Josh Antoine, Recreation Director Kay Okey, Attorney John 
Thames, Peter Allen (Stantec), Administrator Daniel Buchholtz. 
 
VISITORS  
Sierra Williams, 7914 Van Buren Street NE 
 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
4.     ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA  
 
 Administrator Buchholtz requested that the following addition to the agenda: 1) that Item 12. B. 

be added to the agenda: Closed session pursuant to MS 13D.050 Sub 3B, regarding Attorney-
Client Privilege.  

 
 Administrator Buchholtz made note that an updated Ordinance for 9A, done at the direction of 

the City Attorney, was distributed. 
 

5.     DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR - None 
 
6.     CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approval of Minutes – June 6, 2022 City Council Meeting 
B. Approval of Claims List – May 2022 General Disbursements - $384,851.39 
C. Public Right-Of-Way Application - Comcast 
D. Contractor’s License 

 
Motion made by Councilmember Wendling to approve Consent Agenda. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 June 20, 2022 
 
 

Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Delfs, Councilmember Dircks, Mayor 
Nelson.  Motion carried. 

 
7.    PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 7914 Van Buren Street NE 
 

Motion made by Councilmember Delfs to open the public hearing at 7:05 PM. 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Delfs, Councilmember Dircks, Mayor 
Nelson.  Motion carried 

 
Building Official Baker stated that the property failed the initial rental inspection on April 8, 2022.  
He said on May 13, 2022, Code Enforcement staff granted request to delay.  He stated that on May 
24, 2022 Code Enforcement staff completed the re-inspection of the property and found that the 
violations had not been corrected. 

 
Sierra Williams, the tenant at 7914 Van Buren Street NE, stated that the property is under a rent to 
own agreement and she is in the process of purchasing the home.  She noted that the GFI outlet is 
scheduled to be repaired on Wednesday, June 22, 2022.  She stated that the basement living room 
was not being used as a bedroom.  Ms. Williams noted that the futon was being used by the kids 
to watch television. 
 
Attorney Thames explained that the Council has discretion on the issue of revocation and the 
Council can only work with the facts they are presented.   
 
Muton made by Councilmember Dircks to close the public hearing at 7:23 PM. 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Delfs, Councilmember Dircks, Mayor 
Nelson.  Motion carried 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Delfs to table any action on the rental license revocation of 7914 
Van Buren Street NE until July 5, 2022, with the property owner being notified by certified mail. 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Delfs, Councilmember Dircks, Mayor 
Nelson.  Motion carried 

 
B.  MS4 Annual Report 

 
Motion by Councilmember Dircks to open the public hearing at 7;25 PM. 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Delfs, Councilmember Dircks, Mayor 
Nelson.  Motion carried 
 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 June 20, 2022 
 

Peter Allen, Stantec, gave an overview of the City’s compliance activities for 2021 conducted in 
conjunction with its Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) system.  Mr. Allen 
mentioned that one requirement is for the City to inventory all private water holding. 
Mayor Nelson requested an explanation of private.  Mr. Allen stated that private is anything not 
owned or operated by the City (rain gardens, storm water ponds). 
 
No one came forward to speak on the City’s SWPPP. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Delfs to close the public hearing at 7:41 PM. 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Delfs, Councilmember Goodboe-
Bisschoff, Councilmember Dircks, Mayor Nelson.  Motion carried 

 
8.     DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 
A. Police Report 
 
Chief Antoine reported that the Police Department responded to 834 calls for service in May 
2022 compared to 629 calls for service for the month of May 2021.   He said that School 
Resource Officer Imig reported handling 6 calls for service in May, as well as handling 7 student 
contacts, 6 student escorts, and 1 follow-up investigations.  
 
Chief Antoine said Investigator Bennek handled 26 cases for the month of May, 23 of which 
were felony in nature and 3 misdemeanors.  He said Investigator Bennek coordinated the 
catalytic converter event with Precision Tune on May 16, 2022. He said 35 vehicles were 
marked during the event. 

 
B. Recreation Report 
 
Recreation Director Okey stated that Wesley Goldberg, Recreation Supervisor formed the North 
Metro Outdoor Sand Volleyball League with surrounding communities, with the games taking 
place at Able Park.  He is also forming an Ultimate Frisbee League.  She also stated that the 
Terrace Park shelter would be delivered by the end of June and that the Able Park basketball 
court would be painted 30 days after the surface cured. 
 
Director Okey thanked all the sponsors and staff who helped with Tower Days.   

 
 9.     ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 
 

A.  Ordinance Amending Section 9.20.020 of the City Code Relating to Public Nuisances 
 
Administrator Buchholtz stated the proposed noise nuisance ordinance for possible City 
Council adoption was discussed by the Planning Commission.  He said that on May 9, City 
Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff requested soliciting resident input on the proposed 
ordinance.  Administrator Buchholtz noted that staff received one comment.   



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 June 20, 2022 
 

 
Administrator Buchholtz said measuring noise requires specialized equipment for our Police 
Department along with training in how to use the equipment. He stated that in using a 
strictly scientific standard, nuisances could be left unaddressed because while the noise 
may unreasonably annoy or disturb an individual, it may fall underneath the decibel limit 
set forth under that standard.  He stated the proposed ordinance language provides room 
for a code enforcement officer or a police officer to decide about the reasonableness of a 
claimed nuisance. 
 
He said that the ordinance being proposed provides law enforcement and code 
enforcement with more tools to address noise complaints rather than the specific scientific 
standard as it exists presently. 
 
Council discussed reviewing the ordinance in a year to determine its effectiveness. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Wendling to approve Ordinance Amending Section 
9.20.020 of the City Code Relating to Public Nuisances as amended. 
 
Voting Yea:  Council Member Wendling, Council Member Delfs, Council Member Goodboe-
Bisschoff, Council Member Dircks, Mayor Nelson.   Motion carried. 

 
B. Resolution Authorizing Summary Publication of Ordinance 480, An Ordinance Amending 

Section 9.20.020 of the City Code Relating to Public Nuisances 
 

Motion made by Councilmember Goodboe Bisschoff to approve Resolution 20-23 
Authorizing Summary Publication of Ordinance 480, An Ordinance Amending Section 
9.20.020 of the City Code Relating to Public Nuisances. 
 
Voting Yea:  Council Member Wendling, Council Member Delfs, Council Member Goodboe-
Bisschoff, Council Member Dircks, Mayor Nelson.   Motion carried. 

 
C. Ordinance Amending Section 16.28.010 of the City Code Regarding Performance Standards 

 
Administrator Buchholtz stated tht he ordinance being presented to the City Council is in 
significant conformance with the Planning Commission’s recommendation.  The Planning 
Commission suggested the following changes: 

 
• Added “protect property values” to 16.28.010(A) relating to the intent of the ordinance. 
• Added a second noise standard to state as follows: Noise levels measured at the 

adjoining property line of residential uses or residentially zoned property shall not 
exceed 55dBA during the hours of 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. and 60dBA during the hours 
of 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m., with the highest one-minute equivalent noise level being no 
more than 75dB. A noise study conducted by a qualified professional may be required to 
establish existing ambient noise levels before development of a proposed use and actual 
noise levels after construction and operation of the proposed use.  



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 June 20, 2022 
 

This is the language provided by the City Planner at the June 13 work session.  
• Section 16.28.010(B)(14)(c)(4) was modified to replace the term “four-sided design” 

with “All buildings shall incorporate similar exterior materials on all sides of a building.”  
• Section 16.28.010(B)(14)(c)(1)(H) was amended to replace the term “modern” with 

“factory-finished” as it describes metal paneling materials.  
• Section 16.28.010(B)(14)(d)(1)(B) was amended to replace the term “modern” with 

“factory-finished” as it describes metal paneling materials  
 
Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff suggested striking the line that allows council to exceed 
35%.  She would like to see a flat percentage like the surrounding communities.  
Administrator Buchholtz noted that the 60% allows for flexibility on different exterior 
materials.  Attorney Thames says that the term gives the Council discretion to say no.  He 
suggested a compromise such as requiring super majority to exceed 35% metal. 
 
Councilmember Dircks suggested tabling the ordinance to discuss Councilmember 
Goodboe-Bisschoff’s concerns in more detail. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Dircks to table Ordinance 481 Amending Section 16.28.010 of 
the City Code Regarding Performance Standards 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff, Councilmember Dircks.  Voting Nay:  
Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Delfs, Mayor Nelson.  Motion failed. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Nelson to approve Ordinance 481 Amending Section 16.28.010 of 
the City Code Regarding Performance Standards 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Delfs, Mayor Nelson.  Voting Nay:  
Councilmember Goodboe-Bisscoff, Councilmember Dircks. Motion carried. 

 
D. Resolution Authorizing Summary Publication of Ordinance 481, An Ordinance Amending 

Section 16.28.010 of the City Code Regarding Performance Standards 
 

Motion made by Mayor Nelson to approve Authorizing Resolution 22-24 Summary 
Publication of Ordinance 481, An Ordinance Amending Section 16.28.010 of the City Code 
Regarding Performance Standards 

 
Voting Aye:  Council Member Wendling, Council Member Delfs, Council Member Dircks, 
Mayor Nelson.  Voting Nay: Council Member Goodboe-Bisschoff, Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 6 June 20, 2022 
 
10.    NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Park and Recreation Commissioner Application 
 
Director Okey stated that she received an application from Erik Olson for the Park and 
Recreation Commission.  She gave an overview of Mr. Olson’s qualifications and 
recommended that he be appointed to the Commission. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Delfs to appoint Erik Olson to the Park and Recreation 
Commission. 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Delfs, Councilmember Goodboe-
Bisschoff, Councilmember Dircks, Mayor Nelson.  Motion carried 

 
B. Voting Booths  

 
Administrator Buchholtz stated that he is requesting approval to purchase 10 Franklin 4-
Station Voting Booths from Inclusion-Solutions at the cost of $924/piece.  He noted that the 
booths are ADA compliant and easy to transport and set-up.  They will take up less space in 
storage and on Election Day.  He noted that the City will retain a few of the older booths for 
emergencies.  He said the funds for the purchase will come from the Election Fund. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff to approve the purchase of 10 Voting 
Booths for a total of $9,458.94 plus shipping. 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Delfs, Councilmember Goodboe-
Bisschoff, Councilmember Dircks, Mayor Nelson.  Motion carried 

 
C. Authorize Purchase of Traffic Speed Signs 
  

Chief Antoine stated that he has received requests from the council and residents to add 
speed display signs throughout the city.  He said he has been researching the topic since 
October of 2021 and is recommending All Traffic Solutions’, Shield 18 Radar Messaging 
Speed Display.  He said the signs would allow the Police Department to display site-specific 
messages on the sign. 
 
Chief Antoine stated the units would require an ongoing appropriation for the App Traffic 
Suite, which includes equipment management, reporting, image management, alerts, 
mapping and premier care.  He said that the two units would cost $2,569.26 annually for an 
annual cost of $4,069.26. 
 
Chief Antoine recommended the special sign purchase units in the amount of $11,830.46, 
with the funds to come from the Traffic Education Fund. He also stated he applied for a 
Community Safety Grant through Centerpoint Energy for $2,500.  He said if the grant is 
awarded the funds would reimburse the Traffic Education Fund.  



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 7 June 20, 2022 
 

 
Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired whether two signs were enough.  Chief 
Antoine stated that he would like to study the data that would be received from the app to 
determine if additional signs are needed. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Wendling to approve the purchase of Traffic Speed Signs.   
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Delfs, Councilmember Goodboe-
Bisschoff, Councilmember Dircks, Mayor Nelson.  Motion carried 

 
11.   REPORTS 

 
A. Attorney Report – No Report 

 
B. Engineer Report  
 

Engineer Report is in the packet.   
 

C. Administrator Report  
 

Administrator Buchholtz noted that he would be in Duluth the rest of the week at the LMC 
Annual Conference.  He expressed appreciation to all who volunteered to make Tower Days 
a great success. 

 
12.   OTHER 
 

A. Correspondence 
 

B. Closed Session to Discuss Attorney-Client Privilege 
 
Mayor Nelson stated that the City Council will be going into a closed session to discuss 
MS13D.05 Sub 3B, Attorney-Client Privilege. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Dircks to close the regular Council Meeting. 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Delfs, Councilmember Goodboe-
Bisschoff, Councilmember Dircks, Mayor Nelson.  Motion carried 
 
Mayor Nelson recessed the regular Council Meeting at 8:56 PM 
 
Mayor Nelson reconvened the regular Council Meeting at 9:11 PM 
 
Attorney Thames stated that the City Council discussed threatened litigation with Spring 
Crest Townhome Association and that staff has been provided direction. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 8 June 20, 2022 
 
13.   ADJOURN 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Wendling to adjourn. 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Delfs, Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff, 
Councilmember Dircks, Mayor Nelson.  Motion carried. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:12 PM. 
 
   

 Robert Nelson, Mayor 
 
Attest:   
  
Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 
 



 
 

Designation of July as Park and Recreation Month 
 
WHEREAS parks and recreation programs are an integral part of communities throughout 
this country, including City of Spring Lake Park and 
 
WHEREAS our parks and recreation are vitally important to establishing and maintaining 
the quality of life in our communities, ensuring the health of all citizens, and contributing to 
the economic and environmental well-being of a community and region; and 
 
WHEREAS parks and recreation programs build healthy, active communities that aid in the 
prevention of chronic disease, provide therapeutic recreation services for those who are 
mentally or physically disabled, and also improve the mental and emotional health of all 
citizens; and  
 
WHEREAS parks and recreation programs increase a community’s economic prosperity 
through increased property values, expansion of the local tax base, increased tourism, the 
attraction and retention of businesses, and crime reduction; and  
 
WHEREAS parks and recreation areas are fundamental to the environmental well-being of 
our community; and  
 
WHEREAS parks and natural recreation areas improve water quality, protect groundwater, 
prevent flooding, improve the quality of the air we breathe, provide vegetative buffers to 
development, and produce habitat for wildlife; and  
 
WHEREAS our parks and natural recreation areas ensure the ecological beauty of our 
community and provide a place for children and adults to connect with nature and recreate 
outdoors; and  
 
WHEREAS the U.S. House of Representatives has designated July as Parks and Recreation 
Month; and 
 
WHEREAS City of Spring Lake Park recognizes the benefits derived from parks and 
recreation resources 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY I, Robert Nelson, Mayor of the City of Spring 
Lake Park, that July is recognized as Park and Recreation Month in the City of Spring Lake 
Park. 
 
Dated this 5th day of July, two thousand twenty-two.  
 

    
__________________________ 

Robert Nelson, Mayor  
 

    ATTEST:  
 

__________________________ 
    Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Clerk 

         



 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING ELECTION JUDGES FOR THE 

2022 PRIMARY ELECTION 

 

 WHEREAS, the Minnesota Primary will be held on Tuesday, August 9, 2022. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake 

Park that the following persons are hereby appointed as Election Judges for the 2022 Primary and 

they are authorized and directed to perform all duties of the office of Election Judge as provided by 

law. 
 

Lisa Monson-Hokenson Eleanor Puumala Joan Hagedorn Karen Hokenson 

Antoinette Mortensen Delores Kothman Judy Ann Rogge Linda Hansen 

Joann Hydeman Herb Hoppenstedt Kelly Delfs Jennifer Walker 

Lauriane Ely Ronald Nolby David Novak Darrell Ritzema 

Erna Thomley Marilyn Troop Kathy Rootham Nancy Rose-Balamut 

Linda Slinde Michael Morehouse Kathryn Elliott Norm Kelzenberg 

Mary Kay Piltz Barbara Godboe-

Bisschoff 

  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Administrator-Clerk/Treasurer is hereby 

authorized to appoint additional election judges to fill any vacancies that may arise prior to or on 

Election Day.     

   

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by  

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:   

 

And the following voted against the same:  None. 

 

 

Whereupon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted this 5th day of July 2022. 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Robert Nelson, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: _________________________________ 

                 Daniel Buchholtz, City Administrator 

 

 





Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
733 Marquette Avenue, Suite 1000 
Minneapolis, MN  55402 
Tel:  (612) 712-2000 
 

 

   

 

 
June 2, 2022 
 
 
Mr. Daniel Buchholtz, Administrator  
City of Spring Lake Park 
1301 81st Avenue NE 
Spring Lake Park, MN  55432  
 
Re: 2022 Street Improvements Project   

Project No. 193805383 
Contractor’s Request for Payment No. 2     

 
 
Dear Dan: 
 
Attached for city approval is Contractor’s Request for Payment No. 2 for the 2022 Street 
Improvements Project.  The prime Contractor on this project is Northwest Asphalt, Inc.  A 
comparison of the current construction cost and the bid amounts for this contract are:  
   Bid Amount  Current Construction  
Streets   $371,659.50   $311,322.57 
Able sidewalk  $ 17,172,.31   $ 18,807.60 
81st Avenue sidewalk $ 75,889.71      $ 72,339.72 
 
This contractor’s payment request includes payment for final wear paving and restoration work.  A 
final payment request will be processed later this summer after the contractor has submitted 
project close-out documents and remaining punch-list items have been addressed.             
 
We have reviewed the contractor’s payment request and found it to be in order.  We recommend 
approval.  If the City wishes to approve this request, then payment should be made to 
Northwest Asphalt, Inc. in the amount of $140,006.68.       
 
Please execute the payment request documents. Keep one copy for your records, forward a copy 
to Northwest Asphalt, and return one copy to me.   
 
Feel free to contact me if you have any questions. 
 
Regards, 
STANTEC 

 
 

Phil Gravel 
City Engineer 
 
Enclosure 
 
cc:   Lance Guentzel, Northwest Asphalt    

Terry Randall, Public Works Director 





Contract Unit Current Quantity Amount
No. Item Unit Quantity Price Quantity to Date to Date

BASE BID
1 MOBILIZATION LS 1 10962.00 1 $10,962.00
2 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 3270.00 1 $3,270.00
3 EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL LS 1 4885.00 0.2 1 $4,885.00
4 BULKHEAD SEWER PIPE (STORM) EACH 2 250.00 2 $500.00
5 RECONSTRUCT INVERT & DOG HOUSES (STORM-

EXCBMH6) EACH 1 800.00 $0.00
6 REMOVE STRUCTURE (STORM EXCBMH3) EACH 1 500.00 1 $500.00
7 REMOVE CB CASTING (STORM) EACH 7 50.00 7 $350.00
8 SALVAGE MH CASTING (STORM) EACH 1 50.00 1 $50.00
9 SALVAGE MH CASTING (SANITARY) EACH 24 50.00 24 $1,200.00
10 REMOVE CURB AND GUTTER LIN FT 650 8.12 (162) 188 $1,526.56
11 SAWCUT BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT LIN FT 160 3.00 47 147 $441.00
12 FULL DEPTH RECLAIMATION (FDR) (P) SQ FT 104000 0.08 93600 104000 $8,320.00
13 HAUL EXCESS RECLAIM MATERIAL TO CITY SITE CY 100 5.95 100 $595.00
14 HAUL AND DISPOSE EXCESS MATERIAL LS 1 15055.00 1 $15,055.00
15 SUBGRADE PREPARATION LS 1 16950.00 1 $16,950.00
16 ADJUST EXISTING VALVE BOX EACH 5 634.00 5 5 $3,170.00
17 ADJUST EXISTING MH FRAME AND CASTING (STORM) EACH 1 774.00 1 1 $774.00
18 ADJUST EXISTING MH FRAME AND CASTING (SAN) EACH 24 774.00 24 24 $18,576.00
19 ADJUST EXIST CB WITH NEW FRAME AND CASTING EACH 6 923.00 5 5 $4,615.00
20 SUBGRADE EXCAVATION (EV) CU YD 200 29.28 $0.00
21 SELECT GRANULAR BORROW (CV) CU YD 200 0.01 $0.00
22 LOAM TOPSOIL BORROW (LV) CU YD 48 60.00 20 20 $1,200.00
23 TYPE SP 9.5 WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3,B) - STREET TON 1050 78.51 1054.7 1054.7 $82,804.49
24 TYPE SP 12.5 NON WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3,B) - 

STREET TON 1750 73.55 64.8 1464.8 $107,736.04
25 PREPARE SURFACE FOR WEAR PAVING LS 1 1175.00 1 1 $1,175.00
26 TACK COAT GAL 725 2.00 435 435 $870.00
27 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER LIN FT 650 38.71 (162) 188 $7,277.48
28 18" RC PIPE SEWER DESIGN 3006 CLASS V LIN FT 57 72.00 57 $4,104.00
29 2-INCH THICK POLYSTYRENE INSULATION SQ FT 120 3.50 120 $420.00
30 CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE STRUCTURE DESIGN 48-4020 EACH 2 3200.00 2 $6,400.00
31 CONNECT TO EXISTING STORM SEWER PIPE EACH 3 1000.00 3 $3,000.00
32 CONNECT TO EXIST STORM STRUCTURE (CORE DRILL) EACH 1 1500.00 1 $1,500.00
33 4" PVC PERFORATED DRAINTILE W/ SOCK LIN FT 57 28.00 57 $1,596.00
34 SOD (YARD TYPE) SQ YD 650 15.00 100 100 $1,500.00

TOTAL BASE BID $311,322.57

ALTERNATE BID A - ABLE ST. SIDEWALK
35 MOBILIZATION LS 1 347.00 1 $347.00
36 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 600.00 1 $600.00
37 EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL LS 1 971.00 0.2 1 $971.00
38 EXCAVATION AND GRADING  LS 1 795.00 1 $795.00
39 REMOVE CURB AND GUTTER LIN FT 60 7.96 6 66 $525.36
40 REMOVE CONCRETE SF 300 2.10 22 322 $676.20
41 SAWCUT BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT LIN FT 72 3.00 37 109 $327.00
42 AGGREGATE BASE (CV)) CLASS 5 (WALK) CU YD 7 24.53 6 $147.18
43 4" CONCRETE WALK SQ FT 180 7.15 24 204 $1,458.60
44 6" CONCRETE PAVEMENT OR WALK SQ FT 195 12.92 (70) 120 $1,550.40
45 TRUNCATED DOMES SQ FT 40 88.00 5 35 $3,080.00
46 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER LIN FT 60 28.71 6 66 $1,894.86
47 BITUMINOUS PATCHING (6-inch Bit. and 8-inch CL5) LS 1 2435.00 0.5 1 $2,435.00
48 SOD (YARD TYPE) SY 37 40.00 100 100 $4,000.00

TOTAL ALTERNATE BID A - ABLE ST. SIDEWALK $18,807.60

ALTERNATE BID B - 81ST AVE. SIDEWALK
49 MOBILIZATION LS 1 389.00 1 $389.00
50 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 2000.00 1 $2,000.00
51 EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL LS 1 4150.00 0.2 1 $4,150.00

 193805383REQ2^2022-06-22.xlsm



Contract Unit Current Quantity Amount
No. Item Unit Quantity Price Quantity to Date to Date
52 EXCAVATION AND GRADING  LS 1 11309.00 1 $11,309.00
53 REMOVE CURB AND GUTTER LIN FT 60 10.33 60 $619.80
54 REMOVE CONCRETE SF 120 3.79 120 $454.80
55 SAWCUT BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT LIN FT 70 3.00 112 119 $357.00
56 ADJUST EXISTING MH FRAME AND CASTING (SAN) EACH 3 630.00 2 2 $1,260.00
57 AGGREGATE BASE (CV)) CLASS 5 (WALK) CU YD 65 77.77 37 87 $6,765.99
58 4" CONCRETE WALK SQ FT 4290 5.83 4000 $23,320.00
59 6" CONCRETE PAVEMENT OR WALK SQ FT 108 13.47 91 199 $2,680.53
60 TRUNCATED DOMES SQ FT 16 88.00 $0.00
61 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER LIN FT 60 28.71 60 $1,722.60
62 BITUMINOUS PATCHING (4-inch Bit. and 6-inch CL5) LS 1 2431.00 1 $2,431.00
63 LOAM TOPSOIL BORROW (LV) CU YD 36 60.00 48 48 $2,880.00
64 SOD (YARD TYPE) SY 625 25.00 480 480 $12,000.00

TOTAL ALTERNATE BID B - 81ST AVE. SIDEWALK $72,339.72

TOTAL BASE BID $311,322.57
TOTAL ALTERNATE BID A - ABLE ST. SIDEWALK $18,807.60
TOTAL ALTERNATE BID B - 81ST AVE. SIDEWALK $72,339.72
WORK COMPLETED TO DATE: $402,469.89

 193805383REQ2^2022-06-22.xlsm



PROJECT PAYMENT STATUS
OWNER

CONTRACTOR

CHANGE ORDERS
No. Date Description Amount

Total Change Orders 

PAYMENT SUMMARY
No. From To Payment Retainage Completed

1 05/01/2022 05/27/2022
2 05/28/2022 06/22/2022

Material on Hand

Total Payment to Date Original Contract $464,757.52
Retainage Pay No. 2 Change Orders
Total Amount Earned Revised Contract $464,757.52

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

NORTHWEST ASPHALT
STANTEC PROJECT NO. 193805383

$402,469.89

402,469.89140,006.68 20,123.49
242,339.72 12,754.72 255,094.44

$382,346.40
20,123.49

 193805383REQ2^2022-06-22.xlsm



 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Nelson and Members of the City Council 
From:  Terry Randall, Public Works Director 
Date:  June 29, 2022 
Subject: June 2022 Public Works Report 
 
During the month of June, the Public Works Department was busy doing the following activities:  

 Preparation for Tower Days Parade & Activates at Lakeside Lions Park 

 Mow grass, pick garbage and recycling up  

 Continue to drag ballfields 

 Aerated and fertilized the parks 

 Installed new sprinkler lines at City Hall 

 Painting crosswalks and stop bars west of Hwy 65, and not on 81st Avenue until the sealcoat 
project has been swept 

 Mowed approximately 8 yards that were not maintained by the homeowner 

 Did inspections on the Garfield/Hayes Project, and inspected all manholes, gate valves and 
storm sewers 

 Unloaded the new shelter for Terrace Park, and the contractor is in process of installing the 
shelter 

 
 
June Appointments: 

 June 7 – Attended staff meeting 

 June 13 – Read Water Meters 
 



City of Spring Lake Park 
Code Enforcement Division 
1301 Eighty First Avenue Northeast 

Spring Lake Park, Minnesota 55432 

(763) 783-6491   Fax:  (763) 792-7257 

 
 

REPORT 
 

 

TO:  Spring Lake Park City Council 
 

FROM: Jeff Baker, Code Enforcement Director 
 

RE:  Code Enforcement Monthly Report for June 2022 
 

DATE: June 30, 2022 

 

 

Inspections for June 2022, had a total of 24 building, 1 Fire, 10 Zoning, 15 mechanical, 5 

plumbing and 0 Certificate of Occupancy for a total of 55 permits issued compared to a total of 

51 in 2021.  Code Enforcement conducted 409 inspections in the month of June including 61 

building, 49 housing, 19 fire, 9 zoning and 280 nuisance inspections.   

   

Nuisance inspections - There were 122 initial long grass inspections, which required 122 long 

grass re-inspections. Out of the 122, 14 properties did not comply. The Public Works department 

cut 8 properties, the remaining 8 had cut their lawn prior to Public Works getting there. 36 

nuisance violations were of other variety. 

 

Construction Update: 

525 Osborne Rd – Suite Living, Curb and gutter has been poured, framing, poly and sheetrock 

have been installed. 

 

8457 Sunset Rd – City Moving and Storage, Land has been cleared and they will be breaking 

ground shortly. 

 

In June of 2022, I did not post any abandoned properties. 8 administrative offense tickets were 

issued.  

 

In June of 2022, I also attended the following appointments: 
 

 City Council meetings on June 6th and 20th. 

 Department Head meeting on June 8th. 

 Council Workshop June 13th. 

 Planning Commission Meeting June 27th. 

 2023 Budget Meeting June 30th. 

 

 

This concludes the Code Enforcement Department monthly report for June 2022.   

 



Page 1

SPRING LAKE PARK
ORDINANCE 482

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 16 OF THE CITY CODE TO
ESTABLISH INTERIM USE PERMITS AND AMENDING SECTION 16.64.040 OF

THE CITY CODE

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Council of the Spring Lake Park, in the
State of Minnesota, as follows:

SECTION 1: ADOPTION “16.58 INTERIM USE PERMITS” of the Spring
Lake Park Municipal Code is hereby added as follows:

A D O P T I O N

16.58 INTERIM USE PERMITS(Added)

SECTION 2: ADOPTION “16.58.010 Purpose” of the Spring Lake Park
Municipal Code is hereby added as follows:

A D O P T I O N

16.58.010 Purpose(Added)

The purpose and intent of allowing interim uses is:

A. To allow a use for a brief period of time until a permanent location is obtained or while
the permanent location is under construction.

B. To allow a use that is presently judged acceptable by the City Council, but that with
anticipated development or redevelopment, will not be acceptable in the future or will
be replaced in the future by a permitted or conditional use allowed within the
respective district.

C. To allow a use which is reflective of anticipated long range change to an area and
which is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan provided that said use maintains
harmony and compatibility with surrounding uses and is in keeping with the
architectural character and design standards of existing uses and development.

SECTION 3: ADOPTION “16.58.020 Application, Public Hearing, Notice
and Procedure” of the Spring Lake Park Municipal Code is hereby added as follows:



Page 2

A D O P T I O N

16.58.020 Application, Public Hearing, Notice and Procedure(Added)

The application, public hearing, public notice and procedure requirements for interim use
permits shall be the same as those for conditional use permits as provided in SLPC 10.56.030.

SECTION 4: ADOPTION “16.58.030 Standards” of the Spring Lake Park
Municipal Code is hereby added as follows:

A D O P T I O N

16.58.030 Standards(Added)

The Planning Commission shall recommend an interim use permit and the City Council shall
issue such interim use permits only if it finds that such use at the proposed location:

A. Meets the standards of a conditional use permit as set forth in SLPC 16.56.
B. Conforms to the zoning regulations, performance standards and other requirements.
C. Is allowed as an interim use in the zoning district.
D. Will terminate upon a date or event that can be identified with certainty.
E. Will not impose, by agreement, additional costs on the public if it is necessary for the

public to take the property in the future.
F. Will be subjected to, by agreement with the owner, any conditions that the City

Council has deemed appropriate for permission of the use, including, but not limited
to, a condition that the owner will provide an appropriate financial security to cover
the cost of removing the interim use and any interim structures upon the expiration of
the interim use permit.

SECTION 5: ADOPTION “16.58.040 Termination” of the Spring Lake Park
Municipal Code is hereby added as follows:

A D O P T I O N

16.58.040 Termination(Added)

An interim use permit shall terminate upon the occurrence of any of the following events;
whichever occurs first:

A. The date or triggering event stated in the permit; or
B. A violation of conditions under which the permit was issued; or
C. A change in the City's zoning regulations which renders the use nonconforming.



Page 3

SECTION 6: AMENDMENT “16.64.040 Appendix D: Schedule Of
Permitted Uses By District” of the Spring Lake Park Municipal Code is hereby amended as
follows:

A M E N D M E N T

16.64.040 Appendix D: Schedule Of Permitted Uses By District

A. Residential districts. The following uses are allowed in the various residential districts
either as permitted, accessory, or conditional uses, or interim uses.

Use Details
District

R-1 R-2 R-3

Boarding or rental of rooms
Note: family members, as
defined in this title, may enter
into rental agreements

C C C

Cemetery C C C

Churches, chapels, temples C C C

Dwellings Cluster developments - - C

Dwellings Medium density dwellings - P P

Dwellings Mobile homes - - C

Dwellings
Multiple-family dwellings
over six units per building

- C

Dwellings
Single-family detached
dwellings

P P P

Dwellings Two-family dwellings C P P

Essential public service and
utility structures or uses

 P P P

Fallout shelter  A A A

Family daycare
Within the residence of the
daycare provider

P P P

Living quarters of persons
employed on the premises

 - - A

Off-street parking lots or
garages

   A



Page 4

Parks and recreation Private owned or operated
areas

C C C

Parks and recreation
Private recreation facilities for
the enjoyment of residents
and guests only

A A A

Parks and recreation
Public owned or operated
areas

P P P

Private garage  C C C

Professional offices and
studios

 C C C

Schools Day schools or nurseries C C C

Schools Public or private C C C

Small wireless facility in
right-of-way, as regulated in
SLPC 12.48

 C P P

Swimming pool  A A A

Tool house, shed, and
similar storage

 A A A

Uses customarily incident to
the permitted, or conditional
or interim uses allowed in
the district

 A A A

Other public or semi- public
facilities

 C C C

Key: A = accessory uses; P = permitted uses; C = conditional uses; I = interim uses

B. Commercial districts.

Use
District

C-1 C-2 C-3

Accessory uses customarily incident to the permitted, or
conditional or interim uses allowed in the district

A A A

Adult daycare facilities C C C

Assembly uses, including auditoriums, religious and
philanthropic uses

C C -

Auto and marine; sales, leasing and rental (See SLPC



Page 5

11.20.040 Paragraph F,4 re: licensing and SLPC 16.36.010
Paragraph A)

- IC -

Auto and marine; service, parts, and repair, excluding wash
and wash

C C -

Boarding and lodging houses C - -

Boarding school C - -

Brewer taprooms and cocktail rooms P P -C

Bus stations or terminal P P P

Business, commercial, or trade schools P P P

Clinics, medical offices P P P

Commercial recreation such as bowling alleys, billiard
halls, miniature golf, and the like

C C -

Convalescent, assisted living and nursing homes - - C

Child daycare facilities (see SLPC 16.36.010 Paragraph D) C C C

Drive-in restaurants, or similar uses providing goods and
services to patrons in autos

C C -

Dry cleaning and laundry establishments with no more than
four employees for cleaning or pressing

P P -

Dry cleaning and laundry collection stations, and self-
service

P P -

Equipment rental - P -

Financial institutions P P C

Greenhouses, nurseries - P -

Hospitals - C -

Laboratories; medical, dental P P P

Medical equipment rental - P C

Mortuaries, funeral homes, monument sales C P -

Motels, hotels, or apartment hotels C C -

Non-alcoholic beverage bottling establishment not larger
than 3,000 square feet accompanied by a retail shop or
store not less than 50% of the size of the bottling
establishment, where bottled product is sold

P P C

Off-sale liquor stores P P -

Off-street parking and loading as regulated in SLPC



Page 6

16.40.010 A A A

Offices (administrative, executive, professional,
governmental, medical, research); without merchandising
services

P P P

Offices (as above); with merchandising services C P C

Pawnshops, secondhand goods stores (excluding motor
vehicles) as regulated SLPC 16.36.010 Paragraph G (see.
SLPC 11.16, Pawnshops or SLPC 11.20, Secondhand
Goods Dealers, for licensing

C C -

Personal services and repair establishments such as barber
and beauty shops, shoe repair, and the like

P P P

Pet and animal shops, clinics, taxidermists P P -

Plumbing and heating showrooms and shops - P -

Printing, publishing, and related distribution agencies C C -

Private clubs and lodges C C -

Restaurants, night clubs, and the like P P -

Retail shops and stores (excluding autos, boats, and the
like) such as apparel, appliances, beverage, book, carpet,
drugs, furniture, grocer, hardware, jewelry, paint, tobacco,
sporting goods

P P C

Schools and studios: artistic, music, photo, decorating,
dancing, health, and the like

C C -

Sexually oriented businesses as defined in SLPC 11.48 and
regulated in SLPC 16.36.010 Paragraph H

C - -

Signs as regulated by SLPC 16 A A A

Small wireless facility in right-of-way, as regulated in
SLPC 12.48

P P P

Theaters (indoor only) P P -

Vending machines for ice, milk, and the like P P -

Key: A= accessory uses; P = permitted uses; C = conditional uses; I = interim uses

C. Light industrial district. Conditional uses in this paragraph shall be governed by the
criteria enumerated in SLPC 16.56.030 Paragraph E, relating to conditional uses.
Interim uses in this paragraph shall be governed by criteria enumerated in SLPC
16.58, relating to interim uses.



Page 7

Uses in I-1 Category

Automobile repair C

Automobile sales (see SLPC 16.36.010 and SLPC 11.20.040
Paragraph F,4) I

Bottling establishments C

Brewing taprooms and cocktail rooms P

Building material sales and storage P

Camera and photographic supplies manufacturing P

Cartage, express, freight terminals C

Cartography and book binding P

Dry cleaning and laundry establishments P

Electrical service shops P

Engraving, printing, and publishing P

Governmental and public utility buildings and structures P

Jewelry manufacture P

Light manufacturing P

Medical, dental, and optical laboratories P

Off-street parking and loading as regulated by SLPC 16.40.010 A

Offices, office buildings P

Printing, publishing P

Retail and service establishments essential to the operation of an
I-1 district and providing goods and services primarily for the
use of persons employed in the district

C

Signs as regulated by this title A

Small wireless facility in right-of-way, as regulated in SLPC
12.48

P

Storage, warehousing, or wholesaling business P

Any manufacturing, production, processing, cleaning, storage,
servicing, repair, and testing of materials, goods, or products
similar to the permitted uses (P) listed above which conform
with the performance standards

C

All uses customarily incident to the permitted (P), or special (S)
A



Page 8

AYE NAY ABSENT ABSTAIN

Councilmember Wendling

Councilmember Delfs

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff

Councilmember Dircks

Mayor Nelson

conditional (C) or interim (I) uses above

Key: A= accessory uses; P = permitted uses; cC = conditional uses; I = interim uses

SECTION 7: EFFECTIVE DATE This Ordinance shall be in full force and
effect upon required approval and publication according to law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE SPRING LAKE PARK COUNCIL
_______________________________.

    

    

    

    

    

Presiding O fficer  Attest

Robert Nelson, Mayor, Spring Lake
Park

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator,
Clerk/Treasurer Spring Lake Park



 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Nelson and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  June 30, 2022 

Subject: Interim Use Permit ordinance 
 
The Planning Commission, after a duly noticed public hearing, has recommended the following 
amendments to the City Code relating to interim use permits. 
 
The proposed language creates authority for the City to issue interim use permits to allow a use for 
a brief period of time or until a specific triggering event occurs.  This is in contrast with the 
conditional use permit process which permit runs with the land. 
 
The use table was amended to allow automobile sales as an interim use in the I-1, Light Industrial, 
zoning district.  The Commission, in reviewing the ordinance, also recommends amending the use 
table to make automobile sales an interim use, rather than a conditional use, in the C-2, 
Neighborhood and Service Center Commercial, zoning district.  This follows the vision of the 
Planning Commission for the possible elimination of used car dealerships from the use table. 
 
The proposed ordinance excludes car washes from the use table.  This was pursuant to City 
Council direction at its June 13 work session with the Planning Commission. 
 
The proposed ordinance also removes brewer taprooms and cocktail rooms as a conditional use in 
the C-3, Office Commercial, zoning district in an effort to remove all assembly uses from that 
district. 
 
This fall, the Commission will begin work on a comprehensive review of the City’s use table.  
Once completed, that work will be presented to the City Council for review and possible approval 
at a future meeting. 
 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-35 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUMMARY PUBLICATION OF ORDINANCE 482, 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 16 OF THE CITY CODE TO ESTABLISH 

INTERIM USE PERMITS AND AMENDING SECTION 16.64.040 OF THE CITY CODE 

 

WHEREAS, as authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Section 412.191, subd. 4, the City 

Council has determined that publication of the title and summary of Ordinance 482 will clearly 

inform the public of the intent and effect of the Ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, a printed copy of the Ordinance is available for inspection during regular 

office hours in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park, Minnesota that the following summary of Ordinance No. 482 is approved for 

publication: 

 

“On July 5, 2022, the Spring Lake Park City Council approved Ordinance No. 482, entitled 

‘An Ordinance Amending Chapter 16 of the City Code to Establish Interim Use Permits 

and Amending Section 16.64.040 of the City Code.’ 

 

The following is a summary of Ordinance No. 482, a copy of which is available in its 

entirety for review during regular office hours at the City of Spring Lake Park, 1301 81st 

Avenue NE, Spring Lake Park, MN, or for review on the City’s website, www.slpmn.org. 

 

The Ordinance updates the City Code to permit the issuance of interim use permits, which 

would allow certain uses for a time or event certain.  The ordinance makes various updates 

to the zoning use table to incorporate the new interim use permit language.  The ordinance 

adds automobile sales as an interim use in the I-1 district and changes auto sales, leasing 

and rental to an interim use in the C-2 district.  The ordinance excludes car washes from 

the use table, removes brewer taprooms and cocktail rooms as a use in the C-3 district and 

makes several clarifying corrections to the use table. 

 

The Ordinance takes effect after its final passage by the City Council and publication in 

the City’s newspaper of record.” 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by  

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:  

 

And the following voted against the same:   

 

  

http://www.slpmn.org/


Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 5th day of July, 2022.  

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Robert Nelson, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator 

 



 
       

 
 

 

 

 

June 16, 2022 

 

 

TO:  NMTC OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 

 

RE:  APPROVAL OF 2023 NORTH METRO TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

COMMISSION BUDGET 

 

 

Enclosed, please find for the council’s review and approval the 2023 North Metro 

Telecommunications Commission Budget and support materials. 

 

The Commission’s operating budget for 2023 is proposed at $1,413,098.  This number represents 

a $59,589 increase over last year’s operating budget.  The increase includes an up to 2.75% 

COLA increase for staff, benefits increase, building maintenance costs, bandwidth costs, higher 

energy rates, and insurance costs.   

 

Budgeted capital costs for 2023 are $628,335. This number represents a $39,161 decrease from 

the 2022 budget. Capital expenditures include video equipment for North Metro TV, office 

equipment, parking lot repairs, $229,425 for the HD Bond payment, and $200,000 to be returned 

to cities for capital expenditures.   

 

In total, the 2023 budget is $20,248 higher than the 2022 budget.      

 

 

Recommendation:  That the Member Cities approve the 2023 Commission Budget as 

recommended by the Telecommunications Commission and the 

Operations Committee. 

 

The Joint Powers Agreement states, “submitted budgets shall be deemed approved 

by a Member City unless, prior to October 15 preceding the effective date of the 

proposed budget, the Member City gives notice in writing to the Commission that it is 

withdrawing from the Commission.” 

 

I want to thank the Commission directors, staff, and the Operations Committee for their efforts in 

preparing these budgets.  If you have any questions about either budget please consult with your 

Commission director or City Administrator.   

 

 

 

 

 
12520 Polk Street Northeast, Blaine, MN  55434   Phone:  (612) 780-8241  Fax:  (612) 780-8242 

Blaine  Centerville    Circle Pines     Ham Lake    Lexington    Lino Lakes   Spring Lake Park 

 



 

Page 2 

 

 

I look forward to working with all parties, throughout the remainder of 2021, toward reaching the 

full potential of North Metro TV and to increase both the quality and quantity of community 

programming and services in 2022. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
Dale Stoesz 

Chair, North Metro Telecommunications Commission 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Enc. 

 

 

 
 



2023 North Metro Telecommunications Commission 
Budget 

Talking Points 
 
 
 
 
Overall Organizational Goals 
 
 Implement Strategic Plan. 
 Franchise renewal. 
 Explore additional services for Cities. 
 Grow commercial productions.  
 Provide staff for meeting coverage.  
 Continue to be responsive to cities communications needs. 
 Maintain accessibility of all channels through live streaming, OTT channels, and 

video on demand services, 24-hours-a-day, on any device.  
 Provide program playback, video transport, channel management services, video 

equipment maintenance and consulting services, internet streaming services for 
city channels, VOD libraries for meetings, meeting management software licenses 
and bookmarking services, program production and event coverage services, 
home-media transfer services, and public access to television production for our 
cities, schools and general public.   

 
Estimated Fund Balance/Revenues/Expenses  
 
 The beginning fund balances for 2023 are estimates based on previous allocations, 

planned spending for 2022, and estimated income.   
 Estimated revenues include: Franchise fees, including the actual first quarter 

franchise fee payment, with anticipated reductions across quarters two through 
four.  PEG fees based on estimated number of subscribers, throughout 2023, 
multiplied by the PEG fee, or by a percentage in a new franchise document.  
Other income includes dub fees, home movie transfers, drone, streaming and 
production services.  Interest income is estimated based on the first quarter 
interest earnings of this year. 

 Estimated expenditures include the operating expenses and capital expenses 
including the bond payment, production and office equipment, and the fee 
payment to the cities.     

 The year end fund balances include:   
o The Operating reserve traditionally at 25% of the operating budget. 

Temporarily includes additional allocations for possible 2023 budgetary 
support. 

o Accrued vacation, sick and comp time.  The total value of owed 
vacation, sick, and comp time to employees.  

o The capital equipment fund is intended for emergency replacement of 
unplanned equipment failures.  



o The vehicle replacement fund is to cover the cost of a new fleet vehicle.     
o The building repair fund is to cover major costs related to the building 

such as windows, roof, furnace, parking lot, AC replacement and painting, 
carpet replacement etc.   

o The franchise renewal fund is a reserve fund for the NMTC's franchise 
renewal process.  Franchise renewal can be very expensive, with the 
informal negotiation process historically costing around $200,000 across 
the renewal period.  Moving to a formal negotiation process is more 
expensive.  These costs could include needs assessments, consulting, and 
legal fees.   
 

Budget 
 
 The recommended operating budget for the organization totals $1,413,098.  This 

number is a $59,589 increase over last year’s operating budget.  Increases were 
made to the personnel, payroll tax, benefits, administrative costs, and office 
expenses.  

 Budgeted capital purchases for 2023 are set at $628,335.  Budgeted capital items 
include a replay unit for the production truck, cameras, tripods, equipment 
contracts, closed captioning contracts, and microphones, The capital budget also 
includes routine computer/software upgrades, and software licenses, the HD Bond 
payment of $229,425 and $200,000 in capital equipment support for cities.  

 The overall capital budget is $39,161 lower than the 2022 capital budget.   
 The overall 2023 budget is $20,248 more than the 2022 budget 

 
Closing Points 
 
 We have worked together to create a thriving and dynamic service for our cities, 

schools, producers, and viewers.  Through program playback and channel 
management, internet streaming of city meetings including an agenda 
bookmarking tool, channel live streaming, Roku and AppleTV channels, video 
equipment consulting, drone services, and video production services, our cities 
are seeing real benefits from their investment of franchise fees and PEG  fees.  
Our cable subscribers are benefiting from this investment with educational 
opportunities, tape and film transfer services, and varied, informative and 
interesting programming regarding their communities.     

 NMTV will have a new Strategic Plan by the end of 2022. That plan will address 
many issues facing NMTV and will outline a path forward.   

 Franchise renewal should move forward, and will have an impact on future 
budgets and goals.    



North Metro Telecommunications Commission 
2023 Budget Line-Item Supporting Information 

 
 
 
Personnel 
 
• The personnel line-item is our largest and, usually, the only budget area that 

experiences any fluctuation from year to year.  As has been the recommended 
procedure for the past two years, an “up-to” COLA increase has been included in the 
budget, as a separate line-item, that could be revisited later in the year. Based on 
information provided by the Operations Committee, I have budgeted an up-to 2.75% 
COLA increase for 2023.  With this recommendation, the personnel total would 
increase by $22,657.  The amount also includes step increases for two employees.   

• Part-time staff is divided into two groups; freelancers and 20 hour-per-week staff.  
Employees in the freelancer group are contracted when needed for a sports shoot or 
to cover a city meeting and generally do not work enough to qualify for PERA.  The 
second part-time designation is for two 20 hours per week positions that do qualify 
for PERA.   Neither category is eligible for health benefits.  Payroll taxes apply.   

 
Benefits 
 
• The NMTC employee benefits package budget is based on the values of the benefits 

packages offered by the Member Cities to their employees.  It is budgeted at 
$1,255.00 per person/per month.  This is $30 more than was budgeted for 2022. This 
amount is less than the average of Member City package values for 2022/2023 
(average = $1,292)   

• The benefits/payroll tax portion of the budget increased by $7,595 over the 2022 
budget. 

• All indications are that the NMTC’s contribution to PERA will remain at 7.5% in 2023. 
 
Administrative Expenses 
 
• Budgeted administrative expenses are $2,500 more than 2021.  The audit, 

conference, and special meeting line-items were increased.  The additions will allow 
for anticipated audit cost increases, attendance at the local MACTA conference, and 
attendance at NATOA sponsored webinars.  

 
Production Expenses 
 
• Budgeted production expenses remain unchanged from 2022.   

 
Office Expenses 
 
• Office expenses are budgeted $26,000 more than the 2022 level. 
• The building maintenance line-item was increased by $15,000, to better reflect actual 

costs over the past two years, and with recognition that there will likely be 



unexpected problems with an aging building.  Building maintenance includes the 
furnace/AC maintenance contract, lawn care, snow removal, carpet and window 
cleaning, fire inspection, and landscaping and building mechanical services.  

• The building utilities line item was increased by $2,000, to cover probable higher 
fuel/energy costs.  Building utilities include sewer, water, gas, and electric.   

• Insurance includes all property, liability, crime, volunteer, vehicle, drone, and 
monument sign coverage. This amount was increased by $4,000. The Commission 
policy cost was increased fairly significantly in 2022, due to insurance costs in 
general.   

• Office supply line-item includes all office supplies, and maintenance contracts on 
printers and copiers.   

• The Telephone/Internet/Web Hosting line-item was increased by $4,000 over the 
2022 budget.  The increase will cover probable cost increases for bandwidth.  
Bandwidth is required to transport signals from city hall. NMTV continues to pay a 
fee to house video-on-demand and streaming content on a remote server. This 
allows for unlimited simultaneous viewing, without a reduction in speed, or an 
inordinate amount of bandwidth for that purpose.  The line-item also covers the 
wireless live transmission of sporting events and other field productions. The website 
maintenance contract, web hosting, telephone costs, license fees for our Roku and 
AppleTV apps, and the annual phone software upgrade are also included.  

• Postage covers the cost of mailing dubs and equipment for contract maintenance, 
and other postage for the NMTC. 

• Property tax is for the recycling assessment.  
• Building cleaning, trash, recycling, and hazardous material disposal/recycling was 

increased $1,000 to better reflect recent actual costs. 
   
     
Capital Expenditures 
 
• The 2023 capital budget currently includes $142,910 for production equipment, 

$28,000 for office systems, $229,425 for the HD bond payment, and $200,000 for 
city capital expenses.   

• The production equipment budget includes annual system contracts, including closed 
captioning, a re-play system for the truck, tripods, cameras and miscellaneous items 
such as microphones.  

• Office equipment includes routine computer and software upgrades, and software 
licenses for office and editing computers.  

• Fees back to Cities are included as a capital cost. Once the franchise is renewed 
with Comcast, PEG fees could be restricted to capital costs. In such a case, any 
PEG fees used for operating costs would result in lower franchise fees.  As such, 
PEG fees will be returned to cities for equipment upgrades and reserves.  

 
Summary 
 
• The 2023 Operating budget is $59,589 higher than the 2022 budget.  The increases 

are split between personnel/benefits ($30,252), administrative costs ($2,500) and 
office expenses ($26,000).  

• Capital equipment expenditures are budgeted at $142,910, which is $43,106 lower 
than the 2022 budget. 



• The 2023 HD bond payment is budgeted at $229,425.  The bond will be paid off in 
2024. 

• It is recommended that fees returned to cities be included in capital expenditures in 
order to maximize fee payments in the future. This budget includes $200,000 in fees 
for city capital expenditures and capital reserves.     

• The overall 2023 budget is $20,248 higher than the 2022 budget.    



 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES
Operating Reserve  $459,439
Accrued Vac, Sick, Comp $120,000
Capital Equip. Fund  $253,323
Vehicle Replacement Fund  $45,000
Bldg Repair Reserve  $200,000
Franchise Renewal Fund $200,000
Bond Reserve  $0

TOTAL: $1,277,762

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Franchise Fees $1,150,000
PEG Fees $650,000
Other Income $35,000
Interest Income $1,000
Income From Reserve Funds $205,433

TOTAL: $2,041,433

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES
Operating Expenses $1,413,098
Capital Expenses:  Equipment/Bldg $198,910
Capital Expenses: Bond Payment $229,425
Capital Expenses: PEG Fees to Cities $200,000

TOTAL: $2,041,433

YEAR END FUND BALANCES Increase(Decrease)
Operating Reserve  $353,275 -$106,164
Accrued Vac, Sick, Comp $120,000 $0
Capital Equip. Fund  $184,054 -$69,269
Truck Replacement Fund  $45,000 $0
Bldg Repair Reserve  $170,000 -$30,000
Franchise Renewal Fund $200,000 $0
Bond Reserve  $0 $0

TOTAL: $1,072,329 -$205,433

North Metro Telecommunications Commission
2023 FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Estimated Fund Balances/Revenues/Expenditures.



 

NOTES
Budget April Act.

PERSONNEL

Executive Director (1) FT 94,890 97,496 29,997 97,496 Heidi Arnson  
IT Engineer/ Administrative Asst. 70,970 72,919 22,438 72,919 Rose Valez
Video Engineer (1) FT 69,059 72,919 22,438 72,919 Matt Waldron
Sports Director (1) FT 63,794 65,554 20,173 65,554 Kenton Kipp
News Director (1) FT 63,794 65,554 20,173 65,554 Danika Peterson
Programming Coord.  (1) FT 58,302 59,909 18,432 59,909 Michele Silvester
Ed./Special Projects Coor. (1) FT 58,302 59,909 18,432 59,909 T.J. Tronson
Municipal Producer (1) FT 50,664 52,623 16,192 52,623 Trevor Scholl
Sports Producer (1) FT 47,809 52,623 12,348 52,623 Ted Leroux
News Producer (1) FT 47,074 52,623 15,418 53,960 Rusty Ray
Studio Manager (1) FT 58,302  59,909 18,432 59,909 Eric Houston
Freelancers/Sports/Meetings 75,469 76,521 29,619 76,521 Freelancers Sports/City Mtgs
20 Hour per Week Assistants (2) 16,040 35,331 4,736 35,331 News/City Mtgs/Sports
Contingency Up to 2.75% COLA 0 0 22,657  

PERSONNEL TOTAL: 774,469 823,890 248,828 847,884 Up to 2.75 % COLA increase 
2 staff w/ step increase

BENEFITS  

FICA 56,864 51,081 18,381 52,569 6.2% of gross wages
Medicare 11,946 12,294 1.45% of gross wages
PERA 52,942 61,792 16,537 63,591 7.50% of  FT gross wages 
Benefits Package 155,764 161,700 69,746 165,660 Health/Dental/STD, LTD, ADD
Workers Compensation 1,289 2,000 0 2,000
Electronic Filing Charges 1,428 2,000 548 2,000
Contingency COLA Tax Increase Dependent on any COLA increase

BENEFITS TOTAL: 268,287 290,519 105,212 298,114

*Benefits package = based on cities
$1,255 per employee/per month

$30  increase over 2022

$1,295 = 2022/2023 City average

2023
North Metro Telecommunications Commission Budget 

2022
BUDGET     

2023
BUDGET

2021
ACTUAL



 

NOTES
Budget April Act.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Audit:Commission 17,000 17,000 0 17,500 Annual audit of Commission finances
Audit:  Company 0 0
Conferences 0 50 1,000
Consultants 0 0
General/Special Meeting Expenses 258 1,000 230 2,000  
Government/Legislative Affairs 0 0
Legal Fees 27,525 50,000 4,185 50,000 Franchise renewal/FCC Issues 
Membership Dues 7,536 5,500 3,090 5,500 NATOA, MACTA, Arts Alliance,Cof C
Mileage Reimbursement 1,400 1,500 407 1,500
Personnel Recruitment 0 0
Tuition and Training 0 0
Contingency Expenses 0 0

ADMINISTRATIVE EX. TOTAL: 53,719 75,000 7,962 77,500  

PRODUCTION EXPENSES
Advertising/Marketing/Entry Fees 269 1,000 107 1,000 Printed materials, entry fees
Awards Ceremony/ Entry Fees 498 0 0
Bulbs/Batteries/Other Prod. Costs 2,428 4,000 406 4,000  Bulbs, Camera Batt. Duct tape
Interns 4,785 5,500 2,625 5,500 Stipends for internships 
Truck/Fleet Vehicle Gas/Oil 2,504 2,500 1,151 3,500 Prod. Van & fleet vehicles
Truck/Fleet Vehicle Maint/Lic. 3,622 6,000 1,171 6,000 Prod. Van & fleet vehicles
Video Equipment/Parts/Maint. 14 4,000 905 4,000 Parts and Maintenance for video equip.
DVDs/Flash Drives/Cases 4,498 7,500 980 6,000 Blank media for  masters/copies
 

PRODUCTION  EX. TOTAL: 18,618 30,500 7,345 30,000

OFFICE EXPENSES  
Building Maintenance 60,256 30,000 22,703 45,000   Bldg & Prop./Fire Insp./Furn. Contract  
Building Security 440 700 283 700  
Building Utilities 28,474 30,000 9,309 32,000 Sewer, Water, Gas & Electric  
Insurance 11,826 12,500 15,253 16,500 Liability/property/vehicle/volunteeer
Office Supp./Office Equip. Maint. 12,378 13,000 3,517 13,000 Copier & Fax maint. contracts, Supplies
Phone/Internt Service/Web Hosting 40,106 38,000 13,674 42,000 VOD, Live Streaming, web maint.,bandwidth
Postage/Shipping 49 1,000 92 500 equipment/dub/packet postage
Property Tax  1,363 1,400 1,363 1,400 Recycling assessment
Trash/Recycling/Janitorial 8,121 7,000 2,743 8,500  

OFFICE EXPENSES TOTAL: 163,013 133,600 68,937 159,600

OPERATIONS TOTAL: 1,115,093 1,353,509 438,284 1,413,098

2021
ACTUAL

2022 2023

2023
North Metro Telecommunications Commission Budget



 

NOTES
Budget April Act.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Video Equipment 100,089 186,016 19,715 142,910 Replay unit; cameras; tripods; mics
Computer/Office Equipment/Sftwre 20,084 28,000 4,588 28,000 office systems, software 
Vehicles  0 0 0
Building Expenditures 0 0 28,000 Parking lot repairs. Electronic signage
Bond Payment 227,430 228,480 0 229,425 HD Upgrade 
City Capital Expenditures 225,000 225,000 200,000 Equipment/Equipment Reserves

CAPITAL EXP. TOTAL: 347,603 667,496 249,303 628,335

GRAND TOTAL: 1,462,696 2,021,005 687,587 2,041,433

 

2023
North Metro Telecommunications Commission Budget

2021
ACTUAL

2022 2023



Page 1 of 2

ID No. Model No. Make Description Qty Cost Total
2023-1 CBL-PLATINUM-4 Tightrope 4 I/O Platinum Support through Tightrope. Loaner, Night Support, Upgrade Assistance 1 4000 4000
2023-2 CBL-PLATINUM-ADDL Tightrope Tightrope Additional I/O Annual Software Maintenance Contract for Large Systems 8 500 4000
2023-3 CBL-REFLECT-BND Tightrope Cablecast Reflect Live Stream Server Subscription - 4 2300 9200
2023-4 CBL-CAPTIONING-500 Tightrope 500 Hour Block of Captioning 1 3500 3500
2023-5 CBL-CABLECAST-REN Tightrope Subscription Fee to maintain 1 Cablecast OTT channel 2 300 600
2023-6 CBL-ENCO-SUPPORT Tightrope Annual Support Contract for ENCO enCaption server & software 1 6000 6000
2023-7 M-PREM-SUPP-1 Haivision Premium Maintenance & Support 1-Year -Renew in November- 1 6000 6000
2023-8 Ross Equipment Support Ross Ross Service Contract Quote 30330 - Studio Xpression, Studio Carbointes, Blackstorm, Truck Carb   1 22000 22000
2023-9 Imagine Equipment Support Imagine Communicat Imagine Contract for MC Router, Encoder "Good Through April 30" 1 7000 7000

62300

ID No. Model No. Make Description Qty Unit Price Total
2023-10 CBL-LIVE350 Tightrope Live Streaming Video Server (Extend into 2024 Budget) 0 3500 0

0

ID No. Model No. Make Description Qty Unit Price Total
2023-20 0

0

ID No. Model No. Make Description Qty Unit Price Total
2023-30 0

0

ID No. Model No. Make Description Qty Unit Price Total
2023-40 Vision 250 Vinten Vinten Vision 250 Carbon Fiber Tripod with Mid-Spreader 1 16000 16000
2023-41 Mira Ross New Replay System (Possible Ross Mira) 1 40000 40000
2023-42 Graphics PKG Ross Rocket Surgery Graphics Package 0 18000 0
2023-43 CV503 Marshall Marshall Electronics CV503 Mini HD Camera (3G/HD-SDI) 4 400 1600
2023-44 AllSports CG Daktronics Daktronics All Sports CG Scoreboard Tie-In Machine 1 5000 5000

62600

ID No. Model No. Make Description Qty Unit Price Total
2023-46 1 0

0

ID No. Model No. Make Description Qty Unit Price Total
2023-50 MM100PRO Wolverine Wolverine 8mm and Super 8mm Digitizer 1 500 500
2023-51 ZV427FX4 Funai Funai Combination VCR and DVD Recorder 1 750 750
2023-52 Assorted parts and supplies for home movie transfer service 1 400 400

1650

ID No. Model No. Make Description Qty Unit Price Total
2023-60 Camera Panasonic Panasonic Camera 0 5000 0

0

ID No. Model No. Make Description Qty Unit Price Total
2023-70 CX350 Panasonic Panasonic AG-CX350 4K Camcorder 0 4200 0
2023-71 AG-VBR59P Panasonic Panasonic 7.28V 43Wh Lithium-Ion Battery for DVX200 and CX10 (5900mAh) 0 200 0
2023-72 AG-BRD50P Panasonic Panasonic Battery Charger for AG-VBR & Other Batteries 1 300 300
2023-73 67UVP Tiffen Tiffen 67mm UV Protector Filter 3 20 60

News Department

Special Events

Production Truck

Sports Department

Public Access

North Metro TV 2023 Equipment Budget

Master Control Service & Subscriptions

Control Room/Studio A

Control Room/Studio B

Master Control Equipment



Page 2 of 2

2023-74 OCM-7B-4KV2 Elvid Elvid FieldVision 4KV2 7" On-Camera Monitor 3 200 600
2023-75 SDSDXDK-128G-ANCIN SanDisk SanDisk 128GB Extreme PRO UHS-II SDXC Memory Card 6 175 1050
2023-76 C-4203BKII Watson Watson NP-F975 Battery Kit with Compact AC/DC Charger 3 90 270
2023-77 CAR-AGCX350 Portabrace PortaBrace Ultra-Lightweight Carrying Case for Panasonic AG-CX350 3 190 570
2023-78 VZ-STEALTH-LX VariZoom VariZoom VZ-Stealth-LX Zoom Controller 3 150 450
2023-79 LED-7100T Genaray Genaray LED-7100T 312 LED Variable-Color On-Camera Light 1 180 180
2023-80 EW 112P G4-A1 Sennheiser EW 112P G4 Camera-Mount Wireless Omni Lavalier Microphone System (A1: 470 to 516 MHz) 1 750 750
2023-81 EW 112P G4-A Sennheiser EW 112P G4 Camera-Mount Wireless Omni Lavalier Microphone System (A: 516 to 558 MHz) 1 750 750
2023-82 ME2-II-V1 Sennheiser ME 2-II Omnidirectional Lavalier Microphone with Locking 3.5mm Connector (Black) 2 140 280
2023-83 MDR-7506 Sony Sony MDR-7506 Headphones 1 100 100

5360

ID No. Model No. Make Description Qty Unit Price Total
2023-90 Various Small Equipment Replacements 1 1000 1000

1000

ID No. Model No. Make Description Qty Unit Price Total
2023-100 0

5000

ID No. Model No. Make Total
2023-120 - - 0

5000

Grand Total 142910.00

Tech Shop Equipment

Description

Municipal Servies

Small Item Budget

Various Small Items

Cable Reels, Cable Ends, Small Tools, etc…..



NORTH METRO FRANCHISE FEE HISTORY

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Blaine 263,753.93$          279,208.95$          $319,025.00 $372,357.22 $419,605.63 $451,142.07 $489,867.99 $489,867.99 $507,790.06

Centerville 17,019.97$            17,335.34$            $20,586.00 $24,471.73 $27,709.99 $30,394.00 $33,396.69 $33,396.69 $34,466.27

Circle Pines 24,038.71$            26,111.31$            $32,761.00 $37,791.19 $42,127.90 $44,077.04 $48,214.82 $48,214.82 $51,160.77

Ham Lake 58,094.40$            61,562.41$            $72,454.00 $89,622.56 $101,055.23 $110,300.91 $120,788.01 $120,788.01 $126,979.69

Lexington 12,215.15$            12,467.38$            $13,358.00 $14,226.57 $15,843.48 $16,149.47 $17,332.08 $17,332.08 $17,229.92

Lino Lakes 78,388.13$            78,656.36$            $91,430.00 $108,733.61 $124,734.06 $138,088.24 $154,839.41 $154,839.41 $164,197.27

Spring Lake Park 41,874.85$            41,883.42$            $45,333.00 $48,737.21 $52,724.02 $55,191.43 $58,168.63 $58,168.63 $57,343.08

Total Franchise Fee: 495,385.14$          517,225.17$          $594,947.00 $695,940.09 $783,800.31 $845,343.16 $922,607.63 $930,414.06 $959,167.06

Change Over Past Year 17,758.43$            21,840.03$            $77,721.83 $100,993.09 $87,860.22 $61,542.85 $77,264.47 $7,806.43 $28,753.00

Budget/Other: 358,410.00$          420,319.00$          $474,719.00 $522,855.00 $583,800.31 $645,343.16 $722,607.63 $595,029.06 $620,851.06

Back to Cities: 136,975.14$          96,906.17$            $120,228.00 $173,085.09 $200,000.00 $200,000.00 $200,000.00 $335,385.00 $338,316.00

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Blaine $503,339.13 $533,294.81 $567,390.18 $585,645.69 $619,449.94 $686,830.44 $726,688.09 $697,516.93 $680,768.66

Centerville $32,296.67 $33,949.63 $35,408.93 $37,140.41 $38,397.37 $43,277.43 $46,134.63 $43,436.19 $42,197.35

Circle Pines $51,388.95 $52,777.06 $54,350.50 $54,304.86 $55,068.52 $58,815.23 $61,193.34 $56,271.77 $55,217.74

Ham Lake $131,446.66 $139,834.48 $147,412.39 $152,919.27 $160,540.12 $174,071.97 $181,449.70 $169,763.88 $167,088.15

Lexington $16,913.54 $17,630.79 $19,045.04 $19,361.48 $20,666.91 $21,905.05 $23,179.45 $20,441.94 $19,774.97

Lino Lakes $164,334.42 $170,600.73 $177,278.96 $182,147.16 $189,802.00 $202,824.99 $211,952.77 $203,309.05 $197,297.77

Spring Lake Park $58,600.64 $61,520.23 $63,916.34 $65,641.10 $66,231.13 $69,664.14 $73,309.11 $69,721.29 $67,700.33

Total Franchise Fee: $958,320.01 $1,009,607.73 $1,064,802.34 $1,097,159.97 $1,150,155.99 $1,257,389.25 $1,323,907.09 $1,260,461.05 $1,230,044.97

Change Over Past Year ($847.05) $51,287.72 $55,194.61 $32,357.63 $52,996.02 $107,233.26 $66,517.84 ($63,446.04) ($30,416.08)

Budget/Other: $673,600.01 $724,608.00 $744,802.00 $777,159.90 $830,156.00 $912,389.25 $923,907.09 $860,461.05 $830,044.97

Back to Cities: $284,720.00 $284,999.73 $320,000.34 $320,000.00 $320,000.00 $345,000.00 $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $400,000.00

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Blaine $669,907.73 $680,088.31

Centerville $41,136.00 $43,059.27

Circle Pines $52,439.76 $52,098.98

Ham Lake $165,044.25 $170,075.39

Lexington $20,769.44 $20,564.91

Lino Lakes $192,110.23 $197,883.40

Spring Lake Park $66,657.71 $68,339.65

Total Franchise Fee: $1,208,065.12 $1,232,109.91

Change Over Past Year ($21,979.85) $24,044.79

Budget/Other: $808,065.10 $1,007,110.00

Back to Cities: $400,000.00 $225,000.00



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
City of Spring Lake Park 
1301 - 81st Avenue NE 
Spring Lake Park, Minnesota 55432 

 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities,  the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of City of Spring Lake Park for the year ended December 
31, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated June 29, 2022. Professional standards 
require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated December 15, 2021, our responsibility, as 
described by professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the 
financial statements that have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented 
fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America and Government Auditing Standards. Our audit of the financial 
statements does not relieve you or management of its respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to 
obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal 
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered 
the internal control of City of Spring Lake Park solely for the purpose of determining our audit 
procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting 
process. However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other 
matters to communicate to you.  

We have provided our comments regarding significant control deficiencies over financial reporting 
and other matters noted during our audit in a separate letter to you dated June 29, 2022. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously 
communicated to you in the engagement letter dated December 15, 2021. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, and our firm, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence.  

 



 

 

City of Spring Lake Park 
Page 2 

Significant Risks Identified 

We have identified the following significant risks:  

 Limited segregation of duties, which requires special audit consideration due to the 
potential magnitude of misstatement. 

 Material audit adjustments, which requires special audit consideration due to the 
potential magnitude of misstatement. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices  

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary 
of the significant accounting policies adopted by City of Spring Lake Park is included in Note 1 to 
the financial statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no 
changes in significant accounting policies or their application during the year ended December 
31, 2021.  No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional 
standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual 
transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas 
for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on 
knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
markedly from management’s current judgments. 

The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were: 

 Depreciation of Capital Assets 

Management’s estimate of the useful life of purchased, constructed or contributed 
capital assets is based on the estimated productive life of these assets. We evaluated 
the key factors and assumptions used in the estimated useful lives assigned to capital 
assets and determined that these lives were reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

 Net Pension Liability and Net Pension Asset 

Management’s estimate of the net pension liability is actuarially determined. We have 
evaluated the estimates used in the study and determined they were reasonable in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Financial Statement Disclosures  

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.



 

 

City of Spring Lake Park 
Page 3 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance 
of the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements  

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known 
and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, 
and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected 
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our accounting 
services and audit procedures. All material misstatements that we identified as a result of our 
accounting services and audit procedures were brought to the attention of, and were corrected 
by, management.   

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, 
or auditing matter, which could be significant City of Spring Lake Park’s financial statements or 
the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the 
attached letter dated June 29, 2022. 

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no 
consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with City of Spring Lake Park we generally 
discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, operating conditions affecting the entity, and operating plans and strategies that may 
affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to 
our retention as City of Spring Lake Park’s auditors. 

 



 

 

City of Spring Lake Park 
Page 4 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to Schedule of City Contributions and Schedule of 
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability, which are required supplementary information (RSI) 
that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit 
the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the city council and management of 
City of Spring Lake Park and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Spring Lake Park 
 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of City of Spring Lake Park as of and for the year ended December 
31, 2021, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, we considered City of Spring 
Lake Park’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
City of Spring Lake Park’s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified a 
certain deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists 
when the likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as 
follows: 

 Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than 
remote but less than likely. 

 Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur.  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Spring Lake Park 
Page 2 

 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is 
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. We consider the following deficiency in the City’s internal control to be a 
significant deficiency: 

Material Audit Adjustments 

The City currently relies upon its independent accountants to assist with 
adjustments to and preparation of the City’s unaudited trial balance. Therefore, 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis by City personnel. Management should attempt to develop a 
financial accounting reporting staff and an accounting procedures manual to 
assist with ensuring that all information necessary to prepare an accurate 
unaudited trial balance is gathered in an organized and efficient manner. This 
will help ensure that any potential material misstatements are detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. 

None of the identified deficiencies in internal control listed above are considered to be material 
weaknesses. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council, and management of the City of Spring Lake Park, the Minnesota 
State Auditor’s Office and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

The purpose of this communication is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and the results of that testing. This communication is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of 
Spring Lake Park’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 
June 29, 2022 
 



 

 

 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

DECEMBER 31, 2021



 

 



 

 

PAGE
INTRODUCTORY SECTION

Elected and Appointed Officials i

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditor's Report 1
Management's Discussion and Analysis 4
Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position 15
Statement of Activities 16

Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 18
Reconciliation of Net Position in the Government-wide

Financial Statements and Fund Balances in the Fund
Basis Financial Statements 20

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 21

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities 23

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance - 
Budget and Actual - General Fund 24

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds 28
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Position - Proprietary Funds 30
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds 31

Notes to Financial Statements 33
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of City Contributions
General Employees Retirement Fund 79
Public Employees Police and Fire Fund Pension Plan 79

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
General Employees Retirement Fund 80
Public Employees Police and Fire Fund Pension Plan 80

Combining and Individual Nonmajor Fund Statements and Schedules
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 81
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 82
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 83
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 87
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Debt Service Funds 91
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Nonmajor Debt Service Funds 93
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 95
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 99

OTHER REPORT SECTION
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 103

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 105
Schedule of Findings and Responses 107
Corrective Action Plan 108

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2021
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



 

 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



 

 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 

DECEMBER 31, 2021 



 

 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



 

i 

POSITION NAME TERM EXPIRES

ELECTED OFFICIALS

City Council:

Mayor Robert Nelson December 31, 2022

Council Member Brad Delfs December 31, 2022
Council Member Lisa Dircks December 31, 2024
Council Member Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff December 31, 2024
Council Member Ken Wendling December 31, 2022

APPOINTED OFFICIALS

City Administrator, 
   Clerk-Treasurer Daniel R. Buchholtz Continuous

Accountant Melissa Barker Continuous

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS

December 31, 2021

 
          



 

 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally 



 

 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 

DECEMBER 31, 2021 



 

 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Spring Lake Park 
 
 

Opinions 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Spring Lake Park, as of and 
for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to financial statements, which collectively 
comprise City of Spring Lake Park’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Spring Lake Park as of December 31, 
2021, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and 
the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of City of Spring Lake Park and to 
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to 
our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
City of Spring Lake Park’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about City of Spring Lake Park’s 
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are 
issued. 
 
 



 

 
 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Spring Lake Park 
Page 2 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered 
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.  

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of City of Spring Lake Park’s internal control. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about City of Spring Lake Park’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 14 and the required supplementary 
information as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 

Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance.  



 

 
 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Spring Lake Park 
Page 3 
 
Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise City of Spring Lake Park’s basic financial statements. The introductory section 
and combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements listed in the table of contents are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare basic the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. The 
introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 29, 
2022 on our consideration of City of Spring Lake Park, internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering City of Spring Lake Park, internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 
June 29, 2022 



 

 
 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 

4 

As management of the City of Spring Lake Park, we offer readers of the City's financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Spring Lake Park for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative data for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2020.  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Spring Lake Park exceeded its 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 
$24,942,747 (net position). Of this amount, $9,141,203 (unrestricted net position) may be 
used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors in accordance with the 
City's fund designations and fiscal policies. 

 The City's total net position increased by $382,912. The increase is mainly attributed to grants 
and contributions not restricted to specific programs as well as operating grants and 
contributions in the City’s governmental activities.  

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Spring Lake Park’s governmental funds 
reported combined ending fund balances of $10,991,288, an increase of $498,217 from the 
prior year. 

 At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance for the general fund was $2,531,584, or 
58.6% of total general fund expenditures.   

 The City's total noncurrent liabilities decreased by $1,985,458 due primarily to scheduled 
debt payments, a refunded bond and a decrease in the City’s net pension liability due to 
investment performance. 

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Spring Lake 
Park’s basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements are comprised of the 
following three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, providing information for the 
City as a whole, 2) fund financial statements, providing detailed information for the City's significant 
funds, and 3) notes to the financial statements, providing additional information that is essential to 
understanding the government-wide and fund statements. This report also contains other 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.  
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed 
to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Spring Lake Park’s finances, in a manner 
similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Spring Lake Park’s assets 
and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Spring Lake 
Park is improving or deteriorating. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 

5 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues 
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Spring Lake 
Park that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental 
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs 
through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of the City of 
Spring Lake Park include general government, public safety, public works, recreation and parks and 
development. The business-type activities of the City of Spring Lake Park include the utility fund. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15-17 of this report.  
 
Fund financial statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of 
Spring Lake Park, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of 
Spring Lake Park can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike 
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s 
near-term financial requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The City of Spring Lake Park maintains forty individual governmental funds. Information is 
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, 
developer’s escrow fund, the revolving fund, renewal and replacement fund, and the 2021A G.O. 
improvement refunding bonds fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the 
other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data 
for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements or 
schedules elsewhere in this report. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 

6 

The City of Spring Lake Park adopts an annual budget for its general fund.  Budgetary comparison 
statements have been provided for this fund (pages 24-27) to demonstrate compliance with the 
budget. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-23 of this report. 

Proprietary funds.  The City of Spring Lake Park maintains one type of proprietary fund - 
enterprise funds.  Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-
type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City of Spring Lake Park uses 
enterprise funds to account for its utility operations.  

 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the utility funds, which are considered to be major funds of the City of Spring Lake 
Park. 
 
The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28-32 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements.   The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The 
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 33-78 of this report. 

 
Other Information.   The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major 
governmental funds can be found on pages 81-102 of this report. 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position. In the case of the City of Spring Lake Park, assets and deferred outflows of resources 
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $24,942,747 at the close of the most 
recent fiscal year. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 

7 

The largest portion of the City of Spring Lake Park’s net position, $13,084,150 (52%) reflects its 
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings and improvements, and machinery and 
equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City of 
Spring Lake Park uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Spring Lake Park's investment in 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay 
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used 
to liquidate these liabilities. 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Current and other assets 12,150,246$ 11,706,852$ 3,122,407$       3,693,372$       15,272,653$ 15,400,224$ 
Capital assets 9,809,696     10,877,085   5,985,643         5,898,938         15,795,339   16,776,023   

Total assets 21,959,942   22,583,937   9,108,050         9,592,310         31,067,992   32,176,247   

Deferred outflows of resources 1,676,111     686,019        107,642            15,692              1,783,753     701,711        

Long-term liabilities outstanding 3,882,422     5,576,503     656,627            948,004            4,539,049     6,524,507     
Other liabilities 720,834        330,203        58,844              348,208            779,678        678,411        

Total liabilities 4,603,256     5,906,706     715,471            1,296,212         5,318,727     7,202,918     

Deferred inflows of resources 2,434,059     1,076,530     156,212            38,675              2,590,271     1,115,205     

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 7,581,507     7,819,564     5,502,643         5,184,938         13,084,150   13,004,502   
Restricted 2,717,394     2,774,059                                                       2,717,394     2,774,059     
Unrestricted 6,299,837     5,693,097     2,841,366         3,088,177         9,141,203     8,781,274     

Total net position 16,598,738$ 16,286,720$ 8,344,009$       8,273,115$       24,942,747$ 24,559,835$ 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

City of Spring Lake Park's Net Position

 
An additional portion of the City of Spring Lake Park's net position at December 31, 2021 (11%) 
represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The 
remaining balance of unrestricted net position ($9,141,203) may be used to meet the government's 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Spring Lake Park is able to report positive balances 
in all categories of net position for the City as a whole.   



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 

8 

Governmental activities.  Governmental activities account for 67% of the City of Spring Lake 
Park's net position as of December 31, 2021. The total increase in net position for governmental 
activities was $312,018, accounting for 81% of the increase in the net position of the City of Spring 
Lake Park for the year ended December 31, 2021. The key elements for this increase were 
significant grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs and operating grants and 
contributions received by the City. 

 
Business-type activities.  Business-type activities increased the City of Spring Lake Park's net 
position by $70,894 due primarily to lease revenues recognized in the utility funds. 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for services 806,301$       959,293$       1,814,022$      1,685,631$      2,620,323$    2,644,924$    
Operating grants and contributions 426,024         753,632                                 426,024         753,632         
Capital grants and contributions 328,373         335,794                                 328,373         335,794         

General revenues:
Property taxes 3,862,067      3,898,537                              3,862,067      3,898,537      

Other 556,036         1,754,623      139,846           604,847           695,882         2,359,470      
  Total revenues 5,978,801      7,701,879      1,953,868        2,290,478        7,932,669      9,992,357      

Expenses:
General government 955,708         1,366,876      955,708         1,366,876      
Public safety 2,105,077      2,019,971      2,105,077      2,019,971      
Public works 1,146,161      1,300,004      1,146,161      1,300,004      
Recreation and parks 805,154         742,799         805,154         742,799         
Development and other 694,075         396,790         694,075         396,790         
Interest on long-term debt 49,024           85,973           49,024           85,973           
Utility 1,794,558        1,871,035        1,794,558      1,871,035      
   Total expenses 5,755,199      5,912,413      1,794,558        1,871,035        7,549,757      7,783,448      

Change in net position before transfers 223,602         1,789,466      159,310           419,443           382,912         2,208,909      

Transfers 88,416           87,292           (88,416)            (87,292)                                                        

Change in net position after transfers 312,018         1,876,758      70,894             332,151           382,912         2,208,909      

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 16,286,720    14,409,962    8,273,115        7,940,964        24,559,835    22,350,926    

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 16,598,738$  16,286,720$  8,344,009$      8,273,115$      24,942,747$  24,559,835$  

City of Spring Lake Park's Change in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 

9 

Below are specific graphs that provide comparisons of the governmental activities direct program 
revenues with their expenses for the year ended December 31, 2021. Any shortfalls in direct 
revenues are primarily supported by property tax levy or general state aid. 
 

$0

$250,000

$500,000

$750,000

$1,000,000

$1,250,000

$1,500,000

$1,750,000

$2,000,000

$2,250,000

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

 Program revenues

Expenses

 

Property taxes
65%

Charges for 
services

13%

Capital grants and 
contributions

6%

Operating grants 
and contributions

7%

Other
9%

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 

10 

The following graphs relate the business-type activity's program revenues with its expenses for the 
year ended December 31, 2021. Since this activity requires significant physical assets to operate, 
any excess revenues are held for planned capital expenditures to keep pace with growing demand 
for services. 

 
 

Charges for 
services

93%

Other
7%

Revenues by Source - Business-Type Activities



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 

11 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the City of Spring Lake Park uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds.  The focus of the City of Spring Lake Park’s governmental funds is to 
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such 
information is useful in assessing the City of Spring Lake Park’s financing requirements. In 
particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.   
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Spring Lake Park’s governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $10,991,288, an increase of $498,217 in comparison with the 
prior year. Approximately 77% of this total fund balance, or $8,480,776, constitutes assigned and 
unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion. The 
remainder of the fund balance, $2,510,512, is restricted and nonspendable to indicate that it is not 
available for new spending because it has already been restricted by creditors, grantors or 
regulations of other governments or has been expensed for prepaid items. 
 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of City of Spring Lake Park. At the end of the current 
year, fund balance of the general fund was $2,531,584. As a measure of liquidity, it may be useful 
to compare the fund balance to total fund expenditures. Fund balance represents 59% of total 
current year general fund expenditures. The general fund’s total fund balance decreased by $8,218 
during the current year due primarily to transfers to other funds. 
 
The developer’s escrow fund balance did not change during the year as there was no revenue or 
expenditures in the fund during 2021.  
 
The revolving fund increased its fund balance by $187,225 due primarily to intergovernmental 
revenues in excess of expenditures allocated to this fund. 
 
The renewal and replacement fund decreased its fund balance by $40,744 due to transfers to other 
funds and investment losses allocated to this fund. 
 
The 2021A G.O. improvement refunding bonds fund increased its fund balance by $756,142 due to 
transfers from other funds. 
 
The special revenue funds (other than the developer’s escrow fund described as a major fund 
previously) increased their overall fund balances by $133,288 due primarily to the sale of property. 
 
The debt service funds (other than the 2021A G.O. improvement refunding bonds fund as described 
as a major fund above) decreased their collective fund balance by $954,798 due primarily to 
transfers to other funds. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 

12 

The capital projects funds (other than the revolving fund and renewal and replacement fund 
described as major funds previously) increased their collective fund balance by $425,322 due 
primarily to sale of property and transfers allocated to the capital projects funds. 
 
Proprietary funds.  The City of Spring Lake Park's proprietary funds provide the same type of 
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Unrestricted net position for utility operations at the end of the year amounted to $2,841,366. The 
utility fund increased its net position by $70,894, for the year ended December 31, 2021. Other 
factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the 
City of Spring Lake Park's business-type activities. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The City's General Fund budget was amended during the year. The original and revised budgets 
called for a $49,437 overall increase in General Fund balance. The actual net change to the 
General Fund balance was a decrease of $8,218. Revenues exceeded budget by $65,075 for the 
year ended December 31, 2021 due primarily to increased permits, charges for services and 
insurance dividends received over expectations. Total expenditures were less than budget by 
$77,546 for the year. One department had expenditures in excess of budget: other expenditures 
exceeded budget by $118,980. These over expenditures were primarily related to severance and 
related payments to retirees for which the City did not budget. Net transfers to other funds 
exceeded budget by $200,276 due to excess funds available to be transferred. 
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets.   The City of Spring Lake Park’s investment in capital assets for its governmental 
and business-type activities as of December 31, 2021, amounted to $15,795,339 (net of 
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in 
progress, land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment and 
infrastructure. Total capital assets decreased by $980,684, or approximately 6%, for the year ended 
December 31, 2021, due to current year depreciation expense in excess of asset additions (net of 
construction in progress recorded in prior periods).  

 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Land 334,950$           604,950$           $                   $                   334,950$           604,950$           

Construction in progress                         777,040             21,309               489,541             21,309               1,266,581          

Buildings and improvements 1,006,773          1,116,608          1,797,324          2,018,905          2,804,097          3,135,513          

Machinery and equipment 767,447             1,038,885          87,166               121,459             854,613             1,160,344          

Infrastructure 7,700,526          7,339,602          4,079,844          3,269,033          11,780,370        10,608,635        

Total 9,809,696$        10,877,085$      5,985,643$        5,898,938$        15,795,339$       16,776,023$       

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

City of Spring Lake Park's Capital Assets

(net of depreciation)



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 

13 

Additional information on the City of Spring Lake Park’s capital assets can be found in Note 3C 
beginning on page 52 of this report. 
 
Long-term debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Spring Lake Park had $2,675,679 
in bonds, certificates, and notes payable outstanding. The entire amount outstanding comprises 
debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government. 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

General obligation bonds

and notes payable 1,533,053$        1,986,799$        483,000$           714,000$           2,016,053$        2,700,799$        

General obligation certificates 659,626             1,057,901                                                    659,626             1,057,901          

Total 2,192,679$        3,044,700$        483,000$           714,000$           2,675,679$        3,758,700$        

City of Spring Lake Park's Outstanding Debt

General Obligation Bonds, Certificates and Notes Payable

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

 
 
The City of Spring Lake Park's total bonds, certificates and notes payable decreased by $1,083,021 
during the current fiscal year. The decrease was due to scheduled debt payments and a refunded 
bond. 
 
The City of Spring Lake Park maintains an AA bond rating from S&P for general obligation debt. 
 
State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a Minnesota City may issue up to 3% of its 
market value of taxable property. Net debt is payable solely from ad valorem taxes. The City is 
currently well within this limit. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 
 
The City is in the process of developing its 2023 budget. A combination of a tight labor market, 
higher prices, and increasing interest rates will make forecasting revenues and expenditures 
difficult. The State of Minnesota's strong financial position means that the State-Local fiscal 
partnership will likely continue into the next biennium. 
 
The City's debt position is extremely positive. Two long term bond issues (2003 G.O. Water 
Revenue Note and the 2013B G.O. Capital Improvement Plan Bond) will be paid off in 2023, freeing 
up resources for capital improvement projects throughout the City. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 

14 

Major activities contemplated in future years include: 
 

 Slip-lining project for sanitary sewer in an effort to renew the City's sanitary sewer system 
 Seal coat project to maintain the City's investment in its street infrastructure 
 Renovate the park building at Able Park 
 Continue design on a renovation of the City Hall/Community Center facility 

 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Spring Lake Park’s 
finances for all those with an interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to City 
of Spring Lake Park, 1301 - 81st Avenue NE, Spring Lake Park, Minnesota 55432. 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally 



 
 

 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

December 31, 2021



 
 

 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

15 

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and investments 11,471,566$   2,792,001$     14,263,567$   
Receivables 476,782 332,677 809,459          
Intergovernmental receivables 199,083 199,083          
Internal balances 2,271              (2,271)                                    
Prepaid items and other 544                                        544                 
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 334,950          21,309            356,259          
Depreciable, net 9,474,746       5,964,334 15,439,080     

Total Assets 21,959,942     9,108,050       31,067,992     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows from pension activity 1,676,111       107,642          1,783,753       

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 69,157            41,456            110,613          
Accrued payroll and related taxes 29,511            4,881              34,392            
Accrued interest 10,180            4,539              14,719            
Unearned revenue 385,009          3,000              388,009          
Deposits and other liabilities 226,977          4,968              231,945          
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 1,068,275       266,160          1,334,435       
Due in more than one year 1,471,513       265,345 1,736,858       
Net pension liability 1,342,634       125,122 1,467,756       

Total Liabilities 4,603,256       715,471          5,318,727       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows from pension activity 2,434,059       156,212 2,590,271       
  

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 7,581,507       5,502,643       13,084,150     
Restricted 2,717,394       2,717,394       
Unrestricted 6,299,837       2,841,366       9,141,203       

Total Net Position 16,598,738$   8,344,009$     24,942,747$   

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2021



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

16 

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and 

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

Governmental activities:

General government 955,708$       353,624$      35,549$        7,686$          

Public safety 2,105,077      144,763        122,800                             

Public works 1,146,161      145,978        72,390          320,687        

Recreation and parks 805,154         142,060        126,471                             

Development and other 694,075         19,876          68,814                               

Interest on long-term debt 49,024                                

Total governmental activities 5,755,199      806,301        426,024        328,373        

Business-Type activities:
Utility 1,794,558      1,814,022                          

Total business-type activities 1,794,558      1,814,022                                               

Total 7,549,757$    2,620,323$   426,024$      328,373$      

General revenues:

   General property taxes

   Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs

   Lease revenue

   Investment (loss)

   Miscellaneous

Transfers

     Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net Position - beginning

Net Position - ending

Program Revenues

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021



 

     

17 

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

(558,849)$          (558,849)$          

(1,837,514)         (1,837,514)         

(607,106)            (607,106)            

(536,623)            (536,623)            

(605,385)            (605,385)            

(49,024)              (49,024)              

(4,194,501)         (4,194,501)         

19,464$             19,464               

                          19,464               19,464               

(4,194,501)         19,464               (4,175,037)         

3,862,067          3,862,067          

555,646             555,646             

75,057               152,772             227,829             

(84,035)              (23,716)              (107,751)            

9,368                 10,790               20,158               

88,416 (88,416)                                        

4,506,519          51,430               4,557,949          

312,018             70,894               382,912             

16,286,720 8,273,115 24,559,835        

16,598,738$      8,344,009$        24,942,747$      

Net (Expense) Revenue

and Changes in Net Position



 

 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



 

 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

December 31, 2021



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

18 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund

General Fund
Developer's 

Escrow
 Revolving 

Fund 
 Renewal and 
Replacement 

ASSETS
Cash and investments 2,868,702$   221,413$      1,385,361$   1,850,217$   
Accounts receivable 30,065                                                                         
Taxes receivable 112,998        
Special assessments receivable 2,862                                 3,521                                 
Due from other funds 4,641                                                                           
Due from other governmental units 66,446                               182                                    
Accrued interest receivable 20,961                                                                         
Prepaid expenditures 49                                                                                

TOTAL ASSETS 3,106,724$   221,413$      1,389,064$   1,850,217$   

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 52,396$        36$                $               $              
Accrued payroll and taxes 28,822                                                                         
Deposits and other liabilities                      221,377                                                  
Due to other funds                                                                                     
Unearned revenue 378,062        

Total Liabilities 459,280        221,413                                                  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue:

Property taxes 112,998        
Special assessments 2,862                                 3,521                                 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 115,860                             3,521                                 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Nonspendable 49                 
Restricted                      
Assigned 2,531,535     1,385,543     1,850,217     
Unassigned                      
   Total Fund Balance (Deficit) 2,531,584                          1,385,543     1,850,217     

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE 3,106,724$   221,413$      1,389,064$   1,850,217$   

Capital Project Funds

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2021



 

     

19 

Debt Service 
Fund

2021A G.O. 
Improvement 

Refunding 
Bonds

Other 
Governmental 

Funds Total

748,611$      4,397,262$   11,471,566$  
                     98,949          129,014         

112,998         
207,426        213,809         

                     2,271            6,912             
7,531            3,427            77,586           

                     20,961           
                     495               544                

963,568$      4,502,404$   12,033,390$  

 $              16,725$        69,157$         
                     689               29,511           
                     5,600            226,977         
                     4,641            4,641             

6,947            385,009         
                     34,602          715,295         

112,998         
207,426        213,809         
207,426                             326,807         

495               544                
756,142        1,753,826     2,509,968      

2,718,122     8,485,417      
(4,641)           (4,641)            

756,142        4,467,802     10,991,288    

963,568$      4,502,404$   12,033,390$  



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

20 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Total governmental fund balances (pages 18-19) 10,991,288$    

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Governmental funds - capital assets 28,162,958$      
Accumulated depreciation (18,353,262)       

9,809,696        

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are unavailable in the funds:

Delinquent property taxes 112,998$           
Special assessments 213,809             

326,807           

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Bonds payable (net of receivable for amounts
to be paid by other governmental entities) (2,071,182)$       

Net pension liability, deferred outflows and
inflows from pension activity (2,100,582)         

Compensated absences (311,599)            
Accrued interest (10,180)              
Net unamortized bond premiums (35,510)              

(4,529,053)       

Net position of governmental activities (page 15) 16,598,738$    

December 31, 2021

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
RECONCILIATION OF NET POSITION IN THE

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FUND BALANCES
IN THE FUND BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

21 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund

General Fund
Developer's 

Escrow
Revolving 

Fund
 Renewal and 
Replacement 

REVENUES
Property taxes 3,393,626$    $               $               $                
Special assessments                                           15,619                                 
Licenses and permits 181,082        
Intergovernmental revenues 654,724                             216,023                               
Charges for services 189,417        
Fines and forfeitures 56,044          
Investment (loss) (21,588)                                                   (14,478)           
Other revenues 97,859                                                    50                   

TOTAL REVENUES 4,551,164                          231,642        (14,428)           

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 777,565        
Public safety 2,343,431     
Public works 256,651                             44,417                                 
Recreation and parks 638,116        
Development and other 234,480                             

Capital Outlay
General government                                             
Public safety 68,684          
Public works                                           1,316              
Recreation and parks                      
Development and other

Debt Service
Principal                                                                  
Interest and other                                                                  

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,318,927                          44,417          1,316              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 232,237                             187,225        (15,744)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of debt
Payment on refunded bonds
Net premium on issuance of debt
Transfers from other funds 235,667                                                                         
Transfers to other funds (476,122)                                                 (25,000)           
Sale of capital assets

Total other financing sources (uses) (240,455)                                                 (25,000)           

Net change in fund balances (8,218)                                187,225        (40,744)           

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Beginning 2,539,802                          1,198,318     1,890,961       

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Ending 2,531,584$    $              1,385,543$   1,850,217$     

Capital Project Funds

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

22 

Debt Service 
Fund

2021A G.O. 
Improvement 

Refunding 
Bonds

Other 
Governmental 

Funds Total

81,971$        410,482$      3,886,079$     
72,246                               87,865            

                     181,082          
                     147,109        1,017,856       

389,050        578,467          
8,100            64,144            

                     (45,057)         (81,123)           
                     603,619        701,528          

154,217        1,513,303     6,435,898       

54,729          832,294          
14,808          2,358,239       

                     282,676        583,744          
127,337        765,453          
453,580        688,060          

24,176          24,176            
2,654            71,338            

29,152          30,468            
9,823            9,823              
9,599            9,599              

300,000        522,021        822,021          
42,951          38,158          81,109            

342,951        1,568,713     6,276,324       

(188,734)       (55,410)         159,574          

1,455,000 1,455,000       
(1,485,000)    (1,485,000)      

46,330 46,330            
928,546        424,371        1,588,584       

(999,046)       (1,500,168)      
233,897        233,897          

944,876        (340,778)       338,643          

756,142        (396,188)       498,217          

                     4,863,990     10,493,071     

756,142$      4,467,802$   10,991,288$   



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally 



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

23 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (pages 21-22) 498,217$           

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense:

Capital outlay 166,983$            
Depreciation expense (964,372)            

(797,389)            

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital
capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins and donations) is to decrease
net position (270,000)            

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds:

Unavailable revenue, end of year 326,807$            
Unavailable revenue, beginning of year (559,428)            

(232,621)            

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses - net pension
liability and compensated absences - are measured by the
amounts earned during the year. In the government funds, 
however, expenditures for these items are measured by
the amount of financial resources used (essentially, the 
amounts actually paid)

Net pension liability 409,519$            
Compensated absences 87,793                

497,312             

Bond, contract and loan proceeds provide current financial resources
to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position.  Repayment of long-term
debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net
position:

Principal retirement on long-term debt 2,307,021$         
Issuance of long-term debt (1,455,000)         
Shared debt principal payments received 

from other governments (218,365)            
Change in accrued interest, bond premiums,

bond discounts and deferred charges (17,157)              
616,499             

Change in net position of governmental activities (pages 16-17) 312,018$           

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

24 

Variance with
2021 Final Budget-
Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES

  General property taxes 3,366,932$  3,366,932$  3,393,626$  26,694$          

  Licenses and Permits
Licenses 50,062         50,062         54,439         4,377              
Permits 108,500       108,500       126,643       18,143            

Total Licenses and Permits 158,562       158,562       181,082       22,520            

  Intergovernmental
Police aids 103,000       103,000       108,676       5,676              
Other aids 546,048       546,048       546,048                              

Total Intergovernmental 649,048       649,048       654,724       5,676              

Charges for Services
General government 84,763         84,763         94,889         10,126            
Public safety 2,000           2,000           4,161           2,161              
Housing registration 72,000         72,000         90,367         18,367            

Total Charges for Services 158,763       158,763       189,417       30,654            

  Fines and forfeits 43,500         43,500         56,044         12,544            

  Investment earnings (loss) 15,000         15,000         (21,588)        (36,588)          

  Miscellaneous Revenue
Liaison officer 84,584         84,584         75,563         (9,021)            
Insurance dividends 3,500           3,500           18,579         15,079            
Reimbursements and other 6,200           6,200           3,717           (2,483)            

Total Miscellaneous Revenue 94,284         94,284         97,859         3,575              

TOTAL REVENUES 4,486,089    4,486,089    4,551,164    65,075            

EXPENDITURES
General Government

Mayor and Council
Personnel services 40,793         40,793         34,663         6,130              
Supplies and services 2,350           2,350           2,095           255                 
Other charges 27,597         27,597         18,475         9,122              

Total Mayor and Council 70,740$       70,740$       55,233$       15,507$          

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

25 

Variance with
2021 Final Budget-
Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Administration

Personnel services 400,412$     381,049$     346,294$     34,755$          
Supplies 7,906           7,906           8,482           (576)               
Contracted services 5,900           5,900           6,379           (479)               
Other services and charges 20,900         20,900         21,456         (556)               

Total Administration 435,118       415,755       382,611       33,144            

Election
Other services and charges                                         1,505           (1,505)            

Total Election 1,505           (1,505)            

Assessing
Contracted services 37,040         37,040         37,615         (575)               

Accounting and Auditing
Contracted services 11,300         11,300         11,425         (125)               

Information Technology
Contracted services 61,305         61,305         65,226         (3,921)            

Legal
Contracted services 122,500       122,500       103,123       19,377            

Engineering
Contracted services 7,500           7,500           2,717           4,783              

Planning and Zoning
Supplies and other charges 1,025           1,025           3,590           (2,565)            

Government Buildings
Personnel services 23,453         23,453         22,979         474                 
Supplies 20,250         20,250         21,420         (1,170)            
Contracted services 49,765         49,765         51,247         (1,482)            
Other charges 23,415         23,415         18,874         4,541              

Total Government Buildings 116,883       116,883       114,520       2,363              

Total General Government 863,411$     844,048$     777,565$     66,483$          

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

26 

Variance with
2021 Final Budget-
Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
Public Safety

Police Protection
Personnel services 1,764,988$  1,764,988$  1,758,170$  6,818$            
Supplies 45,782         45,782         35,911         9,871              
Contracted services 49,327         49,327         54,110         (4,783)            
Other charges 76,165         76,165         57,359         18,806            
Capital outlay 37,471         37,471         64,604         (27,133)          

Total Police Protection 1,973,733    1,973,733    1,970,154    3,579              

Fire Protection
Contracted services 246,252       246,252       246,252                              
Capital outlay 45,458         45,458         4,080           41,378            
Total Fire Protection 291,710       291,710       250,332       41,378            

Code Enforcement
Personnel services 175,903       197,516       184,702       12,814            
Supplies 4,600           4,600           2,289           2,311              
Contracted services 4,300           4,300           588              3,712              
Other charges 6,600           6,600           4,050           2,550              

Total Code Enforcement 191,403       213,016       191,629       21,387            

Total Public Safety 2,456,846    2,478,459    2,412,115    66,344            

Public Works
Street Maintenance

Personnel services 227,486       227,486       201,939       25,547            
Supplies 43,700         43,700         53,396         (9,696)            
Contracted services 1,410           1,410           216              1,194              
Other charges 1,020           1,020           1,100           (80)                 

Total Street Maintenance 273,616       273,616       256,651       16,965            

Total Public Works 273,616$     273,616$     256,651$     16,965$          

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

27 

Variance with
2021 Final Budget-
Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
Recreation and Parks

Recreation
Personnel services 311,909$     311,909$     287,996$     23,913$          
Supplies 14,582         14,582         16,512         (1,930)            
Contracted services 14,677         14,677         15,300         (623)               
Other charges 2,330           2,330           1,365           965                 

Total Recreation 343,498       343,498       321,173       22,325            

Parks and Forestry
Personnel services 271,107       268,857       257,670       11,187            
Supplies 47,850         47,850         42,759         5,091              
Contracted services 8,900           8,900           8,329           571                 
Other charges 15,745         15,745         8,185           7,560              

Total Parks and Forestry 343,602       341,352       316,943       24,409            

Total Recreation and Parks 687,100       684,850       638,116       46,734            

Other
Personnel services 9,900           9,900           711              9,189              
Other charges 100,000       100,000       76,463         23,537            
Permit surcharges 5,600           5,600                               5,600              
Severance payments                                         157,306       (157,306)        

Total Other 115,500       115,500       234,480       (118,980)        

Total Expenditures 4,396,473    4,396,473    4,318,927    77,546            

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures 89,616         89,616         232,237       142,621          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds 145,666       145,666       235,667       90,001            
Transfers to other funds (185,845)      (185,845)      (476,122)      (290,277)        

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (40,179)        (40,179)        (240,455)      (200,276)        

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 49,437         49,437         (8,218)          (57,655)          

FUND BALANCE, January 1 2,539,802    2,539,802    2,539,802                           

FUND BALANCE, December 31 2,589,239$  2,589,239$  2,531,584$  (57,655)$        

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

28 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
PROPRIETARY FUND

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2021

Utility Fund

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and investments 701,464$       
Accounts receivable 332,677
Due from other funds 3,088

Total Current Assets 1,037,229      

Noncurrent Assets
Property and Equipment

Construction in progress 21,309           
   Buildings and improvements 6,452,464      
   Infrastructure 6,641,960      
   Machinery and equipment 789,028         

Total Property and Equipment 13,904,761    

Less: Accumulated depreciation 7,919,118      

Net Property and Equipment 5,985,643      

Reserved Assets
Cash and investments 2,090,537      

Total Noncurrent Assets 8,076,180      

TOTAL ASSETS 9,113,409      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows from pension activity 107,642         



 

     

29 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
PROPRIETARY FUND

Statement of Net Position (Continued)
December 31, 2021

Utility Fund
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 41,456$         
Accrued payroll and taxes 4,881             
Accrued interest 4,539             
Unearned revenue 3,000             
Other accrued liabilities 4,968             
Due to other funds 5,359             
Current portion of compensated absences 28,160           
Current portion of note payable and capital lease 238,000         

Total Current Liabilities 330,363         

Long-term Liabilities
Compensated absences payable 20,345           
Net pension liability 125,122         
Note payable 245,000         

Total Long-term Liabilities 390,467         

Total Liabilities 720,830         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows from pension activity 156,212         

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 5,502,643      
Unrestricted 2,841,366      

   Total Net Position 8,344,009$    



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

30 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
PROPRIETARY FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Utility Fund

Operating Revenue
Charges for services 1,814,022$   

Operating Expenses
Personnel services 327,313        
Supplies 144,664        
Contracted services and other 194,986        
Treatment charges 580,123        
Depreciation 478,054        
Other charges 51,461          
   Total Operating Expenses 1,776,601     

Operating Income 37,421          

Other Revenue (Expense)
Lease revenue 152,772        
Commissions and other revenue 4,994            
Gain on sale of assets 5,796
Investment (loss) (23,716)         
Interest and other expense (17,957)         
   Total Other Revenue (Expense) 121,889        

Income Before Transfers 159,310        

Net transfers to other funds (88,416)         

Change in net position 70,894          

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,273,115

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 8,344,009$   



 

See Notes to Financial Statements     

31 

Utility Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers 1,992,705$     
Cash paid to suppliers (1,253,301)      
Cash paid to employees (367,230)         

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 372,174          

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Investment (loss) (23,716)           

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Net transfers to other funds (88,416)           

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 5,796              
Acquisition of capital assets (564,759)         
Principal paid on long-term debt (231,000)         
Interest paid on long-term debt (20,127)           

Net Cash (Used In) Capital and Related Financing Activities (810,090)         

Net (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (550,048)         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1 3,342,049

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31 2,792,001$     

Classified as:
Cash and investments - current assets 701,464$        
Cash and investments - reserved assets 2,090,537       

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31 2,792,001$     

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
PROPRIETARY FUND

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 



 

     

32 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED 
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income 37,421$          
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to

net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation 478,054          
Change in net pension liability (34,979)           
Lease and other revenues 157,766          
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable 21,146            
Due from other funds 331                 

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (282,067)         
Accrued payroll and taxes (5,127)             
Due to other funds (560)                
Estimated liability for compensated absences 189                 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 372,174$        

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
PROPRIETARY FUND

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally 



 

 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

December 31, 2021



 

 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

33 

                                                                                  
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
                                                                                        
 
The financial statements of the City of Spring Lake Park (the City) have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental 
units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more 
significant of the City's accounting principles are described below. 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
 

The City operates according to applicable laws and statutes under the council-
administrator plan (Statutory Plan A) as defined by Minnesota statutes. A Council 
composed of an elected mayor and four other elected members directs the government of 
the City. The Council exercises legislative authority and determines all matters of policy 
and is responsible for directing the activities of the City. The Council appoints the City 
Administrator and other personnel who are responsible for the proper administration of all 
affairs relating to the City.   
 
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the 
reporting entity include those of the City of Spring Lake Park (the primary government) and 
its component unit. A component unit is a legally separate entity for which the primary 
government is financially accountable, or for which the exclusion of the component unit 
would render the financial statements of the primary government misleading. The criteria 
used to determine if the primary government is financially accountable for a component 
unit include whether or not the primary government appoints the potential component 
unit's board, is able to impose its will on the potential unit, is in a relationship of financial 
benefit or burden with the potential component unit, or is fiscally depended upon by the 
potential component unit. The component unit described below is included in the City's 
reporting entity because of the significance of its operational or financial relationship with 
the City. 
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

34 

                                                                                  
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
                                                                                          
 
A. Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 

Related Organizations 
 
Spring Lake Park - Blaine - Mounds View Fire Department 

The City has joined with the cities of Blaine and Mounds View to cooperatively provide fire 
protection services to their residents. This is provided by the Spring Lake Park - Blaine - 
Mounds View Fire Department (the Fire Department), a private nonprofit Internal Revenue 
Code Section 501(c)(3) organization. The service territory is generally comprised of the 
cities of Spring Lake Park, Blaine and Mounds View.   
 
The three cities agreed upon several significant provisions in their agreement dated 
December 11, 1990: 
 

1. The Fire Department is governed by its own Board of Directors.  Directors are 
appointed by each city and from the Fire Department. 

2. Operation, maintenance and debt service costs are shared based upon a formula. 
One half of the formula is the relative assessed value of each city.  The other half 
is the three-year average of fire calls within each city. The City's share of the 
formula was 8.50% in 2021.  

3. The city of Blaine issued $8,050,000 G.O. Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 
2005A, on December 1, 2005 to construct a new fire station and training facility 
and acquire two additional fire trucks.  The City of Spring Lake Park has recorded 
its share of the debt related to this bond issuance. These bonds were refunded in 
2016 (see 4. below). 

4. In 2013, the city of Blaine issued crossover refunding bonds to refund (in 2016) the 
2005A G.O. Capital Improvement Bonds. The City of Spring Lake Park has 
recorded its share of the debt related to this bond issuance. 

5. In 2017, the City of Spring Lake Park issued $1,090,000 G.O. Equipment 
Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 2017A to purchase a new fire truck and 
additional fire vehicles and equipment. The City of Spring Lake Park has recorded 
the full amount of debt and an intergovernmental receivable for the share of debt 
related to Blaine and Mounds View. 

6. In 2018, the City of Blaine issued $1,145,000 G.O. Equipment Certificates of 
Indebtedness, Series 2018A, to purchase new fire vehicles and equipment. The 
City of Spring Lake Park has recorded their principal share of debt and capitalized 
their share of fire vehicles and equipment. 

7. Each city has a non-measurable equity interest in the property that is held by the 
fire department.  



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

35 

                                                                                  
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
                                                                                        
 
A. Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 

Related Organizations (Continued) 
 

 Spring Lake Park - Blaine - Mounds View Fire Department (Continued) 
 

The City's share of operating costs were $246,252, capital costs were $4,080 and debt 
service costs were $303,514 during 2021. The operating and capital costs were recorded 
as expenditures in the General Fund. The debt service costs were recorded as 
expenditures in the 2013A G.O. Capital Improvement Bond, 2017A G.O. Equipment 
Certificates and 2018A Blaine Fire debt service funds. 
 
Because the City is not financially accountable for the Fire Department (the Fire 
Department is able to fund itself independently of the City) it is excluded from the reporting 
entity of the City. 
 
A related entity, the Spring Lake Park Firemen's Relief Association (the Association), is a 
nonprofit organization organized to provide pension and other benefits to its members in 
accordance with Minnesota statutes. Because the City is not financially accountable for 
the Association (the Association is able to fund itself independently of the City) it is also 
excluded from the reporting entity of the City. The Fire Department and the Association 
issue financial reports which are available at City offices or at the Fire Department, 1710 
Highway 10, Spring Lake Park, Minnesota, 55432. 
 
North Metro Telecommunications Commission 

In 2016, the City joined with the cities of Blaine, Centerville, Circle Pines, Ham Lake, 
Lexington and Lino Lakes to cooperatively purchase telecommunications equipment to 
provide cable communication services to their residents. The City of Spring Lake Park has 
recorded its share of the debt related to the 2016A G.O. Improvement Note issued by the 
city of Circle Pines. The 2016A North Metro Telecommunications debt service fund 
received $13,100 in franchise fees that were used for debt service payments during the 
year ended December 31, 2021. 

 
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the activities of the City.  For the most 
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.   
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for support.  



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

36 

                                                                                      
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
                                                                                      
 
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that 
are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) 
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, 
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary 
funds. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund 
financial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes 
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  
 
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as 
under accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures 
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded when 
payment is due. 
 
 
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

37 

                                                                                      
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
                                                                                      
 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

(Continued) 
 

Property taxes, licenses and permits, and interest associated with the current fiscal 
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable 
due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue 
of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the City. 
 
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives 
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes 
place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the year in which the 
resources are measurable and become available. 

 
Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal 
value in return, include property taxes, grants and donations. On an accrual basis, 
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the year for which the tax is levied.  
Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, 
which specify the year in which the resources are required to be used or the year when 
use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the City must provide local 
resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the 
resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual 
basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it is 
recognized. 

 
Unearned revenue is recorded when assets are recognized before revenue recognition 
criteria have been satisfied. Grants received before eligibility requirements other than 
time requirements are met are recorded as unearned revenue. Grants received before 
time requirements are met are recorded as a deferred inflow of resources. 

 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all 
financial resources of the City, except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 
 
The developer’s escrow fund is an accumulation of resources and costs 
associated with development throughout the City. 
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

38 

                                                                                      
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
                                                                                      
 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

(Continued) 
 

The revolving fund was created to finance improvement projects. The fund is 
financed with the remaining funds left in capital project funds once the project is 
considered completed and special assessments. 
 
The renewal and replacement fund was created to finance capital improvement 
projects in the City. The fund was initially financed with the remaining funds left in 
the liquor fund upon closing of the fund.  
 
The 2021A G.O. improvement refunding bonds fund is an accumulation of 
resources (special assessments and property taxes) for the payments of principal 
and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds. 

 
The City reports the following major proprietary fund: 

 
The utility fund accounts for the operation of the City owned utility (water and 
sewer) system. 

 
As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-
lieu of taxes and other charges between the City's enterprise funds and various other 
functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and 
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants 
for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) 
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated 
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, 
general revenues include all taxes.  
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

39 

                                                                                      
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
                                                                                      
 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

(Continued) 
 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.  
The principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise funds are charges to customers 
for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales 
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues 
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity 
 

1. Cash and investments (including cash equivalents) 
 

Cash balances from all City funds, except certain designated funds, are pooled and 
invested to the extent available in various securities as authorized by Minnesota 
statutes. Earnings from the pooled investments are allocated to the respective funds 
on the basis of the average cash balance participation of each fund throughout the 
year. 
 
Investments are stated at fair value, based upon quoted market prices at the reporting 
date. Cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the basic financial statements 
includes amounts in demand deposits as well as all investments held by the City. 

 
2. Receivables and payables 
 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other 
funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" 
(i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances 
between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
    
 

40 

                                                                                      
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
                                                                                      
 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity (Continued) 
 

2. Receivables and payables (continued) 
 

Advances between funds, if any, are offset by a nonspendable fund balance account 
in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for 
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 
 
Property tax levies are set by the City Council in December of each year and are 
certified to the County for collection in the following year. In Minnesota, counties act as 
collection agents for all property taxes. The County spreads all levies over taxable 
property. Such taxes become a lien on January 1, of the following year, and are 
recorded as receivables by the City at that date. Revenues from property taxes are 
accrued and recognized in the year collectible, net of delinquencies. 

 
Real property taxes may be paid by taxpayers in two equal installments on May 15 
and October 15. Personal property taxes may be paid on February 28 and June 30.  
The County provides tax settlements to cities and other taxing districts normally during 
the months of January, July and December. 

 
Taxes which remain unpaid at December 31 are classified as delinquent taxes 
receivable. The net amount of delinquent taxes receivable are fully offset by deferred 
inflow of resources in the governmental funds of the fund financial statements because 
they are not known to be available to finance current expenditures. 
 
Assessments are levied at various times upon City Council resolution for property 
owner improvements made by the City. Assessment collections are deferred, generally 
over ten-year periods, with interest charges ranging from 3.5% to 5.5%. Revenue from 
these assessments is recognized when assessed in the government-wide financial 
statements and as the annual installments become collectible in the governmental 
funds of the fund financial statements. Annual installments not collected as of each 
December 31 are classified as delinquent assessments receivable.  The net amount of 
delinquent assessments receivable are fully offset by deferred inflow of resources in 
the governmental funds of the fund financial statements because they are not known 
to be available to finance current expenditures. 
 

 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
    
 

41 

                                                                                      
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
                                                                                      
 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity (Continued) 
 

3. Tax increment district 
 

Tax increment revenues received are recorded in the Debt Service Fund to service 
note principal and interest payments.  

 
4. Capital assets 

 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets 
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, 
individual cost of more than $3,000 and an estimated useful life greater than one year. 
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or 
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the 
date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.   
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is 
expensed as incurred. 
 
Property, plant and equipment are capitalized when acquired, and depreciation is 
provided using the straight-line method applied over the following estimated useful 
lives of the assets. 

 
 Useful Life 
 in Years 
Land Improvements 10 - 20 
Buildings and Improvements 15 - 40 
Infrastructure                                                25 - 35 
Distribution and Collection System 15 - 80 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 3 - 10 
 

The City reviews its property, plant and equipment for impairment whenever events 
indicate the decline in service utility of the capital asset is significant in magnitude and 
the event of change in circumstances is outside the normal cycle of the capital assets. 
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
    
 

42 

                                                                                      
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
                                                                                      
 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity (Continued) 

 
5. Compensated absences benefits 

 
The City's policy is to permit employees to accumulate unused vacation and 
compensatory time benefits. City employees are entitled to vacation pay based upon 
length of employment. In addition, the City has established a severance pay policy for 
nonunion employees. This policy provides for severance payments upon termination of 
employment based on accumulated personal leave accrued, subject to certain 
conditions and specified maximums. Severance pay policy for union employees is 
governed by individual union contracts. 
 
Vested benefits for City employees attributable to governmental funds are recorded as 
expenditures in these funds as benefits are paid to employees. The liability and 
corresponding expense is recorded in the government-wide financials statements as 
these benefits accrue. The liability and corresponding expense associated with 
proprietary funds is recorded in the applicable proprietary fund as benefits accrue. 
 

6. Long-term obligations 
 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund 
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or 
proprietary fund type statements of net position. 
 
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs are expensed as incurred.  
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.   
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums 
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face 
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums received on 
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

43 

                                                                                      
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
                                                                                      
 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity (Continued) 
 

7. Pensions 
 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) and additions to/deductions from 
PERA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by PERA. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of 
employer payroll paid dates and benefit payments, and refunds are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 

 
         8. Fund equity 

 
In the government-wide and proprietary financial statements, net position is classified 
in the following categories: 
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets – This amount consists of capital assets net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt attributed to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of the assets. 
 
Restricted Net Position – This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, 
contributors, laws or regulations of other governments. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position – This amount is all net position that does not meet the 
definition of “net investment in capital assets” or “restricted net position.” 

 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the City classifies governmental fund balances 
as follows: 

 
Non-spendable – includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either 
because it is not in spendable form or because of legal or contractual restraints. 
 
Restricted – amounts are restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, laws 
or regulations of other governments. 
 
 
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

44 

                                                                                      
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
                                                                                      
 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity (Continued) 

 
8. Fund equity (continued) 
 

Committed – includes fund balance amounts that are committed by resolution, which 
is the City's highest level of decision-making authority, for specific purposes that are 
internally imposed by the City Council through formal action and remain binding 
unless removed by the City Council by subsequent formal action (resolution). 
 
Assigned – includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific 
purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. The City Council, by 
majority vote, may assign fund balances to be used for specific purposes when 
appropriate.  The Council has the power to assign fund balances or to designate an 
official who may assign fund balances. The City Administrator has been designated 
by the Council to assign fund balances. 

 
Unassigned – includes positive fund balances within the General Fund which have 
not been classified within the above-mentioned categories and negative fund 
balances in other governmental funds. 
  
The City considers restricted/committed amounts to be spent first when both restricted 
and unrestricted fund balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts 
that prohibit doing this, such as a grant agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending. 
Additionally, the City would first use committed, then assigned and lastly unassigned 
amounts when expenditures are made.   

 
  9. Deferred Outflows of Resources 
 

In addition to assets, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
outflow of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ 
expenditure) until that time. The City has one type of deferred outflow which is pension 
related and reported on the statement of net position. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

45 

                                                                                      
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
                                                                                      
 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity (Continued) 
 
  10. Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 

In addition to liabilities, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred inflow of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a 
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until 
that time. The City recognized two types of deferred inflows. The first type occurs 
because governmental fund revenues are not recognized until available under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. The second type is pension related and reported 
on the statement of net position. 
 

E. Concentration of Credit Risk 
 

Financial instruments which expose the City to a concentration of credit risk consist 
primarily of cash, investments and accounts and loans receivable. Credit risk associated 
with cash and investments is discussed in Note 3. The City's accounts and loans receivable 
are concentrated geographically, and for the most part, amounts are due from individuals 
residing in and businesses located in the City of Spring Lake Park. 
 

F. Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates 
that affect amounts reported in the financial statements during the reporting period.  Actual 
results could differ from such estimates. 

 
G. Conduit Debt Obligations 
 

The City issued lease revenue bonds during 2017 to provide funding to a private sector 
entity for a project deemed to be in the public interest. The City issued bonds during 2019 
to provide funding to another private sector entity for a project deemed to be in public 
interest. Although these bonds bear the name of the City, the City has no obligation for 
such debt. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the financial statements 
of the City. As of December 31, 2021, the outstanding principal amount of these bonds was 
$56,995,444. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

46 

                                                                                      
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
                                                                                      
 
H. Subsequent Events 
 

In preparing these financial statements, the City has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through June 29, 2022, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued.  

                                                                                      
 
2. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 
                                                                                      
 
A. Budgetary Information 
 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. Annual appropriated budgets are legally adopted 
by Council resolution for the General Fund. An annual budget is not adopted for the 
Developer’s Escrow special revenue fund, which adopts a project length budget. Formal 
budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the 
General Fund. The City follows these legal compliance procedures in establishing the 
budgetary data reflected in the financial statements. 

 
1. Budget requests are submitted by all department heads to the City Administrator.  The 

Administrator's office compiles the budget requests into an overall preliminary City 
budget, balancing budget requests with available revenue. 

 

2. The preliminary budget is submitted to the City Council in August for its review and/or 
modification. 

 

3. City administration presents the proposed budget to the City Council which in turn 
holds a truth-in-taxation public hearing on the proposed budget.  The budget resolution 
adopted by the City Council sets forth the budget at the department level for the 
General Fund. 

 

4. All budgeted appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year. The legal level of 
control (the level on which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) for 
each budget is at the department level. Administration cannot legally amend or 
transfer appropriations between departments without the approval of the City Council 
once the budget has been approved. Any over expenditures of appropriations or 
transfers of appropriated amounts must be approved by the City Council. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

47 

                                                                                      
 
2. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability (Continued) 
                                                                                      
 
A. Budgetary Information (Continued) 
 

5. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council. The 
budget cannot be amended without approval by the City Council. 

 
All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information reflect the 
original budget and the final budget (which were not the same for the year ended 
December 31, 2021). 

 
The City does not use encumbrance accounting. 
 

B. Expenditures Exceeding Appropriations 
 

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the following General Fund department had 
expenditures exceeding the latest amended budget: 
 

2021 Budgeted 
Expenditures

 2021 Actual 
Expenditures 

Amount Exceeding 
Budgeted Amount

Other 115,500$               234,480$               118,980$               

The above listed over expenditures were approved by the City Council. 
 

C. Fund Balance Deficits 
 
As of December 31, 2021, the following fund had a deficit fund balance: 
 

Fund Amount

Nonmajor:
2013A G.O. Capital Improvement Fire Bond Debt Service 4,641$                

 
The fund balance deficit will be eliminated by future revenue and financing sources. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

48 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.   Detailed Notes on All Funds 
                                                                                                                                          
 
A. Deposits and Investments 
 

In accordance with applicable Minnesota statutes, the City maintains deposits at 
depository banks authorized by the City Council. All such depositories are members of 
the Federal Reserve System. 
 
Minnesota statutes require that all deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond or 
collateral. The market value of collateral pledged must equal 110% of the deposits not 
covered by insurance or surety bonds. Authorized collateral includes certain state or local 
government obligations and legal investments described in the investment policy section. 
Minnesota Statutes require that securities pledged as collateral be held in safekeeping by 
the City Treasurer or in a financial institution other than the institution furnishing the 
collateral. 
 
The City's deposits were entirely covered by federal depository insurance or collateral at 
December 31, 2021. 
 
Investment Policy 
 
The City maintains a formal investment policy that limits its investment choices as a 
means of managing its exposure to credit risk. The City's investment policy does not 
address, however, limits on investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure 
to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 
 
The City is authorized by Minnesota Statutes to invest idle funds as follows: 

 
(a) Direct obligations or obligations guaranteed by the United States or its agencies. 
(b) Shares of investment companies registered under the Federal Investment 

Company Act of 1940 and whose only investments are in securities described in 
(a) above. 

(c) General obligations of the State of Minnesota or its municipalities. 
(d) Bankers acceptances of United States banks eligible for purchase by the Federal 

Reserve System. 
(e) Commercial paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian 

subsidiaries, of the highest quality, and maturing in 270 days or less. 
(f) Repurchase agreements with banks that are members of the Federal Reserve 

System with capitalization exceeding $10,000,000, a reporting dealer to the 
Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or certain Minnesota securities broker-
dealers. 

(g) Money market funds with institutions that have portfolios consisting exclusively of 
United States Treasury obligations and Federal Agency issues. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
    
 

49 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.   Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
A. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

 
(h) Guaranteed investment contracts (gic's) issued or guaranteed by United States 

commercial banks or domestic branches of foreign banks or United States 
insurance companies and with a credit quality in one of the top two highest 
categories. 

 
Fair Value Measurements 
 
Fair value measurements are determined utilizing the framework established by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The framework provides a fair value hierarchy 
that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy 
gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 
measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 

 
Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical 
assets or liabilities in active markets that the City has the ability to access.  
 
Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are 
corroborated by market data. Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 

 Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets 
 Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets 
 Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability 
 Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market 

    data by correlation or other means 
 

If the asset or liability has a specific (contractual) term, Level 2 input must be 
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability 

 
Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the 
fair value measurement. 
 

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is 
based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 
Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the 
use of unobservable inputs.   



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
    
 

50 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.   Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
A. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

 
Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 
 
The City’s investments within the fair value hierarchy at December 31, 2021 were as 
follows: 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Certificates of Deposit 8,878,689$        8,878,689$ $             $           

U.S. Government Securities 1,251,956                        1,251,956                 

Total 10,130,645$      8,878,689$ 1,251,956$  $           

Assets 
Measured at Fair 

Value

Fair Value Hierarchy Level

 
Interest Rate Risk 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the 
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the City 
manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter and 
longer-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the 
portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide 
the cash flow and liquidity needs for operation. 
 
The following is a summary of the City of Spring Lake Park's cash and investment portfolio 
including the range of maturities and investment ratings by type of investment: 

Investment Range of Maturities Rating Value
Cash N/A N/A 4,133,012$   
Certificates of Deposit 8/30 N/A 8,878,689     
U.S. Government Securities 10/26 AAA 1,251,956     

Total cash and investments 14,263,657$ 

N/A  Not applicable or not available



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
    
 

51 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.   Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
A. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

 
Interest Rate Risk (Continued) 
 
The 4M Fund is regulated by Minnesota Statutes and the Board of Directors of the League 
of Minnesota Cities and is an external investment pool not registered with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (SEC) that follows guidance under GASB Statement No. 79.  
The City’s investment in the 4M Fund is measured at an amortized cost method that 
approximates fair value.  Investments in the 4M Fund must be deposited for a minimum of 
14 calendar days.  Withdrawals prior to the 14-day restriction period will be subject to 
penalty equal to seven days interest on the amount withdrawn. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to 
the holder of the investment. The City's investments are rated by various credit rating 
agencies, where applicable, to indicate the associated credit risk. Investment ratings by 
investment type (as applicable) are included in the preceding summary of investments. 
 
The City does not have a formal policy related to the credit risk of its investments, but 
continues to buy safe and liquid assets that are allowable under Minnesota Statutes. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The City diversifies its investment portfolio to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over-
concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific class of 
securities. The City's investment policies do not limit the concentration of investments.  
Investments in any one issuer that represented 5% or more of total investments as of 
December 31, 2021 were as follows: 
 

Issuer Investment Type Value
4M Fund Money Market Accounts 4,257,387$ 

 
  Custodial Credit Risk 

 
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counter party, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment securities that 
are in the possession of an outside party. At December 31, 2021, all investments were 
insured or registered or the securities were held by the City or its agent in the City's name. 
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

52 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.   Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
B. Due From Other Governmental Units 

 
Amounts due from other governmental units as of December 31, 2021 were as follows: 
 

Fund Type Anoka County Ramsey County
General Fund 65,886$                 560$                      
Capital Projects 182                        
Debt Service 10,914                   44                          

76,982$                 604$                      
 

C. Capital Assets 
 

Capital asset activity for the City for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows: 
 

Ending

Governmental Activities Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land  $              604,950  $                      270,000$          $              334,950 

Construction in progress                  777,040                     777,040                                          

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,381,990                                 1,047,040        334,950                

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 3,399,492                                 3,399,492             

Machinery and equipment 3,957,444             92,994             55,159             3,995,279             

Infrastructure 19,582,208           851,029           20,433,237           

Total capital assets, being depreciated 26,939,144           944,023           55,159             27,828,008           

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 2,282,884             109,835           2,392,719             

Machinery and equipment 2,918,559             364,432           55,159             3,227,832             

Infrastructure 12,242,606           490,105           12,732,711           

Total accumulated depreciation 17,444,049           964,372           55,159             18,353,262           

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 9,495,095             (20,349)                               9,474,746             

Governmental activities capital assets, net 10,877,085$         (20,349)$         1,047,040$      9,809,696$           

Beginning Balance



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

53 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.  Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
C. Capital Assets (Continued) 
 

Beginning Ending

Business-Type Activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Construction in progress  $              489,541  $          21,309  $        489,541 21,309$                

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 489,541                21,309             489,541           21,309                  

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 6,489,800                                 37,336             6,452,464             

Machinery and equipment 808,197                                    19,169             789,028                

Infrastructure 5,608,969             1,032,991                            6,641,960             

Total capital assets, being depreciated 12,906,966           1,032,991        56,505             13,883,452           

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 4,470,895             221,581           37,336             4,655,140             

Machinery and equipment 686,738                34,293             19,169             701,862                

Infrastructure 2,339,936             222,180                               2,562,116             

Total accumulated depreciation 7,497,569             478,054           56,505             7,919,118             

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 5,409,397             554,937                               5,964,334             

Business-type activities capital assets, net 5,898,938$           576,246$         489,541$         5,985,643$           
 

 
Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 was charged to functions/programs 
as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities
   General government 162,478$  
   Public safety 117,946    
   Public works 617,278    
   Recreation and parks 66,670      
Total 964,372$  

Business-Type Activities
   Utility 478,054$  



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

54 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.  Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
D. Long-Term Debt 
 

The City issues general obligation bonds and equipment certificates to provide funds for 
economic development and for the acquisition and construction of major capital assets 
including infrastructure. General obligation bonds have been issued for both general 
government and proprietary activities. Bonds issued to provide funds for business-type 
activities are reported in proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from 
proprietary revenues. 
 
General obligation bonds and certificates are direct obligations and pledge the full faith 
and credit of the City. General obligation improvement and refunding bonds are expected 
to be repaid, in part, from assessments to the benefited properties. 
 
A summary of long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2021 is as follows: 

 
Range of Final Balance

Issue Date Interest Rates Maturity 12/31/21

General obligation bonds:
2013A Capital Improvement Bonds 5/30/2013 2.00% 2025 184,951$       
2013B Capital Improvement Bonds 12/18/2013 3.00% 2023 155,000         
2021A Improvement Refunding Bonds 2/17/2021 2.00% 2025 1,155,000      

General obligation certificates:
2017A Equipment Certificates 3/21/2017 3.00% 2023 455,000         
2018A Equipment Certificates 1/4/2018 1.90% 2022 165,000         
2018A Improvement Certificates 6/7/2018 3.00% - 4.00% 2023 39,626           

General obligation note payable:
Note Payable - Public Facilities Authority 7/8/2003 2.819% 2023 483,000         
2016A Improvement Notes 4/14/2016 2.00% 2025 38,102           

Other Liabilities:
Net unamortized premium on bonds 35,510           

   Compensated Absences 360,104         

Total Long-Term Debt 3,071,293$    

 
Liquidation of the compensated absences liability occurs within the department and fund 
for which the corresponding employees are assigned. 
 
The City is subject to statutory limitation by the State of Minnesota for bonded 
indebtedness payable principally from property taxes.  As of December 31, 2021, the City 
had not utilized approximately $19,000,000 of its net legal debt margin. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

55 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.  Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
D. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt obligations for the year 
ended December 31, 2021: 

 
Amounts

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Bonds and Notes Payable:

General obligation bonds:

2013A Capital Improvement Bonds 226,601$       $                41,650$        184,951$       42,500$        

2013B Capital Improvement Bonds 225,000         70,000          155,000         75,000          

2014A Capital Improvements Bonds 1,485,000      1,485,000                                                

2021A Capital Improvement Bonds                       1,455,000      300,000        1,155,000      295,000        

General obligation certificates:

2017A Equipment Certificates 675,000         220,000        455,000         225,000        

2018A Equipment Certificates 325,000                               160,000        165,000         165,000        

2018A Improvement Certificates 57,901                                 18,275          39,626           19,125          

General obligation note payable:

2016A Improvement Notes 50,198           12,096          38,102           12,398          

Other Liabilities:

Compensated Absences 399,392         212,459         300,252        311,599         234,252        

Unamortized premium 36,029           62,335           47,506          50,858           

Less: unamortized (discount) (23,208)          (16,005)          (23,865)         (15,348)          

Governmental Activities

Long-Term Liabilities 3,456,913      1,713,789      2,630,914     2,539,788      1,068,275     

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Bonds and Notes Payable:

General obligation note payable:

Note Payable - Public Facilities Authority 714,000                               231,000        483,000         238,000        

Other Liabilities:

Compensated Absences 48,316           28,239           28,050          48,505           28,160          

Business-Type Activities

Long-Term Liabilities 762,316         28,239           259,050        531,505         266,160        

Total 4,219,229$    1,742,028$    2,889,964$   3,071,293$    1,334,435$   

 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

56 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.  Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
D. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 

Debt service requirements to maturity for long-term debt, excluding compensated 
absences, as of December 31, 2021 were as follows: 

 

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2022 412,500$    31,703$      409,125$    14,766$      
2023 418,775      22,711        250,501      4,232          
2024 334,625      13,548                                              
2025 329,051      7,323                                                

Totals 1,494,951$ 75,285$      659,626$    18,998$      

General Obligation 
Improvement and Refunding 

Bonds

General Obligation 
Equipment and Refunding 

Certificates

 

Year Principal Interest
2022 250,398$    14,378$      
2023 257,701      7,420          
2024 13,003        260             
2025                                       

                                      
Totals 521,102$    22,058$      

General Obligation Notes 
Payable

 
 

In 2021, the City issued $1,455,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 
2021A.  The bonds were issued to refund the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014A.  
The refunding resulted in an effective interest rate savings of 0.451%, including issuance 
costs and a cash flow savings of $53,301.  The economic gain is $54,175, or 
approximately $11,000 per year for the remaining four years the 2021A Bonds will be 
outstanding. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

57 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.  Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
E. Tax Increment District 
 

The City of Spring Lake Park enters into property tax abatement agreements through the 
use of tax increment financing districts with local businesses under various Minnesota 
Statutes. Under these statutes, the City annually abates taxes collected above the 
districts’ base tax capacity which is established during adoption of the tax increment 
district. These agreements are established to foster economic development and 
redevelopment through creating jobs, removing blight and providing affordable housing. 
The City uses Minnesota Statutes 469.001 to 469.047 and 469.174 to 469.179 (The Tax 
Increment Act) to create these districts. 
 
The City of Spring Lake Park is the administering authority for the City of Spring Lake 
Park Tax Increment Financing District, No. 6-1. The district is housing development type 
and authorized under Minnesota law chapter 469.174 to 469.179 (The Tax Increment 
Act). District No. 6-1 was certified in 2017 and will continue until December 31, 2040. 
 
Information regarding District No. 6-1 as of December 31, 2021 is as follows: 
 

Original net tax capacity 11,313$        

Current net tax capacity 211,615        

Capture net tax capacity:
Retained by authority 200,302        

 
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

58 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.  Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
F. Interfund Receivables and Payables 
 

The following schedule reports the interfund receivables and payables within the City's 
funds as of December 31, 2021: 

 
Due From Due To

Other Funds Other Funds

Major Governmental Funds:
General Fund 4,641$             $                

Non-Major Governmental Funds:
Special Revenue

Recycling 1,705              
Street Lighting 566                 

Debt Service
2013A GO Capital Improvement Fire Bond                    4,641              

Subtotal 2,271              4,641              

Total Governmental Funds 6,912              4,641              

Proprietary Funds:
Utility 3,088              5,359              

Subtotal 3,088              5,359              

Total All Funds 10,000$          10,000$          

 
Interfund receivables and payables are the result of expenditures of funds prior to the 
collection of special assessments, property taxes and other revenues. All interfund 
balances will be repaid as the revenues are collected by the individual funds or by transfers 
from other funds. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

59 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.  Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
G. Interfund Transfers 
 

Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the 
debt service fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due; or 2) move 
unrestricted general fund revenues to finance various programs that the government must 
account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 

 
Interfund transfers during the year ended December 31, 2021 were as follows: 
 

Transfers In Transfers Out

Major Governmental Funds:
General Fund 235,667$        476,122$        
Renewal and Replacement                    25,000            

Subtotal 235,667          501,122          
Non-Major Governmental Funds:
Special Revenue

Emergency Management 3,157              
Police Reserves 3,000              
Forestry 2,000              
Animal Control 1,000              
Recreation Fund 62,500            
Tower Days 15,000            
Recycling Fund 5,000              
Comprehensive Plan Update 5,000              

Debt Service
2013A GO Capital Improvement Fire Bonds 50,000                               
2013B GO Capital Improvement Bonds 78,250            
2014A GO Improvement Bonds 928,546          
2017A GO Equipment Certificates 20,285            
2018A Blaine Fire Debt Service 21,092            
2021A GO Improvement Refunding Bonds 928,546          
Tax Increment Financing - Legends of SLP 3,000               

 
(Continued)



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

60 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.  Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
G. Interfund Transfers (Continued) 
 

Transfers In Transfers Out
Capital Projects

Storm Water 25,000            
Building Maintenance 111,688          
Park equipment and improvement 10,000            
Capital Replacement 25,000            
Street Sealcoating 42,000            
Public Safety Replacement 11,899            

Subtotal 1,352,917       999,046          

Total Governmental Funds 1,588,584       1,500,168       

Proprietary Funds:
Utility 88,416            

Total All Funds 1,588,584$     1,588,584$     
 

  



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

61 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.  Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
H. Fund Equity 
 

In accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 54, below is a schedule of 
ending fund balances as of December 31, 2021: 

 

General Fund
Developer's 

Escrow
 Revolving 

Fund 
 Renewal and 
Replacement 

2021A G.O. 
Improvement 

Refunding 
Bonds

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

Nonspendable
Prepaid items 49$                $               $               $               $               495$             544$             

Restricted
Police activities 11,570          11,570          
Debt service 756,142         562,859        1,319,001     
Street improvements 197,916        197,916        
Park acquisition 905,191        905,191        
Community development 76,290          76,290          

Total Restricted                                                                                     756,142         1,753,826     2,509,968     

Assigned
Working capital reserve 2,122,747     2,122,747     
Compensated absences 311,599        311,599        
Elections 97,189 97,189          
Recreation programs 283,664        283,664        
Recycling 80,796          80,796          
Street lighting 91,751          91,751          
Cable activities 23,690          23,690          
Public safety supplies 16,098          16,098          
HRA reserve 1,038,567     1,038,567     
Street improvement 1,385,543     1,850,217     3,235,760     
Street sealcoating 83,941          83,941          
Storm water runoff program 91,192          91,192          
Capital replacement 671,377        671,377        
Building maintenance 247,933        247,933        
Park acquisition 45,664          45,664          
Other activities                      43,449          43,449          

Total Assigned 2,531,535                          1,385,543     1,850,217                           2,718,122     8,485,417     

Unassigned                                            (4,641)           (4,641)           

Total Fund Balance 2,531,584$    $              1,385,543$   1,850,217$   756,142$       4,467,802$   10,991,288$ 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

62 

                                                                                                                                          
 
3.  Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
                                                                                                                                          
 
H.  Fund Equity (Continued) 
 

The City has restricted portions of fund balance in the fund financial statements and fund 
equity in the government-wide financial statements. The restricted fund balance / equity 
represents the portion not available for expenditure or legally segregated for specific 
future use. A summary of the restricted portion of the fund balance / equity at December 
31, 2021 is as follows: 
 

Specific Purpose Contributors Grantors Creditors Regulations

Restricted Fund Balance
Debt Service Funds:

Debt service requirements  $               $              1,319,001$    $               
Special Revenue Funds:

Police activities                      11,570                                                     
Community development 26,521          49,769          

Capital Project Funds:
Street improvements                      197,916                                                   
Park acquisition 905,191        

Total Restricted Funds 931,712$      259,255$      1,319,001$    $               

Restricted Net Position
Debt service requirements  $               $              1,526,427$    $               
Police activities 11,570          
Community development 26,521          49,769          
Street improvements 197,916        
Park acquisition 905,191        

Total Restrictied Net Position 931,712$      259,255$      1,526,427$    $               

Restriction Imposed By

 
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

63 

         
 
4. Other Information 
 
 
A. Risk Management 
 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, or 
destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  
The City participates in the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT) to provide 
its general liability and property coverage. The LMCIT is a public entity risk pool currently 
operating as a common risk management and insurance program for participating 
Minnesota Cities. All Cities in the LMCIT are jointly and severally liable for all claims and 
expenses of the pool. The amount of any liability in excess of assets of the pool may be 
assessed to the participating cities if a deficiency occurs. The City purchases commercial 
insurance for property values in excess of the LMCIT policy limits and all other risks of loss. 
Settled claims have not exceeded the LMCIT or commercial coverage in any of the past 
three fiscal years. 
 
Worker's compensation insurance is also purchased through the LMCIT. The worker 
compensation program is a retrospectively rated contract with premiums or required 
contributions based primarily on the experience rates of the participating cities. There were 
no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year or settlements in 
excess of insurance coverage for any of the past three fiscal years. 
 

B. Commitments and Contingencies 
 

Insurance: 
The City has outstanding claims subject to its insurance deductible. Although the outcome 
of these actions is not presently determinable, in the opinion of management, the resolution 
of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

 
General Litigation: 
Management is not aware of any existing or pending lawsuits, claims or other actions in 
which the City is a defendant. It is the opinion of management that any such claims would 
be covered by the liability insurance of the City and that potential claims against the City 
would not materially affect the financial statements. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

64 

         
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
C. Pension Plans 
 

1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit 
 
 A. Plan Description 
 

The City participates in the following cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 
pension plans administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of 
Minnesota (PERA). PERA's defined benefit pension plans are established and 
administered in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356. PERA's 
defined benefit pension plans are tax qualified plans under Section 401(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. 
 
1. General Employees Retirement Plan - All full-time and certain part-time employees 

of the City of Spring Lake Park are covered by the General Employees Plan.  
General Employees Plan members belong to the Coordinated Plan. Coordinated 
Plan members are covered by Social Security.  
 

2. Public Employees Police and Fire Plan - The Police and Fire Plan, originally 
established for police officers and firefighters not covered by a local relief 
association, now covers all police officers and firefighters hired since 1980.  
Effective July 1, 1999, the Police and Fire Plan also covers police officers and 
firefighters belonging to local relief associations that elected to merge with and 
transfer assets and administration to PERA. 

 
B. Benefits Provided 
 
PERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are 
established by state statute and can only be modified by the state Legislature. Vested, 
terminated employees who are entitled to benefits, but are not receiving them yet, are 
bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their public service. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

65 

         
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
D. Pension Plans (Continued) 
 

1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued) 
 
 B. Benefits Provided (continued) 
 

1.  General Employees Plan Benefits 
 
General Employees Plan benefits are based on a member's highest average salary for 
any five successive years of allowable service, age, and years of credit at termination 
of service. Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA’s Coordinated Plan 
members. Members hired prior to July 1, 1989, receive the higher of Method 1 or 
Method 2 formulas. Only Method 2 is used for members hired after June 30, 1989. 
Under Method 1, the accrual rate for Coordinated members is 1.2 percent for each of 
the first 10 years of service and 1.7 percent for each additional year. Under Method 2, 
the accrual rate for Coordinated members is 1.7 percent for all years of service. For 
members hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available when age plus years of 
service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 65. For members hired on or after July 
1, 1989, normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits 
capped at 66. 
 
Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. The postretirement 
increase is equal to 50 percent of the cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) announced by 
the SSA, with a minimum increase of at least 1 percent and a maximum of 1.5 percent. 
Recipients that have been receiving the annuity or benefit for at least a full year as of 
the June 30 before the effective date of the increase will receive the full increase. 
Recipients receiving the annuity or benefit for at least one month but less than a full 
year as of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase will receive a reduced 
prorated increase. For members retiring on January 1, 2024, or later, the increase will 
be delayed until normal retirement age (age 65 if hired prior to July 1, 1989, or age 66 
for individuals hired on or after July 1, 1989). Members retiring under Rule of 90 are 
exempt from the delay to normal retirement. 
 
 
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

66 

         
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
D. Pension Plans (Continued) 
 

1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued) 
 
 B. Benefits Provided (continued) 

 
2. Police and Fire Plan Benefits 
 
Benefits for Police and Fire Plan members first hired after June 30, 2010, but before 
July 1, 2014, vest on a prorated basis from 50 percent after five years up to 100 
percent after ten years of credited service. Benefits for Police and Fire Plan members 
first hired after June 30, 2014, vest on a prorated basis from 50 percent after ten years 
up to 100 percent after twenty years of credited service. The annuity accrual rate is 3 
percent of average salary for each year of service. For Police and Fire Plan members 
who were first hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available when age plus 
years of service equal at least 90. 
 
Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. The postretirement 
increase is fixed at 1 percent. Recipients that have been receiving the annuity or 
benefit for at least 36 months as of the June 30 before the effective date of the 
increase will receive the full increase. Recipients receiving the annuity or benefit for at 
least 25 months but less than 36 months as of the June 30 before the effective date of 
the increase will receive a reduced prorated increase. 
 

 C. Contributions 
 

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee 
contributions. Contribution rates can only be modified by the state Legislature.  
 
1.  General Employees Fund Contributions 
 
Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 6.50 percent of their annual 
covered salary in fiscal year 2021 and the City was required to contribute 7.50 percent 
for Coordinated Plan members. The City's contributions to the General Employees 
Fund for the year ended December 31, 2021, were $97,494. The City's contributions 
were equal to the required contributions as set by state statute. 
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

67 

         
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
D. Pension Plans (Continued) 
 

1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued) 
 

 C. Contributions (continued) 
 

2. Police and Fire Fund Contributions 
 

Police and Fire members were required to contribute 11.80 percent of their annual 
covered salary in fiscal year 2021 and the City was required to contribute 17.70 
percent for Police and Fire Plan members. The City's contributions to the Police and 
Fire Fund for the year ended December 31, 2021, were $188,326. The City's 
contributions were equal to the required contributions as set by state statute. 

 
 D. Pension Costs 
 

1. General Employees Fund Pension Costs 
 

At December 31, 2021, the City reported a liability of $790,033 for its proportionate 
share of the General Employees Fund's net pension liability. The City’s net pension 
liability reflected a reduction due to the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $16 million. 
The State of Minnesota is considered a non-employer contributing entity and the 
state’s contribution meets the definition of a special funding situation. The State of 
Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the City 
totaled $24,044.  
 
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The City's proportionate share of the net pension liability was 
based on the City's contributions received by PERA during the measurement period 
for employer payroll paid dates from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, relative to 
the total employer contributions received from all of PERA's participating employers. 
The City’s proportionate share was .0185 percent at the end of the measurement 
period and .0184 percent for the beginning of the period. 

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability 790,033$      

State of Minnesota's proportionate share of the net
pension liability associated with the City 24,044          

Total 814,077$      

 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

68 

 
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
D. Pension Plans (Continued) 
 
  1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued) 

 
 D. Pensions Costs (continued) 

 
1. General Employees Fund Pension Costs (continued) 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2021, the City recognized pension (benefit) of 
($180,841) for its proportionate share of the General Employees Plan's pension 
expense. In addition, the City recognized an additional $1,940 as pension expense 
(and grant revenue) for its proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s contribution 
of $16 million to the General Employees Fund. 

 
At December 31, 2021, the City reported its proportionate share of the General 
Employees Plan's deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

 
Deferred 

Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual
economic experience 5,247$          24,163$        

Changes in actuarial assumptions 482,378        17,862          
Net collective difference between projected

and actual investment earnings 689,349        
Changes in proportion 4,497            83,063          
Contributions paid to PERA subsequent to

the measurement date 48,350                           

Total 540,472$      814,437$      

 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

69 

         
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
D. Pension Plans (Continued) 
 
  1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued) 

 
 D. Pensions Costs (continued) 
 

1. General Employees Fund Pension Costs (continued) 
 

The $48,350 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting 
from City contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2022. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

 Year ending December 31: 

 Pension 
Expense 
Amount 

2022 (98,444)$          
2023 (32,453)            
2024 (4,801)              
2025 (186,617)          

 
2.  Police and Fire Fund Pension Costs 

 
At December 31, 2021, the City reported a liability of $677,723 for its proportionate 
share of the Police and Fire Fund's net pension liability. The net pension liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's 
proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the City's contributions 
received by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates 
from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, relative to the total employer contributions 
received from all of PERA's participating employers. The City's proportionate share 
was .0878 percent at the end of the measurement period and .0912 percent for the 
beginning of the period.  
 
The State of Minnesota contributed $18 million to the Police and Fire Fund in the plan 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The contribution consisted of $9 million in direct state 
aid that does meet the definition of a special funding situation and $9 million in 
supplemental state aid that does not meet the definition of a special funding situation. 
The $9 million direct state was paid on October 1, 2020. Thereafter, by October 1 of 
each year, the state will pay $9 million to the Police and Fire Fund until full funding is 
reached or July 1, 2048, whichever is earlier.  



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

70 

         
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
D. Pension Plans (Continued) 
 
  1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued) 

 
    D.  Pensions Costs (continued) 
 

2. Police and Fire Fund Pension Costs (continued) 
 

The $9 million in supplemental state aid will continue until the fund is 90 percent 
funded, or until the State Patrol Plan (administered by the Minnesota State Retirement 
System) is 90 percent funded, whichever occurs later. Strong asset returns for the 
fiscal year ended 2021 will accelerate the phasing out of these state contributions, 
although we do not anticipate them to be phased out during the fiscal year ending 
2022. 
 
The State of Minnesota is included as a non-employer contributing entity in the Police 
and Fire Retirement Plan Schedule of Employer Allocations and Schedule of Pension 
Amounts by Employer, Current Reporting Period Only (pension allocation schedules) 
for the $9 million in direct state aid.  Police and Fire Plan employers need to recognize 
their proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s pension expense (and grant 
revenue) under GASB 68 special funding situation accounting and financial reporting 
requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the City recognized pension 
(benefit) of ($255,755) for its proportionate share of the Police and Fire Plan’s pension 
expense. In addition, the City recognized an additional $5,552 as pension expense 
(and grant revenue) for its proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s contribution 
of $9 million to the Police and Fire Fund.  
 
The State of Minnesota is not included as a non-employer contributing entity in the 
Police and Fire Pension Plan pension allocation schedules for the $9 million in 
supplemental state aid. The City also recognized $7,902 for the year ended December 
31, 2021 as revenue and an offsetting reduction of net pension liability for its 
proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s on-behalf contributions to the Police 
and Fire Fund. 
 
 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

71 

         
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
D. Pension Plans (Continued) 
 
  1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued) 

 
    D.  Pensions Costs (continued) 
 

2. Police and Fire Fund Pension Costs (continued) 
 

At December 31, 2021, the City reported its proportionate share of the Police and Fire 
Plan's deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual
economic experience 132,012$       $              

Changes in actuarial assumptions 996,075        390,467        
Net collective difference between projected 

and actual investment earnings 1,290,749     
Changes in proportion 18,238          94,618          
Contributions paid to PERA subsequent to

the measurement date 96,956                           

Total 1,243,281$   1,775,834$   

 
The $96,956 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting 
from City contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2022. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 Year ending December 31: 

 Pension 
Expense 
Amount 

2022 (507,392)$        
2023 (91,242)            
2024 (92,473)            
2025 (148,995)          
2026 210,593            



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

72 

         
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
D. Pension Plans (Continued) 
 
  1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued) 
 
    Total Pension Expense (Benefit) 
 

The total pension (benefit) for all plans (General Employees Fund and Police and Fire 
Fund) recognized by the City for the year ended December 31, 2021 was ($436,596). 

 
    E.  Long-Term Expected Return on Investment 
        

The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA, prepares an 
analysis of the reasonableness on a regular basis of the long-term expected rate of 
return using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future 
rates of return are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined 
to produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighting the expected future rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation and best 
estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized 
in the following table: 
 
Asset Class 

 
Target Allocation 

Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

Domestic Equity 33.5% 5.10% 
International Equity 16.5% 5.30% 
Fixed Income 25.0% 0.75% 
Private Markets 25.0% 5.90% 
     Total 100.0%  

 
    F.  Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2021, actuarial valuation was determined 
using an individual entry-age normal actuarial cost method. The long-term rate of 
return on pension plan investments used in the determination of the total liability is 6.5 
percent. This assumption is based on a review of inflation and investments return 
assumptions from a number of national investment consulting firms. The review 
provided a range of return investment return rates deemed to be reasonable by the 
actuary. An investment return of 6.5 percent was deemed to be within that range of 
reasonableness for financial reporting purposes.  

 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

73 

 
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
D. Pension Plans (Continued) 
 
  1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued) 
 
    F.  Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (Continued) 
 

Inflation is assumed to be 2.25 percent for the General Employees Plan and 2.25 
percent for the Police and Fire Plan. Benefit increases after retirement are assumed to 
be 1.25 percent for the General Employees Plan. The Police and Fire Plan benefit 
increase is fixed at 1 percent per year and that increase was used in the valuation. 
 
Salary growth assumptions in the General Employees Plan range in annual 
increments from 10.25 percent after one year of service to 3.0 percent after 29 years 
of service and 6.0 percent per year thereafter. In the Police and Fire Plan, salary 
growth assumptions range from 11.75 percent after one year of service to 3.0 percent 
after 24 years of service.  
 
Mortality rates for the General Employees Plan are based on the Pub-2010 General 
Employee Mortality Table. Mortality rates for the Police and Fire Plan are based on the 
Pub-2010 Public Safety Employee Mortality tables. The tables are adjusted slightly to 
fit PERA’s experience. 
 
Actuarial assumptions for the General Employees Plan are reviewed every four years. 
The most recent four-year experience study for the General Employees Plan was 
completed in 2019. The assumption changes were adopted by the Board and became 
effective with the July 1, 2020 actuarial valuation. The most recent four-year 
experience studies for the Police and Fire Plan were completed in 2020 were adopted 
by the Board and became effective with the July 1, 2021 actuarial valuation. 
       

    The following changes in actuarial assumptions and plan provisions occurred in 2021:   
 

General Employees Fund 

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 

 The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50 
percent to 6.50 percent, for financial reporting purposes. 

 The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2019 to 
Scale MP-2020. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

74 

 
 

4. Other Information (Continued) 
 

 
D. Pension Plans (Continued) 

 
  1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued) 

 
F.  Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (Continued) 
 
General Employees Fund 

    Changes in Plan Provisions:  

 There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation. 
 
Police and Fire Fund 

    Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 

 The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50 
percent to 6.50 percent, for financial reporting purposes. 

 The inflation assumption was changed from 2.50 percent to 2.25 percent. 
 The payroll growth assumption was changed from 3.25 percent to 3.00 

percent. 
 The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was 

changed from the RP-2014 table to the Pub-2010 Public Safety Mortality 
table.  The mortality improvement scale was changed from MP-2019 to 
MN-2020. 

 The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-
2014 healthy annuitant mortality table (with future mortality improvement 
according to Scale MP-2019) to the Pub-2010 Public Safety disabled 
annuitant mortality table (with future mortality improvement according to 
Scale MP-2020). 

 Assumed rates of salary increase were modified as recommended in the 
July 14, 2020 experience study.  The overall impact is a decrease in gross 
salary increase rates. 

 Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the July 
14, 2020 experience study.  The changes result in slightly more unreduced 
retirements and fewer assumed early retirements. 

 Assumed rates of withdrawal were changed from select and ultimate rates 
to service-based rates.  The changes result in more assumed terminations. 

 Assumed rates of disability were increased for ages 25-44 and decreased 
for ages over 49.  Overall, proposed rates result in more projected 
disabilities.   

 Assumed percent married for active female members was changed from 60 
percent to 70 percent.  Minor changes to form of payment assumptions 
were applied. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

75 

 
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
D. Pension Plans (Continued) 
 
  1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued) 
 

F.  Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (Continued)  
 
Police and Fire Fund 

Changes in Plan Provisions: 

 The were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation. 
 

    G.  Discount Rate 
 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in 2021 was 6.50 percent. 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from plan members and employers will be made at rates set in 
Minnesota Statutes. Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary net positions of the 
General Employees Fund and the Police and Fire Fund were projected to be available 
to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.   

 
    H.  Pension Liability Sensitivity  

 
The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability for all 
plans it participates in, calculated using the discount rate disclosed in the preceding 
paragraph, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate one percentage point lower or one 
percentage point higher than the current discount rate: 

1% Lower 5.50% 1,611,264$      5.50% 2,151,656$      

Current Discount Rate 6.50% 790,033$         6.50% 677,723$         

1% Higher 7.50% 116,163$         7.50% (530,537)$        

General Employees Fund Police and Fire Fund
Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability at Different Discount Rates

 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

76 

 
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
D.  Pension Plans (Continued) 
 
  1. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Benefit (Continued) 
 
    I.  Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

 
Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in a 
separately-issued PERA financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained on the Internet at 
www.mnpera.org. 

 
2. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) - Defined Contribution 

 
Four council members of the City are covered by the Defined Contribution Plan, a 
multiple-employer deferred compensation plan administered by PERA. The Defined 
Contribution Plan is a tax qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue 
Code and all contributions by or on behalf of council members are tax deferred until 
time of withdrawal.  

 
Plan benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment 
earnings, less administrative expenses. Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 353D.03, 
specifies plan provisions, including the employee and employer contribution rates for 
those qualified personnel who elect to participate. An eligible elected official who 
decides to participate contributes five percent of salary which is matched by the 
elected official's employer.  
 
Employees who are paid for their services may elect to make member contributions in 
an amount not to exceed the employer share. Employer and employee contributions 
are combined and used to purchase shares in one or more of the seven accounts of 
the Minnesota Supplemental Investment Fund. For administering the plan, PERA 
receives two percent of employer contributions and twenty-five hundredths of one 
percent (0.25 percent) of the assets in each member's account annually. 

 
Total contributions made by the City of Spring Lake Park during fiscal year 2021 were: 

 
Required

Employee Employer Employee Employer Rate
1,267$          1,267$          5% 5% 5%

Contribution Amount Percentage of Covered Payroll

 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

77 

 
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
E. Other Postemployment Benefits 
 

The City has considered the accounting pronouncement, GASB Statement No. 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting by for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions.  
Management determined the OPEB liability at December 31, 2021 is not material and 
therefore is not recorded in these financial statements.  
 

F. Joint Powers Agreements 
 

As previously noted, the City of Spring Lake Park participates with the cities of Blaine and 
Mounds View through a joint powers agreement to cooperatively support the Spring Lake 
Park Fire Department, Inc. (the Department). The Department is independent of the cities 
and operates as a separate entity. Under terms of the agreement, the equipment, property 
and other assets of the Department are owned jointly by the three cities. Each city enters 
into a contract for services with the Department for fire protection services. Cost of services 
for each City is determined based on a formula prescribed in the agreement. Based on the 
agreement, in the event the Department sustains operating deficits, the cities will contribute 
additional funds to the Department in proportion to the formula described above. Operating 
budgets of the Department are approved annually by the cities. 

 
Payments to the Department by the City of Spring Lake Park in 2021 totaled $250,332, 
including a provision for capital expenditures. This total was approximately 8% of 
contracted revenues from member cities reported by the Department. As described in Note 
1, the City is also responsible for its share of debt service payments related to bonds issued 
on behalf of the Department for building improvements and equipment acquisitions. 
 
In addition, the City is a member of the Anoka County Joint Law Enforcement Council 
(JLEC), an organization of Anoka County and certain cities located within the County 
formed to cooperate in their law enforcement efforts. The City participates with the JLEC on 
a cost-sharing basis with the development and maintenance of an integrated central 
records communication system. Costs related to the City's participation in the JLEC were 
$15,132 for the year ended December 31, 2021. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    
 

78 

 
 
4. Other Information (Continued) 
 
 
F. Joint Powers Agreements (Continued) 
 

In 1983, the City adopted an ordinance establishing a franchise for a cable communications 
system. City and neighboring municipalities formed the North Metro Telecommunications 
Commission (the “Commission”). The purpose of this organization is to monitor the 
operations and activities of cable communications of the member municipalities. The 
Commission also provides coordination, administration and enforcement of the franchises 
for the cable communication system. 
 
The City receives a portion of the franchise fees, which are reported in the North Central 
Suburban Cable Fund. These revenues are committed for cable television related 
expenditures. Financial statements for the Commission can be obtained by writing to: North 
Metro Telecommunications Commission, 12520 Polk Street NE, Blaine, Minnesota 55434. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

December 31, 2021



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



 

    
 

79 

 Year Ended December 31 

 Statutorily 

Required 

Contribution (a) 

 Contributions 

in Relation to 

Statutorily 

Required 

Contribution (b) 

 Contribution 

Deficiency 

(Excess) (a-b) 

 Covered 

Payroll (d) 

 Contributions 

as a 

Percentage of 

Covered Payroll 

(b/d) 

2014 106,316$        106,316$         $               1,468,400$     7.2%
2015 109,297          109,297                               1,442,177       7.6%
2016 112,202          112,202                               1,496,472       7.5%
2017 114,728          114,728                               1,529,713       7.5%
2018 110,008          110,008                               1,466,764       7.5%
2019 102,065          102,065                               1,360,859       7.5%
2020 103,623          103,623                               1,381,644       7.5%
2021 97,494            97,494                                 1,299,915       7.5%
2022                      
2023                      

 Year Ended December 31 

 Statutorily 

Required 

Contribution (a) 

 Contributions 

in Relation to 

Statutorily 

Required 

Contribution (b) 

 Contribution 

Deficiency 

(Excess) (a-b) 

 Covered 

Payroll (d) 

 Contributions 

as a 

Percentage of 

Covered Payroll 

(b/d) 

2014 135,648$        135,648$         $               886,585$        15.30%
2015 147,786          147,786                               912,261          16.20%
2016 151,121          151,121                               932,841          16.20%
2017 153,641          153,641                               948,402          16.20%
2018 161,819          161,819                               998,882          16.20%
2019 174,175          174,175                               1,027,581       16.95%
2020 186,745          186,745                               1,055,054       17.70%
2021 188,326          188,326                               1,063,991       17.70%
2022                      
2023                      

PERA Public Employees Police and Fire Fund Pension Plan
December 31, 2021

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK, MINNESOTA
Schedule of City Contributions 

PERA General Employees Retirement Fund
December 31, 2021

Schedule of City Contributions 

 
 

Note: These schedules are intended to provide information for ten years. The City will include that 
information as it becomes available. 



 

    
 

80 

 Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30 

 City's 
Proportionate 

(Percentage) of 
Net Pension 

Liability (Asset) 

 City's 
Proportionate 

Share (Amount) of 
the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 

(a) 

 State's 
Proportionate 

Share (Amount) of 
the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 
Associated with 

the City (b) 

 City's 
Proportionate 

Share (Amount) of 
the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 
and the State's 
Proportionate 

Share (Amount) of 
the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 
Associated with 
the City (a+b) 

 City's Covered 
Payroll (c) 

 City's 
Proportionate 

Share (Amount) of 
the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset)  
as a Percentage 

of its Covered 
Payroll ((a+b)/c) 

 Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position as a 
Percentage of the 

Total Pension 
Liability 

2014 0.0275% 1,291,812$         $                    1,291,812$         1,468,400$         88.0% 78.7%
2015 0.0247% 1,280,082           1,280,082           1,442,177           88.8% 78.2%
2016 0.0239% 1,940,561           25,332               1,965,893           1,496,472           131.4% 68.9%
2017 0.0234% 1,493,841           18,793               1,512,634           1,529,713           98.9% 75.9%
2018 0.0228% 1,264,851           41,581               1,306,432           1,534,400           85.1% 79.5%
2019 0.0200% 1,105,755           34,332               1,140,087           1,413,001           80.7% 80.2%
2020 0.0184% 1,103,164           33,897               1,137,061           1,309,040           86.9% 79.1%
2021 0.0185% 790,033             24,044               814,077             1,329,628           61.2% 87.0%
2022
2023

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK, MINNESOTA
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

PERA General Employees Retirement Fund
December 31, 2021

 

 Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30 

 Proportionate 
(Percentage) of 

Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 

 Proportionate 
Share (Amount) of 
the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 

(a) 

 State's 
Proportionate 

Share (Amount) of 
the Net Pension 

Liability 
Associated with 

the City (b) 

 Employer's 
Proportionate 

Share of the Net 
Pension Liability 
and the State's 
Proportionate 

Share of the Net 
Pension Liability 
Associated with 
the City (a+b) 

 City's Covered 
Payroll (b) 

 Proportionate 
Share (Amount) of 
the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset)  
as a Percentage 

of its Covered 
Payroll (a/b) 

 Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position as a 
Percentage of the 

Total Pension 
Liability 

2014 0.1040% 1,123,243$         886,585$            126.7% 87.1%
2015 0.0960% 1,090,785           912,261             119.6% 86.6%
2016 0.0960% 3,852,647           932,841             413.0% 63.9%
2017 0.0920% 1,242,109           948,402             131.0% 85.4%
2018 0.0925% 985,955             975,104             101.1% 88.8%
2019 0.0955% 1,016,694           1,007,413           100.9% 89.3%
2020 0.0912% 1,202,114           28,305               1,230,419           1,029,857           119.5% 87.2%
2021 0.0878% 677,723             30,486               708,209             1,038,145           68.2% 93.7%
2022
2023

PERA Public Employees Police and Fire Fund Pension Plan
December 31, 2021

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

 
 

Note: These schedules are intended to provide information for ten years. The City will include that 
information as it becomes available. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL NONMAJOR 
FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 

 
December 31, 2021



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



 

    
 

81 

Special 
Revenue Debt Service

Capital 
Projects Total

ASSETS
Cash and investments 1,605,232$   559,432$      2,232,598$   4,397,262$    
Accounts receivable 78,192                               20,757          98,949           
Due from other funds 2,271                                                      2,271             
Due from other governmental units                      3,427                                 3,427             
Prepaid expenditures 495               495                

TOTAL ASSETS 1,686,190$   562,859$      2,253,355$   4,502,404$    

LIABILITIES , DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 15,808$        $               917$             16,725$         
Accrued payroll and taxes 689               689                
Deposits payable 5,600                                                      5,600             
Due to other funds                      4,641                                 4,641             
Unearned revenue 6,947            6,947             

Total Liabilities 29,044          4,641            917               34,602           

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Nonspendable 495               495                
Restricted 87,860          562,859        1,103,107     1,753,826      
Assigned 1,568,791                          1,149,331     2,718,122      
Unassigned                      (4,641)                                (4,641)            
   Total Fund Balance (Deficit) 1,657,146     558,218        2,252,438     4,467,802      

TOTAL LIABILITIES , DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 1,686,190$   562,859$      2,253,355$   4,502,404$    

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2021



 

 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



 

    
 

82 

Special 
Revenue Debt Service

Capital 
Projects Total

REVENUES
Property and franchise taxes 12,479$        398,003$      $               410,482$      
Intergovernmental revenues 66,670                               80,439          147,109        
Charges for services 288,580        13,100          87,370          389,050        
Fines and forfeitures 8,100                                                      8,100            
Investment (loss) (11,864)         (7,299)           (25,894)         (45,057)         
Other revenues 123,703        218,365        261,551        603,619        

TOTAL REVENUES 487,668        622,169        403,466        1,513,303     

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 54,729                                                    54,729          
Public safety 14,808                                                    14,808          
Public works 36,051                               246,625        282,676        
Recreation and parks 94,649                               32,688          127,337        
Development and other 198,711        254,869                             453,580        

Capital Outlay
General government 17,812                               6,364            24,176          
Public safety 1,178                                 1,476            2,654            
Public works                      29,152          29,152          
Recreation and parks                                           9,823            9,823            
Development and other 9,599                                 9,599            

Debt Service
Principal                      522,021                             522,021        
Interest and other                      38,158          38,158          

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 427,537        815,048        326,128        1,568,713     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 60,131          (192,879)       77,338          (55,410)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds 29,157          169,627        225,587        424,371        
Transfers to other funds (67,500)         (931,546)                            (999,046)       
Sale of capital assets 111,500        122,397        233,897        

Total other financing sources (uses) 73,157          (761,919)       347,984        (340,778)       

Net change in fund balances 133,288        (954,798)       425,322        (396,188)       

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Beginning 1,523,858     1,513,016     1,827,116     4,863,990     

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Ending 1,657,146$   558,218$      2,252,438$   4,467,802$   

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021



 

    
 

83 

Recycling
Street 

Lighting Cable
ASSETS

Cash and investments 30,622$        84,986$        11,430$        
Accounts receivable 56,800          8,907            12,479          
Prepaid expenditures
Due from other funds 1,705            566               

TOTAL ASSETS 89,127$        94,459$        23,909$        

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 7,861$          2,708$           $              
Accrued payroll and taxes 470                                    219               
Deposits and other liabilities                                                                
Unearned revenue

Total Liabilities 8,331            2,708            219               

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned 80,796          91,751          23,690          
   Total Fund Balance 80,796          91,751          23,690          

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 89,127$        94,459$        23,909$        

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

December 31, 2021
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS



 

    
 

84 

Police 
Forfeiture Police Reserves Recreation HRA Reserve

19,165$        11,570$            292,769$      1,044,167$   
                                              6                                        

495                                    

19,165$        11,570$            293,270$      1,044,167$   

3,067$           $                  2,164$           $              
                                                                                        
                                                                   5,600            

6,947            
3,067                                     9,111            5,600            

495                                    
11,570              

16,098                                   283,664        1,038,567     
16,098          11,570              284,159        1,038,567     

19,165$        11,570$            293,270$      1,044,167$   
 

 
(Continued) 

 



 

    
 

85 

Tower Days
Traffic 

Education
Emergency 

Management
ASSETS

Cash and investments 26,521$        49,769$        13,853$        
Accounts receivable                                           
Prepaid expenditures
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS 26,521$        49,769$        13,853$        

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable  $               $              8$                 
Accrued payroll and taxes                                           
Deposits and other liabilities                                           
Unearned revenue

Total Liabilities                                           8                   

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted 26,521          49,769          
Assigned                                           13,845          
   Total Fund Balance 26,521          49,769          13,845          

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 26,521$        49,769$        13,853$        

December 31, 2021
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK



 

    
 

86 

Animal 
Control

Comprehensive 
Plan Update Forestry Total

6,265$          10,610$            3,505$          1,605,232$   
78,192          

495               
2,271            

6,265$          10,610$            3,505$          1,686,190$   

 $               $                   $              15,808$        
689               

5,600            
6,947            

                         29,044          

495               
87,860          

6,265            10,610              3,505            1,568,791     
6,265            10,610              3,505            1,657,146     

6,265$          10,610$            3,505$          1,686,190$   



 

    
 

87 

Recycling Street Lighting Cable
REVENUES

Franchise taxes  $               $              12,479$        
Intergovernmental revenue 66,670                                                    
Charges for services 131,376        38,736                               
Fines and forfeitures                                                                
Investment (loss) (212)              (499)              (111)              
Other revenues 1,355            35,549                               

TOTAL REVENUES 199,189        73,786          12,368          

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government                                           16,529          
Public safety                                                                
Public works                      36,051                               
Recreation and parks
Development and other 181,263                                                  

Capital Outlay
General government
Public safety
Development and other 9,599            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 190,862        36,051          16,529          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 8,327            37,735          (4,161)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds (5,000)                                                     
Sale of capital assets

Total other financing sources (uses) (5,000)                                                     

Net change in fund balances 3,327            37,735          (4,161)           

FUND BALANCES, Beginning 77,469          54,016          27,851          

FUND BALANCES, Ending 80,796$        91,751$        23,690$        

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

 



 

    
 

88 

Police 
Forfeiture Police Reserves Recreation HRA Reserve

 $               $                     $               $               
                                                                                           
                                                118,468                              

8,100                                                                                  
(162)              (79)                     (2,432)           (7,599)           

                                                                     75,057           

7,938            (79)                     116,036        67,458           

                                                                     38,200           
13,514          93                                                                  

                                                                                           
93,449                                

                                                                                           

17,812
1,178            

14,692          93                       93,449          56,012           

(6,754)           (172)                   22,587          11,446           

3,000                  
                                                (62,500)                               

111,500         

                     3,000                  (62,500)         111,500         

(6,754)           2,828                  (39,913)         122,946         

22,852          8,742                  324,072 915,621

16,098$        11,570$              284,159$      1,038,567$    

 (Continued)



 

    
 

89 

Tower Days
Traffic 

Education
Emergency 

Management
REVENUES

Franchise taxes  $               $               $              
Intergovernmental revenue                                           
Charges for services                                           
Fines and forfeitures                                           
Investment (loss) (170)              (387)              (101)              
Other revenues 11,742                               

TOTAL REVENUES 11,572          (387)              (101)              

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government                                           
Public safety                                           1,201            
Public works                                           
Recreation and parks
Development and other 17,448                               

Capital Outlay
General government
Public safety
Development and other

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 17,448                               1,201            

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (5,876)           (387)              (1,302)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds 15,000          3,157            
Transfers to other funds                                           
Sale of capital assets

Total other financing sources (uses) 15,000                               3,157            

Net change in fund balances 9,124            (387)              1,855            

FUND BALANCES, Beginning 17,397          50,156          11,990          

FUND BALANCES, Ending 26,521$        49,769$        13,845$        

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021



 

    
 

90 

Animal 
Control

Comprehensive 
Plan Update Forestry Total

 $               $                     $              12,479$         
66,670           

288,580         
8,100             

(44)                (43)                     (25)                (11,864)         
                     123,703         

(44)                (43)                     (25)                487,668         

                                                                     54,729           
14,808           
36,051           

1,200            94,649           
198,711         

                      
17,812           
1,178             
9,599             

                                                1,200            427,537         

(44)                (43)                     (1,225)           60,131           

1,000            5,000                  2,000            29,157           
(67,500)         
111,500         

1,000            5,000                  2,000            73,157           

956               4,957                  775               133,288         

5,309            5,653                  2,730            1,523,858      

6,265$          10,610$              3,505$          1,657,146$    



 

    
 

91 

2013A G.O. 
Capital 

Improvement 
Fire Bond

2016A North 
Metro Tele-

communications

2013B G.O. 
Capital 

Improvement 
Bonds

ASSETS
Cash and investments  $              319$                 81,355$        
Due from other governmental units                                                                    

TOTAL ASSETS  $              319$                 81,355$        

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES

Due to other funds 4,641$           $                   $              

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Restricted 319                   81,355          
Unassigned (4,641)           
   Total Fund Balance (Deficit) (4,641)           319                   81,355          

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE  $              319$                 81,355$        

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
December 31, 2021



 

    
 

92 

Tax 
Increment 
Financing - 
Legends of 

SLP

2017A G.O. 
Equipment 
Certificates

2018A Blaine 
Fire Debt 
Service

2018A G.O. 
Equipment 
Certificates

2014A G.O. 
Improvement 

Bonds Total

124,467$      279,357$      61,172$        12,762$         $              559,432$      
                                                               3,427                                 3,427            

124,467$      279,357$      61,172$        16,189$         $              562,859$      

 $               $               $               $               $              4,641$          

124,467        279,357        61,172          16,189                               562,859        
(4,641)           

124,467        279,357        61,172          16,189                               558,218        

124,467$      279,357$      61,172$        16,189$         $              562,859$      



 

    
 

93 

2013A G.O. 
Capital 

Improvement 
Fire Bond

2016A North 
Metro Tele-

communications

2013B G.O. 
Capital 

Improvement 
Bonds

REVENUES
Taxes  $              $                    $               
Charges for services 13,100              
Investment (loss)                      (3)                                            
Other revenue                                               

TOTAL REVENUES                      13,097                                    

EXPENDITURES
Current

Development and other
Debt Service

Principal 41,650          12,096              70,000           
Interest and other charges 4,369            1,004                6,895             

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 46,019          13,100              76,895           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (46,019)         (3)                      (76,895)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers from other funds 50,000          78,250
Transfers to other funds                                               

Total other financing sources (uses) 50,000                                   78,250           

Net change in fund balances 3,981            (3)                      1,355             

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Beginning (8,622)           322                   80,000           

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), Ending (4,641)$         319$                 81,355$         

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021



 

    
 

94 

Tax Increment 
Financing - 
Legends of 

SLP

2017A G.O. 
Equipment 
Certificates

2018A Blaine 
Fire Debt 
Service

2018A G.O. 
Equipment 
Certificates

2014A G.O. 
Improvement 

Bonds Total

238,927$        $                $               159,076$        $               398,003$      
13,100          

(952)              (2,163)           (474)              (126)              (3,581)           (7,299)           
218,365                               218,365        

237,975         216,202         (474)              158,950         (3,581)           622,169        

254,869 254,869        

                      220,000         18,275           160,000                               522,021        
                      16,950           2,270             6,670                                   38,158          

254,869         236,950         20,545           166,670                               815,048        

(16,894)         (20,748)         (21,019)         (7,720)           (3,581)           (192,879)       

                      20,285           21,092                                                       169,627        
(3,000)           (928,546)       (931,546)       

(3,000)           20,285           21,092                                 (928,546)       (761,919)       

(19,894)         (463)              73                  (7,720)           (932,127)       (954,798)       

144,361         279,820         61,099           23,909           932,127         1,513,016     

124,467$       279,357$       61,172$         16,189$         $                558,218$      



 

    
 

95 

State Aid 
Street Fund

Street 
Sealcoating Storm Water

Capital 
Replacement

ASSETS
Cash and investments 197,983$      63,184$        91,192$        447,963$      
Accounts receivable 20,757          

TOTAL ASSETS 197,983$      83,941$        91,192$        447,963$      

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 67$                $               $              850$             

FUND BALANCE
Restricted 197,916        
Assigned 83,941          91,192          447,113        
   Total Fund Balance 197,916        83,941          91,192          447,113        

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 197,983$      83,941$        91,192$        447,963$      

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

December 31, 2021
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET



 

    
 

96 

Right of Way
Building 

Maintenance
Public Safety 
Replacement

2,009$          247,933$      68,892$        

2,009$          247,933$      68,892$        

 $               $               $              

2,009            247,933        68,892          
2,009            247,933        68,892          

2,009$          247,933$      68,892$        

 
                                                                   

(Continued) 
 



 

    
 

97 

Park Special 
Projects

Park 
Acquisition 

and 
Improvement

Lakeside 
Lions Park 

Improvement

ASSETS
Cash and investments 9,052$          872,407$      23,732$        
Accounts receivable

TOTAL ASSETS 9,052$          872,407$      23,732$        

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable  $               $               $              

FUND BALANCE
Restricted 9,052            872,407        23,732          
Assigned
   Total Fund Balance 9,052            872,407        23,732          

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 9,052$          872,407$      23,732$        

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

December 31, 2021

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK



 

    
 

98 

Small 
Equipment

Park 
Equipment 

and 
Improvement

2018A G.O. 
Equipment 
Certificates

2017A G.O. 
Equipment 
Certificates Total

18,562$        27,102$        155,372$      7,215$          2,232,598$   
20,757          

18,562$        27,102$        155,372$      7,215$          2,253,355$   

 $               $               $               $              917$             

1,103,107     
18,562          27,102          155,372        7,215            1,149,331     
18,562          27,102          155,372        7,215            2,252,438     

18,562$        27,102$        155,372$      7,215$          2,253,355$   



 

    
 

99 

State Aid 
Street Fund

Street 
Sealcoating Storm Water

Capital 
Replacement

REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues 72,390$         $               $               $              
Charges for services                      81,663                                                    
Investment (loss) (1,422)           (11,160)         (504)              (3,331)           
Other revenues                      133,573        

TOTAL REVENUES 70,968          70,503          133,069        (3,331)           

EXPENDITURES
Current

Public works 42,533          91,096          106,586        4,525            
Recreation and parks                                                                                     

Capital Outlay
General Government 6,364            
Public safety 1,476            
Public works                                                                
Recreation and parks                                                                                     

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 42,533          91,096          106,586        12,365          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 28,435          (20,593)         26,483          (15,696)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds                      42,000          25,000          25,000          
Sale of capital assets                                           

Total other financing sources (uses)                      42,000          25,000          25,000          

Net change in fund balances 28,435          21,407          51,483          9,304            

FUND BALANCES, Beginning 169,481        62,534          39,709          437,809        

FUND BALANCES, Ending 197,916$      83,941$        91,192$        447,113$      

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021



 

    
 

100 

Right of Way
Building 

Maintenance
Public Safety 
Replacement

 $               $               $              
                                                               

(15)                (1,111)           (489)              
                                                               

(15)                (1,111)           (489)              

                     1,885                                 
                                                               

                                                               
                                                               

                     1,885                                 

(15)                (2,996)           (489)              

                     111,688        11,899          

                     111,688        11,899          

(15)                108,692        11,410          

2,024            139,241        57,482          

2,009$          247,933$      68,892$        

 
                                                                

(Continued) 
 



 

    
 

101 

Park Special 
Projects

Park 
Acquisition 

and 
Improvement

Lakeside 
Lions Park 

Improvement
Small 

Equipment

REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues 8,049$           $               $               $              
Charges for services 1,082            4,400                                 225               
Investment (loss) (80)                (5,971)           (184)              (132)              
Other revenues 280               113,820                             5,276            

TOTAL REVENUES 9,331            112,249        (184)              5,369            

EXPENDITURES
Current

Public works                                                                                     
Recreation and parks 916               23,859                               2,341            

Capital Outlay
General Government
Public safety
Public works                                                                                     
Recreation and parks 9,823                                                                           

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 10,739          23,859                               2,341            

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,408)           88,390          (184)              3,028            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds                                                                                     
Sale of capital assets 113,335        

Total other financing sources (uses)                      113,335                                                  

Net change in fund balances (1,408)           201,725        (184)              3,028            

FUND BALANCES, Beginning 10,460          670,682        23,916          15,534          

FUND BALANCES, Ending 9,052$          872,407$      23,732$        18,562$        

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021



 

    
 

102 

Park 
Equipment 

and 
Improvement

2018A G.O. 
Equipment 
Certificates

2017A G.O. 
Equipment 
Certificates Total

 $               $               $              80,439$        
                                                               87,370          

(169)              (1,270)           (56)                (25,894)         
4,602            4,000                                 261,551        

4,433            2,730            (56)                403,466        

                     246,625        
5,572            32,688          

6,364            
1,476            

                     29,152                               29,152          
                                                               9,823            

5,572            29,152                               326,128        

(1,139)           (26,422)         (56)                77,338          

10,000                                                    225,587        
9,062            122,397        

10,000          9,062                                 347,984        

8,861            (17,360)         (56)                425,322        

18,241          172,732        7,271            1,827,116     

27,102$        155,372$      7,215$          2,252,438$   



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
 

OTHER REPORT SECTION 
 

December 31, 2021



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Left Blank Intentionally



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and 
 Members of the City Council 
City of Spring Lake Park, Minnesota 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the City of Spring 
Lake Park (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Spring Lake Park's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 29, 2022.  
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Spring 
Lake Park's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Spring Lake Park's internal control over financial 
reporting. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a 
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A 
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
City's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
financial reporting that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 
in internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. We identified a certain deficiency in internal control over financial reporting, 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2021-001 that we 
consider to be a significant deficiency. 



 

 
 

104 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
 Members of the City Council 
City of Spring Lake Park 
 
 
Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Governmental Auditing Standards. 
 
Minnesota Legal Compliance 

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the 
City of Spring Lake Park failed to comply with the provisions of the contracting – bid laws, 
depositories of public funds and public investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, 
claims and disbursements, miscellaneous provisions, and tax increment financing sections of 
the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities, promulgated by the State Auditor 
pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, insofar as they relate to accounting matters. However, our audit 
was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had 
we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding 
the City’s noncompliance with the above reference provisions, insofar as they relate to 
accounting matters. 
 
City’s Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City’s 
response to the internal control and legal compliance findings identified in our audit and 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses. The City of Spring Lake 
Park's response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on response. 
 
Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit 
Guide for Cities and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. This report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 
June 29, 2022 



 

 
 

105 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 
 
 
FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
  
 SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 
 
 2013-001 
 2014-001 
 2015-001 
 2016-001 
 2017-001 
 2018-001 

2019-001  
2020-001 Limited Segregation of Duties 
 

Condition: A limited number of personnel are primarily responsible for 
the accounting and financial duties relating to the revenue and receipt 
cycle and the purchase and disbursement cycle.  

 
Criteria: The A-102 Common Rule and OMB Circular A-110 (2 CFR part 
215) require that non-Federal entities receiving Federal awards (i.e., 
auditee management) establish and maintain internal control designed to 
reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws, regulations and 
program compliance requirements. An important element of internal 
accounting controls is an adequate segregation of duties that minimizes 
the opportunities for any one individual to be in a position to both 
perpetrate and conceal errors or irregularities in the normal course of 
business. 

 
Effect: Because of the limited size of the City’s administrative staff, there 
is not an adequate segregation of duties.  
 
Cause: There is a limited number of administrative staff. 

 
Recommendation: We recommend that the City continue to segregate 
duties as best it can within the limits of what the City considers to be cost 
beneficial. 



 

 
 

106 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 
 
 
FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

 
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 
 
2013-002 
2014-002 

 2015-002 
2016-002 
2017-002 
2018-002 
2019-002  
2020-002 Material Audit Adjustments 
 

Condition: The City's unaudited trial balance contained material 
misstatements. 

 
Criteria: The City is required to report accurate financial information. 

 
Effect: The material misstatements in the unaudited trial balance resulted 
in the need to record adjustments during the audit. 

 
Cause: There is limited number of administrative staff and it would not be 
practical for the City to devote resources required to overcome this 
limitation.    
 
Recommendation: We recommend management develop an accounting 
policy and procedures manual to assist with ensuring that all transactions 
are recorded consistently and that the information necessary to prepare 
an accurate unaudited trial balance is gathered in an organized and 
efficient manner and provided to the accountant. 



 

 
 

107 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 
 
 
FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 
  
 SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 
 

 2021-001 Material Audit Adjustments 
 

Condition: The City's unaudited trial balance contained material 
misstatements. 

 
Criteria: The City is required to report accurate financial information. 

 
Effect: The material misstatement in the unaudited trial balance resulted 
in the need to record adjustments during the audit. 

 
Cause: There is a limited number of administrative staff and it would not 
be practical for the City to devote resources required to overcome this 
limitation.    

 
Recommendation: We recommend management develop an accounting 
policy and procedures manual to assist with ensuring that all transactions 
are recorded consistently and that the information necessary to prepare 
an accurate unaudited trial balance is gathered in an organized and 
efficient manner and provided to the accountant. 



 

City of Spring Lake Park 
1301 81st Avenue NE I Spring Lake Park, MN 55432 

P) 763-784-6491   F) 763-792-7257 
www.slpmn.org 

 

Spring Lake Park 
History. Community. Home. 

 
 

 
 

 
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN (CAP): 
 
The City respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for the year ended December 
31, 2021. 
 
The findings from the schedule of findings and responses are discussed below. The findings are 
numbered consistently with the number assigned in the schedule.  
 
 
RESPONSE: FINDING 2021-001 
 
Explanation of Disagreement with Audit Finding: 
There is no disagreement with the audit finding.  
 
Actions Planned in Response to Finding: 
City management and accounting personnel review the drafted financial statements and notes. 
The City does not have the expertise to ensure all disclosures required by GAAP are included in 
the financial statements. Accordingly, the City will rely upon the auditors for completeness of the 
disclosures. However, the management and accounting personnel will review the notes for 
accuracy prior to issuance of the statements.  
 
Official Responsible for Ensuring CAP: 
Daniel Buchholtz, City Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer, is the official responsible for ensuring the 
planned response.  
 
Planned Completion Date for CAP: 
Not applicable as the City is willing to accept this risk and will continue to evaluate the 
recommendation. 
 
Plan to Monitor Completion of CAP: 
Not applicable as the City is willing to accept the risk and will continue to evaluate the 
recommendation. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



Memorandum              

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Kay Okey, Parks & Recreation Director 

   

Date: 6/28/22 

Authorization to being hiring process for Recreation Program Coordinator 

Action To be Considered:   

 
As you know, Jamie Cassidy, one of the Program Coordinators, is leaving Spring Lake 
Park, which leaves us with a position opening.  I am requesting permission to fill this 
vacancy by beginning the review process. 
 
Attached is the job description and qualifications for the position of Recreation Program 
Coordinator. 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kay Okey  
Director of Parks and Recreation 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Parks & Recreation 
Supervisor 

General Definition of Work 
 
FLSA Status: Exempt 

Performs work planning, developing, and implementing a comprehensive recreation 
programming, supervising a variety of youth through adult programs, developing and 
maintaining public relations materials, and related work as apparent or assigned. 

Work is performed under the supervision of the Parks & Recreation 
Director. Oversight is exercised over Contract Instructors and Support 
Staff. 

Qualification Requirements 
 

 

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential function 

satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability 

required. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable an individual with disabilities to 

perform the essential functions. 
 

Essential Functions 

• Sports Programming: 

• Plans, implements, evaluates, records, youth and adult sports. 

• Plans, implements, evaluates, and leads youth summer programs and field trips and hires staff.  

• Plans, implements, and evaluates individual recreation activities including classes and 

special events for youth, adults, families, and senior citizens. 

• Monitors and organizes outdoor activities. 

• Develops, creates, and publishes program flyers, department newsletter, department catalog, 

and other media. 

• Registers participants both in person and on phone for recreation programs. 

• Coordinates special events such as Craft and Business Fair for Tower Days, Easter Egg 

Hunt, and other community events. 

• Tour Programming: 

• Plans, implements, evaluates, records, and leads extended tours. 

• Plans, implements, evaluates, and leads day trips. 

• Plans, implements, and evaluates individual recreation activities including classes and 

special events for youth, adults, families, and senior citizens. 

• Monitors and organizes adult social clubs such as walking, cards, bingo, book 

• Develops, creates, and publishes program flyers, department newsletter, department catalog, 

and other media. 

• Registers participants both in person and on phone for recreation programs. 

• Coordinates special events such as parades for Tower Days and summer music service. 

 
Knowledge, Skills and Abilities 

Thorough knowledge of the operation of a recreation facility; thorough knowledge of games, indoor 

and outdoor athletics and related rules and regulations; general knowledge of the principles and 

practices of recreation planning, programming, and operations. 

Ability to maintain order in a public facility; ability to plan and supervise the work of others; ability to 

communicate ideas effectively both orally and in writing; ability to establish and maintain effective 

working relationships with participants, associates, and the general public. 

 
 

Baker Tilly's SAFE® System October 2021 City of Spring Lake Park, MN 





 
 

Memorandum 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Kay Okey, Parks & Recreation Director  

Date:                   6-27-22 

Subject: Recommend Approval of Funding for Architectural/Engineering Services for Able 

Park Building Reconstruction Project 

Staff recommends that the City approve an agreement with Wendell Architectural Firm in the amount 
of $57, 800.00 for Architectural/Engineering Services for the Able Park Building Project. 
   

    Scope of Services: 
 · Work will include preparation of Schematic Design, Design Development, Construction   
  Documents. 
 · Construction Documents will include drawings and project manual as required to obtain public 
  competitive bids. 
 · Wendel will provide drawings and other information as needed to obtain city site and building  
  permits. 
 · Wendel will issue documents for Bidding and assist the Owner in obtaining bids for the project. 
 · Wendel will provide standard Construction Administration services, including progress meetings, 
  answering RFIs, issuing proposal requests and change orders as needed, making periodic 
  site observations, reviewing contractor pay requests and making punch list and final  
  inspections. 

 
Background:  One of the Park and Recreation Department’s Strategic Initiatives was to develop a 
comprehensive park concept plan for the community to guide future changes and improvements. This plan 
preparation began in late 2020 and continued into early 2022.  Through a public engagement process, which 
included a resident survey, individual park assessments, and public meetings, the concept plan was refined 
into the Park Master Plan. The Parks and Recreation Commission agreed that the top priority would be Able 
Park to be the first park to be considered for updates, with the building being a priority where the most 
activities occur. 
 
Installation Time Frame 
 

 Phase I September-October 2022 
  Remove recreation equipment and supplies 
  Demo the interior of the building and the cement slab of the picnic area 
  Remove existing picnic shelter 
  Concrete footings poured 
 Phrase II- October 2022-May 2023 
  Construction/Remodeling begins and is to be completed by June 2023. 
 Phrase III – Summer 2023 
  Landscaping Restoration 

 
Financial Impact: This cost would be funded using the Parks Improvement Fund, which is not a taxpayer-
funded account. The staff are researching grant options and the bids for the construction will not come 
out until grant opportunities are explored. 

 
  ATTACHMENTS: Quote proposals:  Wendell Architectural/Engineering Services, Stantec 
Consulting $70,470 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kay Okey 

Director of Parks and Recreation 



ARCHITECTURE    ENGINEERING    PLANNING    ENERGY EFFICIENCY     CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

401 2nd Avenue North, Suite 206, Minneapolis, MN 55401    p 612.332.1401    w wendelcompanies.com 

 

June 10, 2022 
 
Ms. Kay Okey; Parks and Recreation Director 
Spring Lake Park 
1301 81st Avenue NE 
Spring Lake Park, MN 55432 
 
Re:   Able Park Shelter Upgrades – Architectural/Engineering Services 
 
Kay: 
 
Thank you for this opportunity to submit our proposal to provide Architectural and Engineering Services for the 
renovation of the Able Park shelter building.  Our understanding of the project is as follows: 

• The scope of the project will be additions and renovation of the existing Able Park Building per Option F 
of the pre-design study prepared by Wendel. 

• The scope does not include the pre-design alternates for a garage or picnic shelter. 

• The desired schedule is to start construction in early fall of 2022. 

• The intent is for the construction work to be done under a single-prime, lump-sum contract. 
 
Scope of Services: 

• Work will include preparation of Schematic Design, Design Development, Construction Documents. 

• Construction Documents will include drawings and project manual as required to obtain public 
competitive bids. 

• Wendel will provide drawings and other information as needed to obtain city site and building permits. 

• Wendel will issue documents for Bidding and assist the Owner in obtaining bids for the project. 

• Wendel will provide standard Construction Administration services, including progress meetings, 
answering RFIs, issuing proposal requests and change orders as needed, making periodic site 
observations, reviewing contractor pay requests and making punchlist and final inspections. 

 
Based on this scope, we propose to provide Architectural/Engineering services for a fixed fee $57,800.00.  The 
proposed fee is based on the following assumptions: 

• Scope of services shall be in accordance with AIA B101-2017; Standard Form of Agreement between 
Owner and Architect. 

•  Architecture, Structural, Mechanical and Electrical Engineering are included.  We intend to use Hallberg 
Engineering as our Mechanical/Electrical consultant and Larson Engineering for any structural 
engineering work required. 

• Architectural design will include sidewalks and restoration of lawns adjacent to the building.  Civil 
engineering (grading and utilities) and landscape architecture are not included. 

• Any utility work required will be provided by the Owner. 

• Design associated with any other scope of work not noted above is not included.   

• Design associated with removal of hazardous materials (abatement) is not included. 

• Fees for any permits are not included. 

• Survey, soil borings, commissioning, special inspections and construction testing are not included.  If 
requested, we will obtain the required service on behalf of the Owner. 

 
  



 

 

 

 

 

   

Reimbursable Expenses 

• No charge for mileage, lodging, meals, photocopying, fax and telephone.  Costs for outside printing, 
postage and delivery/courier service will be billed at actual invoiced cost (no mark-up).   

Please contact me if you have any further questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
WENDEL ARCHITECTURE PC 

 
Jim Wilson, AIA, LEED AP, ALEP 
Principal 
Re:   Able Park Shelter Upgrades – Architectural/Engineering Services 
 
This proposal and the attached “Appendix A” (Professional Services Terms and Conditions) are intended to 

represent the entire contractual relationship.  Please contact me if you have any questions. If this proposal and 

attached general conditions are acceptable to you, please indicate your acceptance by signing both originals and 

return one (1) executed original to our office. 

 

ACCEPTANCE / AUTHORIZATION: 

Accepted this  _______________ day of ___________ , 20________ 

Print Name: _______________________________________________ 

Signature: _________________________________________________ 

Title: ______________________________________________________ 

 

Should Wendel’s proposal be accepted, Wendel Architecture, PC, a Minnesota licensed architecture and design 

firm that is part of a consolidated group of Wendel Companies, will contract to undertake the work.  Our letterhead 

and plans will still prominently say “Wendel” and we will refer to ourselves as Wendel throughout the project. 

 



Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
2335 Highway 36 West 
St. Paul MN  55113 
Tel: (651) 636-4600 
Fax: (651) 636-1311 

 

   
 

June 28, 2022 
File: 19380#### 

Kay Okey, Parks and Recreation Director 
City of Spring Lake Park  
1301 81st Avenue NE  
Spring Lake Park, MN  55432 

 
Reference: Park Shelter Building Improvements at Able Park                                             

Architectural and Engineering Design Services 

 

Dear Kay,  

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this letter proposal for architectural and engineering design services 
for the Able Park park shelter building.  We understand that the building improvements will be based on the 
Option F floor plan as discussed at Parks Commission meetings earlier this year.   

The improvements generally include expansion of the Common Room to the west; renovation of the south 
wall with new doors, windows, and covered entry; and addition of a new storage room at the north side.   

 



June 28, 2022 
Kay Okey, Parks and Recreation Director 
Page 2 of 3  

Reference: Park Shelter Building Improvements at Able Park   
Architectural and Engineering Design Services 

We propose the following work scope: 

1. Project kick-off meeting in Spring Lake Park to review the floor plan to confirm work scope.
Attending this meeting will be the project architect, along with our structural, mechanical, electrical,
and civil engineers.  At this meeting, we will discuss the building design in detail to define what the
City wants in terms of exterior appearance, interior finishes, building mechanical and electrical
systems, and site circulation.

2. Based on the information gathered during the kick-off meeting, we will prepare Schematic Design
Drawings for review.

3. After approval of the Schematic Drawings, we will prepare construction documents and
specifications for the building.  Project plans, specifications and bidding documents shall include:
a. Architectural, structural, mechanical, plumbing, and electrical for the new Able Park Park

Building.
b. Mechanical building systems including extensions of the existing HVAC and plumbing systems

to the building additions. This does NOT include design of a new HVAC system for the entire
building.

c. Electrical building systems including power, lights, communications, and security. This does
NOT include design of a new electrical power supply system for the entire building.

4. We will meet with the City personnel to review the drawings and specifications at 50% and 95%
completion.  All discussions will be documented and incorporated into the drawings and
specifications prior to issuing for bidding.

5. We will prepare a final opinion of probable construction costs at 95% completion.

6. During the bidding phase, we will respond to all bidder questions and issue document modifications
via addenda as necessary.

7. Participate in the bid opening, review all bids received, prepare bid tabulation, and prepare letter of
contract award recommendation.

Items 1 through 7 above will be performed for a lump sum fee of $42,760.00. Reimbursable expenses will 
include mileage and printing/reproduction costs and are estimated to be no more than $1,500.00.   

In addition to our proposed design services, we are proposing the following work scope during construction: 

8. Review shop drawing submittals for compliance with the construction documents, respond to
Requests for Information, and issue change orders as needed.

9. Provide progress reports and review contractor payment requests.
10. Building corner staking and providing a site benchmark.
11. Four site visits during construction.
12. Prepare the punchlist at end of construction noting items that are not complete or not in compliance

with the construction documents.
13. Final walk-through with Owner when all punchlist items have been addressed.

We will complete the Construction Phase services on an hourly basis.  We estimate our associated hourly 
fees to be for items 8 through 13 above at $24,210.00 plus reimbursable expenses of $2,000.     



June 28, 2022 
Kay Okey, Parks and Recreation Director 
Page 3 of 3  

Reference: Park Shelter Building Improvements at Able Park   
Architectural and Engineering Design Services 

Exclusions to this proposal include geotechnical report, ACM testing/removal, retaining walls, costs 
associated with contaminated materials/soil, and permit fees. 

This letter represents the understanding between the City and Stantec in respect to the Project and may 
only be modified in writing signed by both of us and is subject to the current Master Services Agreement 
between the City and Stantec. 

If this letter satisfactorily sets forth conditions of our Agreement, please sign in the space below and 
return one copy to our office. Thank you for the opportunity to provide these services. 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 

  By 

 Print Name and Title 

 Date 

If you have any questions, need additional information, or wish to discuss this matter in greater detail, please 
contact Bruce Paulson or me. 

Regards, 

STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 

Phil Gravel, PE 
Principal 
Phone: (612) 712-2000 
Phil.Gravel@stantec.com 

cc. Bruce Paulson, Stantec



 

 

 
City of Spring Lake Park  

Engineer’s Project Status Report 
 

 

To: Council Members and Staff  Re: Status Report for 07.05.22 Meeting       
 

From:  Phil Gravel     File No.: R-18GEN  
 

 

Note:  Updated information is shown in italics.    

 
2022 MS4 Permit and SWPPP Update (193805251).  Annual Report was submitted by June 

30th.  Public Meeting was held on June 20, 2022.   Pond, structural BMP, and outfall inspections due 
by July 31st.  Program analysis and annual training is due in December.     
 
2021 Sewer Lining Project (193805204).  This project included lining in the general area 
between Terrace and Monroe and south of 81st Avenue.  Terry Randall is watching this 
project.  Lining work has been completed.  Grout work will occur this summer.  Contractor is 
Visu-Sewer.           

 
2023 Sewer Lining Project (19380xxx).  Terry Randall is working with a contractor to get 
preliminary televising of the remaining sanitary sewers in the city that need to be lined.             

 
2022 Street Seal Coat and Crack Repair Project (193805507).  2022 project area includes 81st 

Ave., Arthur St., Middletown, and the Service Drive southwest of 10 and 65.  Project also includes 

striping 81st Ave. between Pleasant View and Central as a 3-lane road.  Bid was awarded on May 
2nd.  Contracts were signed on June 6th.   Crack repair work was completed the week of June 
13th.  Seal coat was placed on June 24th.  Pavement Markings will be placed in early July.   

 
2022 Street Improvements Project (193805383).  Public Improvement Hearings were on 10/4/21 

and 11/15/21.  Construction Plans and Specifications were approved on 12/6/21.  Bids were received 
on January 31st.  Public Assessment Hearing and Project Award were on March 21st.  Construction 
Contractor is Northwest Asphalt.     
 

Construction started on May 9th.   Bituminous base course and sidewalk work at Triangle 
Park (Able) and on 81st Avenue were completed in May.  Final bituminous wear course was 
paved on June 6, 2022.   A punch-list inspection will be completed with the Public Works 
Director this month.      

 
City Hall Building (193805580).  A process for evaluating possible city hall remodel options has 

started.  Data on the existing building has been collected.  A kick-off meeting with city staff was held 
on 5-31-22. Schematic floor plan options are being prepared that will be shared with staff in early July.   

 
 
 
 
Feel free to contact Harlan Olson, Mark Rolfs, Phil Carlson, Jim Engfer, Peter Allen, Bruce Paulson, or me if you have 
questions or require additional information. 
 



 
CORRESPONDENCE 

  



 



• We lowered our 2022 municipal bond issuance forecast to $410 billion from      
$495 billion (Nov. 2021.)

• Higher interest rates and lower economic growth are key reasons for the revision.
• Investors pulled about $2.1 billion from municipal funds last week. But, we 

continue to believe taxable and tax-exempt municipal bonds are very investable 
right now.

• The HilltopSecurities Debt Capital Markets Group’s June 2022 survey results show 
opinions have evolved in favor of a green bond designation since December 2021.

We are Now Expecting $410 billion, Not $495 billion of Issuance in 2022
We revised our 2022 municipal bond outlook in February, please see REVISED: The 
Municipal Market in 2022, Due to the COVID-19 Paradigm Shift (Feb 7, 2022), and we are 
modifying our 2022 issuance forecast as well. Our 2022 municipal bond issuance forecast 
was stale once the calendar turned to 2022 and factors kept building since the beginning 
of the year arguing in favor of lower bond activity. In November 2021, we published a 
forecast that would have been a record of $495 billion. Please see Our 2022 Municipal 
Bond Issuance Forecast (Nov. 22, 2021.)  Now, we are expecting municipal bond market 
primary issuance to come in at $410 billion. Incidentally, $410 billion is just below the 
$436 billion 5-year average and right on top of the $410 billion 9-year average we have 
seen the public finance community produce in recent years.

What Changed? Lower Growth and Higher Interest Rates, Inflation
Rising interest rates since the beginning of the year created barriers to new money and 
refunding activity. On the new money side, public finance entities experienced a price-
shock dynamic because of the steady increase in rates since January. We think that reality 
is setting in on the new money side however, and issuers will now realize that interest 
rates are in fact going higher and are likely to stay relatively elevated. The higher interest 
rate environment suppressed refunding activity this year on the taxable and tax-exempt 
side. Refundings are not likely to make a comeback, especially if the Fed increases the 

REVISED: 2022 U.S. Municipal Bond Issuance Forecast (June 13, 2022)

  
2022 Revised 
Forecast (in $)

2022 Revised 
Forecast (%) 2021 Actual (in $) 2021 Actual (%) 

New Money $348.500 85% $345.399 72%

Refunding $61.500 15% 136.213 28%

Total $410.000 100% $481.612 100%

Tax-Exempt $352.600 86% $353.828 73%

Taxable $57.400 14% $127.784 27%

Total $410.000 100% $481.612 100%

Sources: Refinitiv, The Bond Buyer and HilltopSecurities. ($ in billions)

We are expecting municipal bond 
market primary issuance to come 
in at $410 billion. Incidentally, $410 
billion is just below the $436 billion 
5-year average and right on top 
of the $410 billion 9-year average 
we have seen the public finance 
community produce in recent years.

REVISED: Our 2022 Municipal Bond Issuance Forecast

Please see disclosure starting on page 4.

Tom Kozlik
Head of Municipal Research & Analytics 
214.859.9439
tom.kozlik@hilltopsecurities.com

U.S. Municipal Bond Market 

Municipal Commentary

Page 1

June 13, 2022

https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/municipal-commentary_2.7.22.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/municipal-commentary_2.7.22.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/municipal-commentary_11.22.21.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/municipal-commentary_11.22.21.pdf


pace at which they raise their target rate. As of now, most are expecting that the Fed 
is going to elevate its target rate by 50 basis points during the Wednesday, June 15 
meeting (see Fed meeting calendar here.)

Most were also expecting another 50 basis point hike on July 27. Many forecasters 
were uncertain about what was likely to occur on Sept. 21, and last week’s CPI 
release (see below) raised that level of uncertainty. Either way, it seems the path of 
U.S. interest rates is going higher, not lower. Another 50 basis point increase is very 
likely this week and additional 50 basis point increases in July and September are 
very likely as well. In coming weeks we will be listening to Fed comments to see if 
they signal that increases in July and/or in September could be even higher than 50 
basis points. 

The reality of lower economic growth is setting in as well. One of the key reasons we 
expected record issuance for 2022 initially back in November was because growth 
forecasts from many economists were coming in at 4.0% or higher. Now forecasts for 
2022 U.S. GDP growth are mostly lower. The Organization for Economic Cooperation 
and Development published one of the latest revisions indicating U.S. growth is 
likely to come in at 2.5% (versus 3.7%) in 2022 and 1.2% in 2023 (versus 2.4%.) 
Please see The Price of War by the OECD, (June 2022.)

Inflation is also a leading theme now, especially compared to the end of 2021. 
Inflation is accelerating and if you listen and or agree with those arguing that it 
has not peaked, then inflation numbers might look messy in coming months and 
the Fed may in fact have to increase their response in September and perhaps 
maybe in July. Overall yields moved higher Thursday of last week after the European 
Central Bank announced it would raise rates. Then on Friday markets reacted mostly 
negatively after the May consumer price index (CPI) number came in at a 40 year 
high.
 

What Could Issuance Look Like for the Rest of the Year?
Total issuance in 2022 so far has trailed 2021 by almost 10%. It will not surprise us to 
see this gap widen by the end of the year mostly driven by lower refunding activity. 
April 2022 was the only month that came close year-over-year to 2021. We are not 
expecting issuance in any month for the rest of this year to beat out 2021 as you 
can see from our month-to-month forecast below. Some months may come close, 
and we expect activity to pick up again toward the end of the summer as it usually 
does, but again it is important to reinforce that we are not expecting activity in any 
one month to surpass last year or even surpass most recent averages. It is worth 
noting that we are expecting issuance to tail off by the end of the year because of 
the aggressive stance of the Fed. What is also possible is that this tail comes sooner, 
rather than closer to the end of the year. If we see much more aggressive Fed action 
it is possible that we could revise our issuance forecast again lower sometime during 
the third quarter of 2022.

Municipal Commentary

Page 2

In coming weeks we will be listening 
to Fed comments to see if they signal 
that increases in July and or in 
September could be even higher than 
50 basis points. 

Total issuance in 2022 so far has 
trailed 2021 by almost 10%. It will 
not surprise us to see this gap widen 
by the end of the year mostly driven 
by lower refunding activity. 

https://www.federalreserve.gov/monetarypolicy/fomccalendars.htm
https://www.oecd.org/economic-outlook/
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2022-06-09/el-erian-warns-inflation-hasn-t-peaked-as-energy-prices-rise?sref=0P2L4g2B
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2022-06-09/el-erian-warns-inflation-hasn-t-peaked-as-energy-prices-rise?sref=0P2L4g2B
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/06/economic-commentary_06.09.2022.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/06/economic-commentary_06.09.2022.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/06/economic-commentary_06.10.2022.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/06/economic-commentary_06.10.2022.pdf


2021 Actual vs Our 2022 Revision

Month 2021 Actual
2022 Actual/ 

Forecast
January $28.183 $26.104
February 37.052 30.535

March 47.768 44.141
April 37.105 36.721
May 35.358 32.167
June 50.364 40.000
July 37.601 35.000

August 43.885 40.000
September 44.604 40.000

October 41.811 35.000
November 37.042 25.000
December 40.840 25.332

$481.612 $410.000
Sources: Refinitiv, The Bond Buyer, HilltopSecurities. ($ in billions)

We Only Expect Pockets of Strength in Municipal Demand 
Investors pulled $2.1 billion from municipal mutual funds per Lipper data reported 
Thursday (June 9) last week. Outflows slowed during the week ending May 26 when 
only $1 billion flowed out of municipal funds and then $1.2 billion flowed into 
municipal funds during the week ending June 2. This was the first time since Feb. 10 
of this year that we saw inflows. So far, only four weeks out of 23 this year have seen 
inflows to municipal funds.

We continue to expect there could be some pockets, or very small pockets of 
strength in demand. Our municipal bond analyst survey (April 2022) reported that 
76% of analysts expect that the trend of negative fund flows is likely to continue, and 
a little less than half of analysts are expecting net flows to be negative in all of 2022.

Although the overall attractiveness of municipals has decreased slightly since we 
wrote Municipal Bonds are an Exceedingly Appealing Fixed Income Option Right 
Now (May 11), we continue to be bullish on absolute tax-exempt and taxable 
municipal interest rates, and many relative value indicators. Taxable and tax-exempt 
municipal bonds remain very investable right now.

How Important is the Green Bond Designation to Your Investment in a High 
Yield Credit?
There are some very compelling results in the High Yield Impact Survey – 2022 
Update published by the HilltopSecurities Debt Capital Markets Group on June 3, 
2022. It was an update to the group’s High Yield Impact Survey published on Dec. 27, 
2021. 

Municipal Commentary

Page 3

It is worth noting that we are 
expecting issuance to tail off by 
the end of the year because of the 
aggressive stance of the Fed. 

Outflows slowed during the week 
ending May 26th when only $1 
billion flowed out of municipal funds 
and then $1.2 billion flowed into 
municipal funds during the week 
ending June 2nd. This was the first 
time since Feb 10th of this year that 
we saw inflows. 

https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/04/Municipal-Analysts-Survey_4.2022.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/05/municipal-commentary_5.11.22.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/05/municipal-commentary_5.11.22.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/06/hilltop-high-yield-survey-6.3.2022_3.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/06/hilltop-high-yield-survey-6.3.2022_3.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/01/hilltop-high-yield-survey-12.27.21-v2.pdf


Municipal Commentary

Page 4
© 2022 Hilltop Securities Inc. | All rights reserved | MEMBER: NYSE/FINRA/SIPC

The paper/commentary was prepared by HilltopSecurities (HTS). It is intended for informational purposes only and does not 
constitute legal or investment advice, nor is it an offer or a solicitation of an offer to buy or sell any investment or other specific 
product. Information provided in this paper was obtained from sources that are believed to be reliable; however, it is not guaranteed 
to be correct, complete, or current, and is not intended to imply or establish standards of care applicable to any attorney or advisor in 
any particular circumstances. The statements within constitute the views of HTS as of the date of the document and may differ from 
the views of other divisions/departments of affiliate Hilltop Securities Inc. In addition, the views are subject to change without notice. 
This paper represents historical information only and is not an indication of future performance. This material has not been prepared 
in accordance with the guidelines or requirements to promote investment research, it is not a research report and is not intended as 
such. Sources available upon request.

Hilltop Securities Inc. is a registered broker-dealer, registered investment adviser and municipal advisor firm that does not provide 
tax or legal advice. HTS is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hilltop Holdings, Inc. (NYSE: HTH) located at 717 N. Harwood St., Suite 3400, 
Dallas, Texas 75201, (214) 859-1800, 833-4HILLTOP

Many of those directly involved in, and many observers of the municipal bond 
market are trying to figure out how to value a green bond designation during a 
primary market sale and how such a designation could support secondary trading 
activity. The HilltopSecurities Debt Capital Markets Group’s survey results show that 
opinions on this topic have evolved in favor of a green bond designation since 
December. Those surveyed, and it is important to reinforce that this question was 
focused on high yield credits, in May reported:

In 2022, almost 60% responded that the designation is nice to have, 10% 
responded that the designation has a tangible value of 1-4 basis points and 
2% said the designation is critical and worth 1-5 basis points. To compare, 
in the 2021 survey, 45% of responders stated that they do not consider the 
Green bond designation in their decisions, 45% said it is nice to have, and 
no respondent reported that it was critical to their investment decision. As 
we reflect upon this change in sentiment, the cause could be attributed 
to the proliferation of bonds with an ESG designation or the widening of 
spread that we have seen over the last six months which has allowed for 
better investor economics.

This is a notable change between only about five months and it will be interesting to 
see how these results evolve in future HilltopSecurities Debt Capital Markets surveys. 

Recent HilltopSecurities Municipal Commentary
• School District Credit Quality is Strong, Former Mayor Bloomberg is Overreaching, 

June 2, 2022
• Voters Want Normalcy – This is Not It – More Political Change is Likely, May 31, 

2022
• Municipal Bonds are an Exceedingly Appealing Fixed Income Opportunity Right 

Now, May 11, 2022

Readers may view all of the HilltopSecurities Municipal Commentary here.

Many of those directly involved in, 
and many observers of the municipal 
bond market are trying to figure 
out how to value a green bond 
designation during a primary market 
sale and how such a designation 
could support secondary trading 
activity.

https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/06/municipal-commentary_6.2.22.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/05/municipal-commentary_5.31.22_rev.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/05/Ted-Chapman-commentary_5.2022.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/05/municipal-commentary_5.11.22.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/05/municipal-commentary_5.11.22.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/public-finance/municipal-commentary/


2021 2022 + / – 2021 2022 + / –

New Listings 10 19 + 90.0% 44 55 + 25.0%

Closed Sales 5 7 + 40.0% 31 43 + 38.7%

Median Sales Price* $300,000 $326,000 + 8.7% $270,000 $300,000 + 11.1%

Average Sales Price* $290,100 $315,857 + 8.9% $270,713 $312,982 + 15.6%

Price Per Square Foot* $149 $177 + 18.9% $155 $178 + 15.4%

Percent of Original List Price Received* 108.2% 106.1% -1.9% 104.6% 103.4% -1.1%

Days on Market Until Sale 3 8 + 166.7% 12 27 + 125.0%

Inventory of Homes for Sale 7 11 + 57.1% -- -- --

Months Supply of Inventory 0.8 1.1 + 37.5% -- -- --

Year to Date

Spring Lake Park

* Does not account for seller concessions.  |  Activity for one month can sometimes look extreme due to small sample size.

** Each dot represents the change in median sales price from the prior year using a 6-month weighted average.
   This means that each of the 6 months used in a dot are proportioned according to their share of sales during that period.

Current as of June 7, 2022. All data from NorthstarMLS.  |  Copyright ShowingTime.

Change in 
New Listings

Change in
Closed Sales

Change in 
Median Sales Price

16-County Twin Cities Region

Spring Lake Park

May

Local Market Update – May 2022
 A RESEARCH TOOL PROVIDED BY THE SAINT PAUL AREA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®

+ 90.0% + 40.0% + 8.7%

- 40%

- 30%

- 20%

- 10%

0%

+ 10%

+ 20%

+ 30%

+ 40%

+ 50%

+ 60%

1-2008 1-2009 1-2010 1-2011 1-2012 1-2013 1-2014 1-2015 1-2016 1-2017 1-2018 1-2019 1-2020 1-2021 1-2022

Change in Median Sales Price from Prior Year (6-Month Average)** b

a

44

31

55

43

New Listings Closed Sales

Year to Date 2021 2022

+ 38.7%+ 25.0%

10

5

19

7

New Listings Closed Sales

May 2021 2022

+ 40.0%+ 90.0%


	Top
	A.	Oath of Office - Police Officer Jeremiah Drinkwine
	A.	Approval of Minutes - June 20, 2022 City Council Meeting
	06.20.22 CC

	B.	Mayor's Proclamation - Park and Recreation Month - July 2022
	Recreation Proclamtion

	C.	Resolution Appointing Election Judges For The 2022 Primary Election
	Appoint Election Judges for Primary

	D.	Contractors Licenses
	Updated Contractor's Licenses

	E.	Contractor's Request for Payment No. 2 - 2022 Street Improvement Projects
	Contractor's Request for Payment No. 2 - 2022 Street Improvement

	F.	Accept Resignation of Glenn Bauer
	G.	Accept Resignation of Conor Allen
	A.	Public Works Report
	June 2022  Public Works Report

	B.	Code Enforcement Report
	June 2022 Code Enforcement Report

	A.	Ordinance Amending Chapter 16 to Establish Interim Use Permits and Amending Section 16.64.040
	Ord_482 (8)
	CC - interim use permits - 6.30.22

	B.	Resolution Authorizing Summary Publication of Ordinance 482, an Ordinance Amending Chapter 16 of the City Code to Establish Interim Use Permits and Amending Section 16.64.040 of the City Code
	22-35 - Summary Publication of Ordinance 482

	A.	Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 7914 Van Buren Street NE
	A.	Approve 2023 North Metro Telecommunications Commission Budget
	2023 Cover Letter
	2023 NMTC Budget Materials

	B.	2021 Audited Financial Statements
	Issued Governance Letter_unlocked
	Issued Significant Deficiencies Letter_unlocked
	City of Spring Lake Park-unlocked

	C.	Authorization to Begin Hiring Process for Recreation Program Coordinator
	Coordinator Hiring Request
	20220627090555643

	D.	Architectural/Engineering Services Contract - Able Park Building Project
	Architectural-Engineering Services Request
	220210-WendelProposal-SLP Able
	SLP_Stantec^letter-proposal-Able-Park-building^2022-06-28_

	A.	Engineer Report
	Engineer Report

	B.	Attorney Report
	C.	Administrator Report
	A.	Correspondence
	Correspondence Cover Page
	revised-muni-issuance-forecast- municipal-commentary_6.13.22
	SpringLakePark

	Bottom

